- F-6716

STATE OF MINNESOTA
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
REGISTRATION DIVISION

(651) 296-2211

IN THE MATTER OF THE REGISTRATION OF:
MAC TOOLS DIVISION OF STANLEY BLACK & DECKER INC FE/A

By MAC TOOLS A DIVISION OF STANLEY BLACK & DECKER INC

ORDER OF
REGISTRATION

WHEREAS, an application has been filed pursuant to Minn.
Stat. §80C.04; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has complied with the requirements
of registration,
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, that the registration be

deciared effective as of the date set forth below.

_ 7%

MIKE ROTHMAN .

Commissioner

Department of Commerce

85 7th Place East, Suite 500

St Paul, MN 55101
Date: August 29, 2011

dlw



UNIFORM FRANCHISE REGISTRATION APPLICATION

FILE NO.:

STATE: Minnesota v (g 1 \U FEE: $400.00

APPLICATION FOR {Check only one):

X INITIAL REGISTRATION OF AN OFFER AND SALE OF
FRANCHISES £°030 o f Mirrmaran
C o e

RENEWAL APPLICATION OR ANNUAL REPORT AUG 17 20M
PRE-EFFECTIVE AMENDMENT Roc'g G\,
POST-EFFECTIVE MATERIAL AMENDMENT

1. Full legal name of Franchisor: Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.

2. Name of the franchise offering: Mac Tools ) F / @ / //

2/
3. Franchisor’s principal business address: / ﬂf

Mac Tools Division C’V vt /ﬂ iﬂ /

505 North Cleveland Avenue
Westerville, Ohio 43082 /V

4. Name and address of Franchisor’s agent in this State authorized to receive service of ed
process:
Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce CT Corporation System, Inc.
Department of Commerce 100 South Fifth Street, Suite 1075
85 7" Place East, Suite 500 Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
5. The states in which this application is or will be shortly on file:

California, Hawaii, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, North Dakota, Rhode
Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin

6. Name, address, telephone and facsimile numbers, and e-mail address of person to whom
communications regarding this application should be directed:

Deanna R. Cook, Esq.

VORYS, SATER, SEYMOUR AND PEASE LLP
52 East Gay Street, P.O. Box 1008

Columbus, Ohio 43216-1008

(614) 464-6349

(614) 719-5135 (Facsimile)

drcook@vorvs.com

H®26160 V.2



Peterson, Bette (COMM)

From: Cook, Deanna R. [drcook@vorys.com)
Sent: Friday, August 19, 2011 3:17 PM

To: Peterson, Bette (COMM)

Subject: RE: F-6716, Mac Tools

Dear Bette:

Thank you for your prompt reply to our client’s initial franchise registration application. We will revise the Minnesota
state specific addenda accordingly and provide you with a clean and black-lined copy. Would you like us to re-submit
the entire FDD or only the revised state addenda?

With respect to the auditor’s consent letter, we anticipate receiving the letter within the next few days and will forwe
it to you when it becomes available to us.

Thanks,

Deanna

VORYS Deanna R. Cook

) Associate
Lamptzed Cleatsiiger]
Vorys, Saicr, Scymour and Pease LLP
52 Eagt Gay Sereet | Columbus, Ohio
43215

Dircel: 614.464.6349
Fax: 614.719.5135
Email: dreook{ztvorys.com

WV VOFYS. Com

From: Péterson, Bette (COMM) [mailto:bette.peterson@state.mn.us]
Sent: Friday, August 19, 2011 4:10 PM

To: Cook, Deanna R.
Subject: F-6716, Mac Tools

Good Afternoon,

The initial franchise registration application for the above-referenced applicant has been examined. Please
correct or otherwise address the following deficiencies:

1. The accountant’s consent was mentioned as being included but was not in the document and must
on the accountant’s letterhead. Please submit.

2. The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5
Please amend.

Minnesota-specific language may be disclosed in a state addendum, which amends both the Franchise
Disclosure Document and the agreement(s). The addendum to the agreement(s) must include a franchisee

signature line.

You may email me the corrections ifiyou like. No mail response would be needed



Regards,

Bette Peterson

Commerce Consumer Liaison/Analyst
85 E 7th Place, Suite 500

St. Paul, MN 55101

651-296-2211
bette.peterson(@state.mn.us

From the law offices of Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP.

IRS CIRCULAR 230 DISCLOSURE: In order to ensure compliance

with requirements imposed by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, we
inform you that any federal tax advice contained in this communication
(including any attachments) is not intended or written to be used, and it

cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of (i) avoiding penalties
that may be imposed under the U.S. Internal RevenlUe Code or

(ii) promoting, marketing, or recommending to another person, any
transaction or other matter addressed herein.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail message 1s intended only for the person
or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or
privileged material. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or
distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please
contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original
message, If you are the intended recipient but do not wish to receive
communications through this medium, please so advise the sender immediately.



52 East Gay St.
PO Box 1008
Columbus, Qhio 43216-1008

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP
Legal Counsel 614.464.6400 | www.vorys.com

Founded 1909

Deanna R. Cook

Direct Dial (§14) 464-6349
Direct Fax {514) 719-6135
Email dreook@vorys.com

August 26, 2011 ;

i H
b
i LI P
i)
. H

Ms. Bette Peterson

Commerce Consumer Liason/Analyst
Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 East 7" Place, Suite 500

St. Paul, MN 55101

Re:  Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. — F6716

Dear Ms. Peterson:

This letter is in response to. comments that we received from you via email dated
August 19, 2011 (copy enclosed) relating to the initial franchise registration filing of our client,
Mac Tools, a Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. Our responses to your specific
comments are outlined below:

1. A copy of the Auditor’s Consent Letter 1s enclosed herein,
2. The requested revision has been made and is reflected in the Minnesota
specific Franchise Agreement Addendum. Pursuant to your request, only

a black-lined copy is enclosed herein.

Thank you for your attention to this correspondence and please let me know if
you have any questions regarding the enclosed documents.

Very truly yours,
}MM\&- L. Cole—
Deanna R. Cook
DRC/Imh
Enclosures
cc: Herbert A. Hedden, Esq. (via email, w/o encls.)
Columbus | Washington | Cleveland | Cincinnati | Akron | Houston

82472011 12117257




Hilty, Lois M.

From: Peterson, Bette (COMM) [bette peterson@state. mn.us)
Sent: Friday, August 19, 2011 4:10 PM

To: Cook, Deanna R.

Subject: F-6716, Mac Tools

Good Afternoon,

The initial franchise registration application for the above-referenced applicant has been examined. Please
correct or otherwise address the following deficiencies:

1. The accountant’s consent was mentioned as being included but was not in the document and must be
on the accountant’s letterhead. Please submit.

2. The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.
Please amend.

Mimesota-specific language may be disclosed in a state addendum, which amends both the Franchise
Disclosure Document and the agreement(s). The addendum to the agreement(s) must include a franchisee
. signature line.

You may email me the corrections if you like. No mail response would be needed

Regards,

Bette Petercon

Commerce Consumer Liaison/Analyst
85 E 7th Place, Suite 500

St. Paul, MN 55101

651-296-2211
bette.peterson(@state.mn.us




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We agree to the inclusion in this Franchise Disclosure Document issued by the Mac Tools division of
Stanley Black & Decker Inc., of our reports dated February 18, 2011 with respect to the consolidated
financial statements of Stanley Black & Decker Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 1, 2011 and January 2,
2010 and for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 1, 2011 and the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting of Stanley Black & Decker Inc. and subsidiaries as of January I,
2011.

Lol «Yoom Lf

Hartford, Connecticut
August 24, 2011



ADDENDUM TO MAC TOOLS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

This Addendum to Mac Tocls Franchise Agreement (this “Addendum™) is attached to and made a part of
the Mac Tools Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement™), by and between Mac Tools Division of

Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (“Franchisor”) and , a(n)
, the principal place of business of which is located at
(“Franchisee™), dated as of , 20

for the purpose of modifying and amending the terms of the Franchise Agreement. For such purpose,
Franchisor and Franchisee agree as follows:

1, All capitalized terms herein which are not separately defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Franchise Agreement.

2. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Franchise Agreement and the
terms of this Addendum, the terms of this Addendum shall control.

3. Except as specifically modified by this Addendum, all terms of the Franchise
Agreement are in full force and effect.

4, Subsection 2.2(d) and Subsection 9.2(b)(3) of the Franchise Agreement are hereby
modified by adding the following to the end thereof:

“The above-referenced general release shall not apply to any claims under
Minnesota Statutes, Sections 80C.01 to 80C.22.”.

: 5. Section 7.6 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby modified by adding the
following to the end thereof:

“Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
Mac Tools will protect your right to use the trademarks, service marks,
trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify you
from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand
regarding the use of the name.”.

6. Article 10 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby modified by adding the following
new Section 10.6 to the end thereof:

“Minnesota law "provides franchisees with certain termination and
nonrenewal rights. Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subd. 3, 4 and 5 require,
except in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days notice
of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days notice of nonrenewal
of the Franchise Agreement.”.

7. Section 19.2 and the second paragraph of Section 3.20 of the Franchise Agreement
are hereby modified by adding the following to the end thereof: :

“With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, Mac Tools may
seek injunctive relief, but Mac Tools may not require you to waive any



rights provided under Minn. Rule 2860.4400J. Furthermore, the
determination as to whether or not a bond will be required of Mac Tools in
seeking injunctive relief will be left to the determination of the court
hearing the petition for relief ”.

8. Section 19.1 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby modified by adding the
following to the end thereof:

“This Section 19.1 shall not in any way abrogate or reduce any of your rights as
provided for in Minnesota Statutes 1992, Chapter 80C, including the right to
submit matters to the jurisdiction of the courts of Minnesota.”

9. Section 19.2 and Section 19.3 of the Franchise Agreement are hereby modified by
adding the following to the end thereof:

“Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(])
prohibit Mac Tools from requiring litigation to be conducted outside
Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring you to consent to
liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition,
nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) provided
to you can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum,
or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.”.

1L 30—This Addendum, together with the Franchise Agreement to which it is
attached, contains the entire agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor. No amendment may be made
nor shall any amendment be valid except in a written agreement signed by both Franchisee and Franchisor.

[signature page follows])



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Addendum have fully executed and delivered
this Addendum to be effective as of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

FRANCHISEE:

Date: [if individual]

(Print name(s))

(sign here)

[if entity]

(Print name)

By:
Name Printed:
Title:

Address of Franchisee:

Agreed and accepted this day of , 20__, in Westerville, Ohio.

Date: MAC TOOLS DIVISION OF
STANLEY BLACK & DECKER, INC.

By:
Name Printed:
Title:

Address: 505 North Cleveland Avenue
Westerville, OH 43082

22412011 14124867 V 23



CERTIFICATION

I certify and swear under penalty of law that I have read and know the contents of this
application, including the Franchise Disclosure Document with an issuance date of

iﬁlﬂwﬁ&[] , 20 l{ attached as an exhibit, and that all material facts stated in all those
d

ocwnents are accurate and those documents do not contain any material omissions. [ further
certify that I am duly authorized to make this certification on behalf of the Franchisor and that I
do so upon my personal knowledge.

Signed at Westerville, Ohio, / L2011,

FranchisorMac Tools Division pf Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.

By:

rett A. Shaw

Title:  Vice President of Sales & Marketing

STATE OF OHIO )
) SS.
COUNTY OF DELAWARE )

Personally appeared before me this H day of £ {,7201 1, the above named Brett A.
Shaw to me known to be the person who executed the feregoing application as Vice President of
Sales & Marketing of the above-named applicant and, being first duly sworn, stated upon oath
that said application, and all exhibits submitted herewith, are true and correct.

““uuum,,”
FRIA

L‘l
) | e /) M@/ (ludyr
MyNotaNPubinStatesz?onn L (VAN

Conunission Expires 11-20-2013 Notary

(Notarlal Seal) My Commission Expires: / / W "«5? OQ

T1826160 V.2






FRANCHISOR’S COSTS AND SOURCE OF FUNDS

1. Disclose the Franchisor’s total costs for performing its pre-opening obligations to
provide goods or services in’ connection with establishing each franchised
business, including real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training and
other items stated in the offering:

Category Costs

Real Estate n/a
Improvements n/a
'Equipment n/a
Inventory ' | $26,700
Training : - . $2,500

Total  $29,200

2. State separately the sources of all required funds:

Sources of Required Funds:

Initial Franchise Fee........coooviiiiniiiiiiice s £3,000
Starter INVENTOTY ....c.ooiiiietieee e et eeies e see e eae e eeneenis $50,000
TOTAL .ottt eeee oottt e e e et e nte e et e eaee e nr e e raeer e b s e nererteen $53,000

"Funds from optional purchases, such as displays for truck and purchase of a truck from Mac Tools are omitted.
Costs to Mac Tools of optional purchases are also omitted.

871272011 11841684



UNIFORM FRANCHISE CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

The Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
(the “Franchisor™), irrevocably appoints the officers of the States designated below and their successors in those offices, its
attorney in those States for service of notice, process or pleading in an action or proceeding against it arising out of or in
connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the franchise laws of that State, and consents that an action or
proceeding against it may be commenced in a court of competent jurisdiction and proper venue within that State by service of
process upon this officer with the same effect as if the undersigned was organized or created under the laws of that State and
had lawfully been served with process in that State. We have checked below each state in which this application is or will be
shoitly on file, and provided a duplicate original bearing an original signature to each state.

California; Commissioner of North Dakota: Securities
X Corporations X Commissioner

Rhode Island: Director, Department
X Hawaii: Commissioner of Securities X of Business Regulation

South Dakota: Director of the
Illinois: Attorney General X Division of Securities

Virginia: Clerk, Virginia State

Indiana: Secretary of State

Maryland: Securities Commissioner

Minnesota: Commissioner of =~
Commerce

Corporation Commission

Washington: Director of Financial
Institutions

Wisconsin: Administrator, Division
of Securities, Department of
Financial Institutions

New York: Secretary of State
Please mail or send a copy of any notice, process or pleading served under this consent to:
Bruce H. Beatt, Esq.

Corporate Secretary
Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.

1000 Stanley Drive
/ (\lew Britain, CT 06053
Dated: S| | ‘ 2011 Franchisor: MAC TOOLS DIVISION OF
KEANLEY ZLAC DECKER, INC.
By: yi /H,
Bfett A. Shaw
Title:  Vice President of Sales & Marketing
STATE OF OHIO,
COUNTY OF DELAWARE, SS: ’Z
The foregoing instrument was signed and acknowle ed before me by Brett A. Shaw this L day o 201
iy,
SN /MW
gé? ,.”é"'.% Fhﬂikh ”-“-=-=-n\

11 20'2013 N/tary Puﬂ.’)lfd

i
EX =
%o o My commission expires: / / Z—Z) ,20 é

11240038 V.1



52 East Gay St.
PO Box 1008
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1008

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP
Legal Counsel 614.464.6400 | www.vorys.com

Founded 1909

Deanna R. Cook

Direct Dial (614) 464-6349
Direct Fax (614) 710-5135
Email dreook@vorys.com

August 16, 2011

YIA OVERNIGHT COURIER

Mr. Dan Sexton

Supervisor

Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7" Place East, Suite 500

St. Paul, MN 55101

Re:  Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. —
Initial Franchise Registration Application

Dear Mr. Sexton:

Enclosed is the Initial Franchise Registration Application of our client, the Mac Tools
Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., for the State of Minnesota, including the following:

1. A check made payable to the Minnesota Department of Commerce in the
amount of $400.00,
2. Uniform Franchise Registration Application including a signed and

notarized Certification Page;

3. Franchisor’s Costs and Sources of Funds;

4. A notarized Uniform Consent to Service of Process;
5. Franchise Seller Disclosure Fonn(s); and

6. A copy of the proposed Disclosure Document.

Our client expects to receive the Auditor’s Consent Letter within the next few weeks,
upon receipt of which 1 will promptly forward to you to supplement our client’s franchise
registration application. ‘

Columbus | Washington | Cleveland | Cincinnati | Akron | Houston



VORYS

Legal Coumnsel

Mr. Dan Sexton
August 16, 2011
Page 2

The fiscal year end for Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. is the Saturday closest to
December 31.

On behalf of the Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., I hereby provide
notice to you that the Uniform Resource Locator (URL) for the location of its Internet
advertising regarding its franchise offering, once it is placed at this location, will be
www.mactools.com and that the Internet advertising regarding the franchise offering at this URL
is not directed by the Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. or anyone acting with
its knowledge to any person in Minnesota.

Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. has no advertising directed at
potential franchisees in the State of Minnesota to disclose at this time.

The fiscal year end for Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. is the Saturday closest to
December 31st.

Please contact me if you have any comments or questions concerning this application.
Thank you in advance for your attention to this matter.

Very truly yours,
}Mw L. caW/
Deanna R. Cook

DRC/Imh
Enclosures
cc: Herbert A. Hedden, Esq. (via email, w/o encls.)

/152011 11345785 v .2



FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
Mac Tools,
A Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.,
A Connecticut Corporation
505 North Cleveland Avenue
Westerville, Ohio 43082
' (614) 755-7000

www.mactools.com

Brief Description of the Franchised Business: The franchisee will receive the right to operate a
business involving the mobile sale of professional automotive tools and stmilar products manufactured
and/or distributed by Mac Tools and bearing the MAC Tools® trademarks. The franchisee may also be
permitted to purchase and distribute certain other products sold by Mac Tools. The franchisee will be
assigned a route of assigned stops with approximately 325 potential customers of Mac Tools products.
The franchisee will regularly visit the stops with a truck equipped with displays of the tool inventory.
The stops will include automotive aftermarket businesses, service stations, independent garages, car and
truck dealerships, and non-automotive businesses such as cycle shops, lawn mower shops, airports,
marinas, machine shops, factories, farm implement dealers or repairers, commercial agricultural
businesses and other commercial users of tools and shop equipment. The customers at the stops are
professional mechanics and others who will use the products in business. The franchise is granted for an
initial term of 5 years with the right, upon compliance with certain conditions, to renew for two additional
successive 5 year renewal terms.

n The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Mac Tools franchise ranges from $89,340
to $209,225. This includes the $55,450 to $56,185 that must be paid to Mac Tools. The
estimated initial investment for a Mac Tools distributor converting to a Mac Tools franchisee
ranges from $0 to $3,950. This includes the 30 to $2,450 that must be paid to Mac Tools. The
estimated initial investment for a franchisee or distributor of another mobile tool distribution
system converting to a Mac Tools franchisee ranges from $76,400 to $206,435. This includes the
$55,450 to 356,185 that must be paid to Mac Tools.

(2) This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with
the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the
information contained in this document.

3) The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your
contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant, '

4) Buying a franchise is a compléx investment. The information in this disclosure document can
help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to



()
(6)

‘Buying a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is

available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at [-877-FTC-HELP or
by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20580. You can
also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency
or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

[ssuance Date: August 11, 2011.



STATE COVER PAGE

Your state may have a franchise law that requires a franchisor to register or file with a state franchise
administrator before offering or selling in your state. REGISTRATION OF A FRANCHISE BY A
STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE STATE RECOMMENDS THE FRANCHISE OR HAS
VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Call the state franchise administrator listed in Exhibit T for information about the franchisor or about
franchising in your state.

MANY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS DO NOT ALLOW YOU TO RENEW UNCONDITIONALLY
AFTER THE INITIAL TERM EXPIRES. YOU MAY HAVE TO SIGN A NEW AGREEMENT WITH
DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ORDER TO CONTINUE TO OPERATE YOUR
BUSINESS. BEFORE YOU BUY, CONSIDER WHAT RIGHTS YOU HAVE TO RENEW YOUR
FRANCHISE, IF ANY, AND WHAT TERMS YOU MIGHT HAVE TO ACCEPT IN ORDER TO
RENEW.

Please consider the following RISK FACTORS before you buy this franchise:

THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRES YOU TO RESOLVE DISPUTES WITH US BY
ARBITRATION ONLY IN NEW YORK, UNLESS THE LOCATION IS OTHERWISE AGREED TO
BY BOTH PARTIES. OUT-OF-STATE ARBITRATION MAY FORCE YOU TO ACCEPT A LESS
FAVORABLE SETTLEMENT FOR DISPUTES. IT MAY ALSO COST YOU MORE TO
ARBITRATE WITH US IN NEW YORK THAN IN YOUR HOME STATE.

THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRES YOU TO RESOLVE DISPUTES WITH US THAT
PROCEED TO LITIGATION BY LITIGATION ONLY IN OHIO. OUT-OF-STATE LITIGATION
MAY FORCE YOU TO ACCEPT A LESS FAVORABLE SETTLEMENT FOR DISPUTES. IT MAY
ALSO COST YOU MORE TO LITIGATE WITH US IN OHIO THAN IN YOUR HOME STATE.

THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT STATES THAT OHIO LAW GOVERNS THE AGREEMENT, AND
THIS LAW MAY NOT PROVIDE THE SAME PROTECTIONS AND BENEFITS AS LOCAL LAW.
YOU MAY WANT TO COMPARE THESE LAWS.

THERE MAY BE OTHER RISKS CONCERNING THIS FRANCHISE,

Effective Date: See the next page for State Effective Dates.



STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with
the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan,
Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the
following states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective dates:

California On file and pending
Hawaii On file and pending
Indiana On file and pending
Maryland On file and pending
Michigan On file and pending
Minnesota On file and pending
North Dakota On file and pending
Rhode Island On file and pending
South Dakota On file and pending
Virginia On file and pending
Washington On file and pending
Wisconsin On file and pending
llinois Exempt from Registration
New York- Exempt from Registration



DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

(a2} A prohibition on the right ofia franchisee to)join an association ofifranchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives a franchisee ofi rights and protections provided in this' Act.” This shall not preclude a franchisee,
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

() A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchisee prior to the expiration ofiits term
except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure ofithe franchisee to comply with any lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereofiand a
reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such a failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time ofiexpiration ofithe franchisee's
inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to the
franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings not reasonably required in the
conduct ofithe franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only ift (i} The
term ofithe franchise is less than five years; and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other
agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service
mark, trade name, logotype, advertising or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration ofi the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice ofi the
franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available
to other franchisees ofi the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a
renewal provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not
preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time ofiarbitration, to conduct arbitration at a
location outside this state.

(2) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer ofi ovmership ofia franchise,
except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal
to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's
then current reasonable gualifications or standards;

(ii} The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the
franchisor or subfranchisor.

(iii) The unwillingness ofi the proposed transferee to agree in
writing to comply with all lawful obligations.



(iv) The failure ofi the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any
sums owing to the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise
agreement existing at the time ofithe proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a
right of first refusal to purchase the assets ofia franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide
third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that
grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value ofisuch
assets ifithe franchisee has breached the lawful provisions ofithe franchise agreement and has failed to cure
the breach in a manner provided in subdivision (c).

() A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise
transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for
providing the required contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

The Michigan Franchise Investment Law also provides:

A franchisor whose most recent financial statements are unaudited and which show a net worth of
less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) shall, at the request of a franchisee, arrange for the
escrow ofi initial investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations to provide real
gstate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are
fulfilled. At the option ofithe franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in the place ofiescrow.

The escrow agent shall be a financial institution authorized to do business in the State ofi Michigan.
The escrow agent may release to the franchisor that amount ofi the escrowed funds applicable to a specific
franchisee upon presentation ofi an' affidavit executed by the franchisee and an affidavit executed by the
franchisor stating that the franchisor has fulfilled its obligation to provide real estate, improvements,
equipment, inventory, training or other items. This sub-section does not prohibit a partial release ofi
escrowed funds upon receipt of affidavits ofi partial fulfillment ofithe franchisor's obligation.

Franchisees should direct any questions concerning this offering to:

Suzanne Hassan

Assistant Attorney General

Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Unit
525 W, Ottawa Street

G. Mennen Williams Building, First Floor
Lansing, MI 48933

(517)373-7117
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ITEM 1. THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND
AFFILIATES

Mac Tools, a Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.

The name of the franchisor is Mac Tools, a Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., which is
referred to in this disclosure document as “Mac Tools,” the “Mac Tools Division”, *“we” or “us”. Stanley
Black & Decker, Inc., a Connecticut corporation, was formed on June 4, 1901. “You” means the person
who buys the Mac Tools franchise. A business commenced under the MAC Tools® name is referred to in
this disclosure document as a “Mac Tools Business.” If you elect to acquire a Mac Tools franchise
through a corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other business entity, the word “you” also
includes the shareholders, members, partners or other owners of that business entity. The Mac Tools
Division has its principal business offices located at 505 North Cleveland Avenue, Westerville, Ohio
43082. Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. has its principal business offices located at 1000 Stanley Drive,

New Britain, Connecticut 06053. Our agents for service of process are listed in Exhibit U.

Predecessors

Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. changed its name from The Stanley Works on March 12, 2010 upon
its acquisition of The Black & Decker Corporation on the same date. The Black & Decker Corporation is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.

There are no predecessors or affiliates to be disclosed in this disclosure document.

Description of the Mac Tools Division’s Business

Mac Tools has manufactured products and offered distributorships for the mobile distribution of
professional hand tools and equipment to professional mechanics for over 70 years. Until March 2007,
Mac Tools offered its traditional tool distributorship in all states. The traditional Mac Tools
distributorship is not a franchise, in that no franchise fee is required to be paid to Mac Tools. In March
2007, Mac Tools began offering franchises for Mac Tools Businesses within Kentucky, while continuing
to offer its traditional distributorship in other states. In November 2011, Mac Tools began offering
franchises for its Mac Tool Businesses in all states and ceased offering new non-franchised traditional
distributorships. While Mac Tools no longer offers its traditional tool distributorship, niany existing
distributors continue in operation.

Description of the Mac Tools Franchise

You will conduct a Mac Tools Business by operating a truck or van (referred to in this disclosure
document as the “truck™) equipped with displays of the tool inventory on a route of assigned stops with
approximately 325 potential customers of the products. The stops will involve automotive aftermarket
businesses, service stations, independent garages, car and truck dealerships, and non-automotive
businesses such as cycle shops; lawn mower shops, airports, marinas, machine shops, factories, farm
implement dealers or repairers, commercial agricultural businesses and other commercial users of tools
and shop equipment. The customers at the stops are professional mechanics and others who will use the
products in business. The franchise is granted for an initial term of 5 years, with the right, upon
demonstrating compliance with certain conditions, to renew for two additional successive 5 year renewal
terms. The products to be sold include products and equipment manufactured by Mac Tools or its
affiliate(s) for sale under the MAC Tools® name and trademarks (the “Manufactured Products™) and
products manufactured by others and distributed by Mac Tools (the “Distributed Products™). The
Manufactured Products and the Distributed Products are collectively referred to in this disclosure
document as the “Products.” Mac Tools may periodically provide a franchisee with the opportunity to



purchasé’ and distribute certain products sold under other brands owned by Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.
(the “SBD Products™).

You and your employees, if any, may only sell the Products, the SBD Products, items that are
traded-in by your customers, and other products and merchandise to ensure the satisfaction of your
customers if you are unable to obtain such other products and/or merchandise from Mac Tools within the
required time period.

You will be required to operate your Mac Tools Business in accordance with the Mac Tools
Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement™) and our standards and specifications. The Franchise
Agreement is attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit B. You will also be required to execute
with us the Mac Tools Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) and the Mac Tools Security
Agreement (the “Security Agreement”) (see Exhibit E and Exhibit F).

Franchisees that we authorize to distribute the Products and the SBD Products to certain
governmental agencies, governmental corporations and governmental contractors will also be required to
execute the Mac Tools Government Franchise Agreement (attached as Exhibit N).

A franchiseé who executes the Franchise Agreement as an individual and whgo is married may be
asked to arrange for his or her spouse to execute the personal guaranty of the franchisee’s indebtedness to
Mac Tools (Exhibit J) if the spouse’s income and/or assets were considered among the qualifications in
the application process to become a Mac Tools franchisee. A third party, including a family member or
spouse, may be required to execute an Investor Guarantor Acknowledgment (see Exhibit R) if any of the
following apply: (a) the third party’s income and assets are considered among the qualifications in the
franchisee candidate’s application to become a Mac Tools franchisee; (b) the third party agrees to invest
money or other resources in the franchisee candidate’s Mac ToQIsnD Business; or (c) the third party signs
an individual guaranty to Mac Tools of the obligations of the franchisee candidate’s Mac Tools®
Business.

A franchisee who decides to form a corporation, limited liability company or other business entity
(“Entity™) to operate his or her Mac Tools Business must execute a personal guaranty of the Entity’s
obligations to Mac Tools (Exhibit i) and must complete certain additional documents (Exhibit G and
Exhibit H). Each owner of the Entity franchisee, including an owner who is the spouse of the individual
who is the principal operator of the Mac Tools Business, must execute a personal guaranty of the Entity’s
obligations to Mac Tools (Exhibit I), The Entity must be owned and controlled (control to be determined
by ownership of at least 51% or more of the ownership interests in the Entity) by the natural person who
will direct the Mac Tools Business. If a franchisee decides to form an entity to operate the Mac Tools
Business, certain conforming modifications may be made to refiect this in the forms of the agreements
attached as Exhibits.

Prior Business Experience of the Mac Tools Division

Mac Tools has manufactured products and offered distributorships for the mobile distribution of
professional hand tools and equipment to professional mechanics for over 70 years. In 1980, The Stanley
Works (now known as Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.) acquired Mac Tools, Inc., which became a division
of The Stanley Works. Since 1980, the Mac Tools Division has continued to grant Mac Tools
distributorships for the mobile sale of professional automotive tools and similar products, Mac Tools
distributorships are not franchises, because no franchise fee was paid by the distributor to us. The Mac
Tools Division began offering franchises for routes located within the State of Kentucky on March 31,
2007 for Mac Tools businesses of the same type as that to be operated by you. The Mac Tools Division
and its predecessors have operated Mac Tools mobile tool distributorship businesses of the same type as
that to be operated by you for over 60 years. Commencing in November 2011, Mac Tools began offering
franchises for its Mac Tools Businesses in all states and ceased offering new non-franchised
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distributorships. Mac Tools has never offered franchises in any other line of business. Mac Tools is not
engaged in other business activities. Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. has never offered franchises in any
line of business. A corporate affiliate of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., Mac Tools Canada Inc., offers
Mac Tools distributorships in Canada that are regulated as franchises under the laws of several provinces.
Another subsidiary of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., Stanley Convergent Security Solutions, Inc. is the
franchisor of the Sonitrol franchise system of businesses offering the sale and servicing of electronic
security products.

Market and Competition

The market for the sale of professional automotive tools and similar products is well developed.
The sale of tools is a year-round business with little seasonality. If you become a Mac Tools franchisee,
you must compete with franchisees and distributors of other established companies offering professional
tools, many of which may have been in business for a significant period of time, as well as retail stores
selling the same and/or similar products. You should consult the classified telephone diréctory under
“Tool Distributors”, “Tool Dealers”, and “Tools - Manufacturing” to determine the number of
competitors in the area.

Laws or Regulations Applicable to the Mac Tools Business

A Mac Tools Business is subject to numerous laws and governmental regulations that apply to
businesses generally. Before you purchase a Mac Tools franchise, we suggest that you check on the
existence and the requirements of such laws and regulations in your area.

ITEM 2, BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

STANLEY BLACK & DECKER, INC.

Board of Directors

Executive Chairman: Nolan D, Archibald

Mr. Archibald has served as Executive Chairman of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain,
Connecticut since March 2010. He served as President and Chief Executive Officer of The Black &-
Decker Corporation in Towson, Maryland, from March 1987 to March 2010 and as its Chairman of the
Board from December 1986 to March 2010.

Director: John G. Breen

Mr. Breen has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. {formerly known as The
Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since July 2000 and was elected Lead Director of the Board
on March 12, 2010,

Director: George W. Buckley

Mr. Buckley has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain,
Connecticut since March 2010. He served as a Director of The Black & Decker Corporation in Towson,
Maryland from April 2006 to March 2010. He has held the position of Chairman, President, and Chief
Executive Officer of 3M Company in St. Paul, Minnesota since December 2005.

Director: Anthony Luiso

Mr. Luiso has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut
since May 2010. He served as a director of The Black & Decker Corporation in Towson, Maryland from
1988 unfil March 2010.



Director: Patrick D. Campbell

Mr. Campbell has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The
Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since October 2008. Mr. Campbell has held the position of
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of 3M Company in St. Paul, Minnesota since February
2002.

Director: Carlos M. Cardoso

Mr. Cardoso has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The
Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since October 2007. In addition to his duties as President
and Chief Executive Officer of Kennametal, Inc., located in Latrobe, Pennsylvania, positions held since
January 2006, as of January 2008, Mr. Cardoso was elected Chairman of the Board of Kennametal, Inc.

Director: Virgis W. Colbert

Mr. Colbert has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The
Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since July 2003, Mr. Colbert retired in December 2005 as
Executive Vice President, Miller Brewing Company located in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, a position he held
since July 1997. Mr. Colbert has continued to serve as a Senior Advisor to Miller Coors since his
retirement in December 2005.

Director: Robert B. Coutts

Mr. Coutts has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The
Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since July 2007. From June 2002, Mr. Coutts, who retired
April 2008, served as Executive Vice President of the Lockheed Martin Corporation located in Bethesda,
Maryland.

Director: Manuel A, Fernandez

Mr. Fernandez has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain,
Connecticut since March 2010. He served as a Director of The Black & Decker Corporation in Towson,
Maryland from February 1999 to March 2010. Since 1998, he has been the managing director of SI
Ventures, a venture capital firm located in Fort Myers, Florida.

Dyirector: Benjamin H. Griswold, IV

Mr. Griswold has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain,
Connecticut since March 2010. He served as a Director of The Black & Decker Corporation in Towson,
Maryland from July 2001 to March 2010. He has held the position of Chairman with Brown Advisory, an
asset management and strategic advisory firm in Bahimore, Maryland since March 2005.

Director: Eileen S. Kraus

Ms. Kraus has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The
Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since QOctober 1993,

Director: John F. Lundgren

Mr. Lundgren has served as a Director and as Chief Executive Officer of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2004, He
has held the position of President, Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut, since March
2010, and he held the position of Chairman of The Stanley Works from March 2004 to March 2010.



Director: Marianne M. Parrs

Ms. Parrs has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc, (formerly known as The
Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since April 2008. Ms. Parrs, who retired December 2007,
served as Executive Vice President from 1999 to December 2007, and as Chief Financial Officer from
November 2005 to December 2007, of International Paper Company, located in Memphis, Tennessee.

Director: Robert L. Rvan

Mr. Ryan has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut
since March 2010. He served as a Director of The Black & Decker Corporation in Towson, Maryland
from October 2005 to March 2010.

Director: Lawrence A. Zimmerman

Mr. Zimmerman has served as a Director of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as
The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since July 2005. Mr. Zimmerman is currently Vice
Chairman of Xerox Corporation, located in Norwalk, Connecticut, a position he has held since June 2002,
He held the position of Chief Financial Officer, Xerox Corporation from June 2002 until his retirement in
February 2011.

Officers:
President and Chief Executive Officer: John F. Lundgren

Mr. Lundgren has served as a Director and as Chief Executive Ofticer of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2004, He
has held the position of President, Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut, since March
2010, and he held the position of Chairman of The Stanley Works from March 2004 to March 2010.

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer: Donald Allan, Jr.

Mr. Allan has served as Senior Vice President of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known
as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2010 and as Chief Financial Ofticer
since January 2009. He served as Vice President of The Stanley Works in New Britain, Connecticut from
August 2002 until March 2010. He served as Corporate Controller of The Stanley Works in New Britain,
Connecticut from September 2000 to December 2008. '

Senior Vice President & Group Executive, Construction and DIY: Jeffrev D. Ansell

Mr. Ansell has served as Senior Vice President & Group Executive, Construction and DIY of
Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2010. He served as Vice
President of The Stanley Works (now known as Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.} in New Britain,
Connecticut from February 2006 to March 2010 and as President, Consumer Tools Group from June 2004
to March 2010.

Vice President, Corporate Tax: Michael A. Bartone

Mr. Bartone has served as Vice President, Corporate Tax of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.
(formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since January 2002.

Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secrétarv: Bruce H. Beatt

Mr. Beatt has .served as Senior Vice President of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain,
Connecticut since March 2010. He has served as General Counsel and Secretary of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut since October 2000. He held the position of Vice President of



The Stanley Works (now known as Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.), located in New Britain, Connecticuit,
from October 2000 to March 2010.

Chief Accounting Officer: Jocelyn S. Belisle

Ms. Belisle has served as Chief Accounting Officer of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly
known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since July 2009. Prior to joining The Stanley
Works, she held the position of Chief Accounting Officer and Director of Tax of Cello Tissue Holdings,
Inc. from July 2004 to July 2009.

Senior Vice President & Group Executive, Security Solutions: D, Brett Bontrager

Mr. Bontrager has served as Senior Vice President & Group Executive, Security Solutions of
Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut since February 2011. From March 2010 to
February 2011 he served as Senior Vice President & Group Executive, Convergent Security Solutions of
Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut. He served as Vice President, Coiporate
Business Development of The Stanley Works (now known as Stanley Black & Decker,-Inc.) in New
Britain, Connecticut from April 2004 to March 2010 and as President, Convergent Security- Solutions,
located in Noblesville, Indiana, from January 2007 to March 2010.

Senior Staff Executive: Justin C. Boswell

Since April 2011, Mr. Boswell has served as Senior Staff Executive of Stanley Black & Decker,
Inc., and from March 2010 to April 2011, he served as Senior Vice President and Group Executive,
Mechanical Security of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., both positions located in New Britain, Connecticut.
Mr. Boswell served as Vice President of The Stanley Works (now known as Stanley Black & Decker,
Inc.) in New Britain, Connecticut from July 2005 to March 2010 and as President, Mechanical Access
Solutions from January 2007 to March 2010.

Vice President, Corporate Controller: Kristina Cerniglia

Ms. Cerniglia has served as Vice President, Corporate Controller of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.
in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2011. She served as Corporate Controller of Stanley Black &
Decker, In¢, from December 2008 to March 2011 and as Assistant Controller of The Stanley Works,
located in New Britain, Connecticut, from July 2006 to December 2008.

Vice President and President, Asia: Jeff Hung-Tse Chen

Mr. Chen has served as Vice President of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The
Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut and as President, Asia in Bangpakong, Thailand since June
2006. From April 2005 to November 2006, he held the position of Vice President, Global Operations,
The Stanley Works, located in Bangpakong, Thailand.

Senior Vice President & Chief Information Officer/SFS: Hubert W. Davis, Jr.

Mr. Davis has served as Senior Vice President of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc, (formerly known
as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since November 2006 and as Chief Information
Officer/SFS since March 2010. He served as Chief Information Officer of The Stanley Works in New
Britain, Connecticut from November 2006 to March 2010. From June 2000 to November 2006, he served
as Vice President, Chief Information Officer of The Stanley Works in New Britain, Connecticut.

Assistant Secretary: John D. DelPonti

Mr. DelPonti has served as Assistant Secretary of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain,
Connecticut since April 2010. He has served as General Patent Counsel of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.



since March 2010. He served as General Patent Counsel of The Black & Decker Corporation, located in
Towson, Maryland, from 1989 to March 2010.

Vice President and Treasurer: Craig A. Douglas

Mr. Douglas has served as Vice President and Treasurer of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.
(formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since April 2002. He has served as
Treasurer of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut since January 1998,

Assistant Treasurer: Catherine S. Ennis

" Ms. Ennis has served as Assistant Treasurer of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as
The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since September 2008 and previously held the positions
of Director of Financial Shared Services from May 2008 to September 2008, and North American
Controller from June 2005 to May 2008.

President, Industrial & Automotive Repair: Massimo Grassi

Mr. Grassi has served as President, Industrial & Automotive Repair of Stanley Black & Decker,
Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since January 2010, He has
also served as President, Industrial & Automotive Tools, Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in Diegem,
Belgium since July 2009 and has held the positions of President, Stanley Europe in Mechelen, Belgium
and President Directeur General, Facom of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in Morangis, France since July
2007. Prior to joining The Stanley Works, Mr. Grassi served as President of Pentair Water EMEA
(Pentair Inc. — PNR) located in Milan, Italy from October 2003 to June 2006.

Assistant Secretary and Vice President Legal Europe: Corinne M. Herzog

Ms. Herzog has served as Assistant Secretary of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known
as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since April 2006 and also has served as Vice
President Legal Europe, located in Diegem, Belgium since October 2004.

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer: James M. Loree

- Mr. Loree has held the position of Executive Vice President since September 2002 and as Chief
Operating Officer since January 2009 of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley
Works) .in New Britain, Connecticut. He held the position of Chief Financial Officer of The Stanley
Works in New Britain, Connecticut from July 1999 to January 2009, -

Senior Vice President, Human Resources: Mark J. Mathieu

Mr, Mathieu has served as Senior Vice President, Human Resources of Stanley Black & Decker,
Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut from March 2010. Mr. Mathieu served as Vice President, Human
Resources of The Stanley Works (now known as Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.) in New Britain,
Connecticut from September 1997 to March 2010.

Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary: Theodore C. Morris

Mr. Morris has served as Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since January 2004,

President Construction & DIY, Latin America: Jaime A. Ramirez

Mr. Ramirez has served as President Construction & DIY, Latin America of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2010. He served as President-Latin America in the
Power Tools and Accessories business of The Black & Decker Corporation, located in Towson,



Marylahd, from September 2008 to March 2010, Vice President and General Manager from May 2007 to
September 2008, and as Vice President and General Manager — Andean Region from July 2000 to May
2007.

Corporate Counsel and Assistant Secretary: Donald J. Riccitelli

Mr, Riccitelli has served as Corporate Counsel and Assistant Secretary of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since January 2006,

Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary: Kathryn P, Sherer

Ms. Sherer has served as Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecficut since January 2004.

President, Emerging Markets and Pacific Group: Ben S..Sihota

Mr. Sihota has served as President, Emerging Markets and Pacific Group of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2010. He served as President-Asia/Pacific of the
Power Tools and Accessories business of The Black & Decker Corporation, located in Towson,
Maryland, from February 2006 to March 2010.

President, Professional Power Tools & Products: William S, Tavlor

Mr, Taylor has served as President, Professional Power Tools & Products of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2010, "He served as Vice President-Global Product
Development of the Industrial Products Group of The Black & Decker Corporation, located in Towson,
Maryland, from January 2009 to March 2010 and as Vice President-Industrial Product Group
Development, The Black & Decker Corporation, located in Towson, Maryland, from July 2008 to January
2009. Mr. Taylor served as Vice President-Industrial Products Group Product Development from April
2008 to July 2008, as Vice President/General Manager Industrial Accessories Business from June 2005 to
April 2008, both with The Black & Decker Corporation in Towson, Maryland.

President, Engineered Fastening: Michael A. Tyll

Mr. Tyll has served as President, Engineered Fastening of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in New
Britain, Connecticut since March 2010. He served as President, Fastening and Assembly Systems of The
Black & Decker Corporation, located in Towson, Maryland, from April 2006 to March 2010.

President, Construction & DIY EMEA: John H. Wyatt

Mr. Wyatt has served as President, Construcfion & DIY EMEA of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc,
in New Britain, Connecticut since March 2010. He served as President-Europe, Middle East, and Africa
of the Power Tools and Accessories business of The Black & Decker Corporation, located in Towson,
Maryland, from May 2008 to March 2010 and as Vice President-Consumer Products (Europe, Middle
East and Africa), The Black & Decker Corporation, located in Towson, Maryland from October 2006 to
September 2008, He also served as Managing Director Scotts UK and Iceland for Scotts Miracle Gro in
Marysville, Ohio, from January 2002 to October 2006. '

Vice President, Internal Audit: Gregory S, Wavybright

Mr. Waybright has served as Vice President, Internal Audit of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.
(formerly known as The Stanley Works) in New Britain, Connecticut since August 2003. He held the
position of Interim Vice President, Investor Relations for The Stanley Works from April 2008 until
October 2008.



Mac Tools Division

Business Controfler, Industrial and Automotive Repair, North America: Patricia Pieper

Ms. Pieper has served as Business Controller of Industrial and Automotive Repair, North
America in Westerville, Ohio since March 2009. She served as Chief Financial Officer, Mac Tools
Division of The Stanley Works (now known as Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.) in Westerville, Ohio from
January 2007 to March 2009, and Chief Financial Officer, Hydraulic Tools Division of The Stanley
Works in Milwaukie, Oregon from July 2004 to December 2006.

Vice President, Sales and Marketing, Mac Tools Division: Brett Shaw

Since May 2010, Mr. Shaw has served as Vice President, Sales and Marketing of the Mac Tools
Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in Westerville, Ohio, with reporting responsibility for all Sales,
Promotions, Distribution, Recruiting, Training and Customer Service associates. Mr. Shaw served as
Vice President of Field Sales, Independent Channel for The Black & Decker Corporation in Towson,
‘Maryland from July 2008 to May 2010. From January 2006 to June 2008, Mr. Shaw served as Director
of National Accounts, Independent Channel for The Black & Decker Corporation in Towson, Maryland.

Director of Sales, Mac Tools Division: Michael A. Brubaker

Mr. Brubaker has served as Director of Sales of the Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. in Westerville, Ohio, since March 2010. Previously he held the position of Director,
Distributor Services from March 2009 to March 2010 and Director, Distributor Development, Mac Tools
Division, in Westerville, Ohio, from July 2005 to March 2009.

Director of Sales, Mac Tools Division: Louis J. Calabrese

Mr. Calabrese has been the Director of Sales of the Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley Works) in Westerville, Ohio since November 2008.
Mr. Calabrese was a Regional Manager for the Mac Tools Division of The Stanley Works in Westerville,
Chio from January 2006 to November 2008.

Human Resources Manager, Mac Tools Division: Jayson A. Slabach

Since April 2010, Mr. Slabach has served as the Human Resources Manager for the Mac Tools
Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. in Westerville, Ohio. From October 2006 to April 2010 Mr.
Slabach served as the Human Resources Manager for GE Lighting’s Bucyrus Lamp Plant, located in
Bucyrus, Ohio, and GE Lighting’s Logan Glass Plant, located in Logan, Ohio. From February 2006 to
October 2006 Mr. Slabach served as a Production Supervisor for GE nghtmg s Circleville Lamp Plant in
Circleville, Ohio.

Director, Human Resources, Industrial and Automotive Repair, North America: Anthony Buffum

Since December 2009, Mr. Buffum has served as Director of Human Resources for Industrial and
Automotive Repair, North America for Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley
Works), in Westerville, Ohio, with direct responsibility for the Mac Tools Division as well as the Vidmar,
Proto Tools and Stanley Supply Services businesses. Mr. Buffum served as Director of Human
Resources for Industrial and Automotive Supply for The Stanley Works in Westerville, Ohio from March
2009 to December 2009. From January 2008 to March 2009, Mr. Buffum served as Human Resources
Manager for the Stanley Engineered Storage Solutions (ESS) Division of The Stanley Works, based at the
Stanley Vidmar Plant in Allentown, Pennsylvania. From October 2006 to December 2007 he worked as
the Organization and Staffing Manager for GE Lighting Manufacturing, North America and Plant Human
Resources Manager in Goldsboro, North Carolina. From May 2004 to September 2006, Mr. Buffum
worked for General Electric as an HR Generalist in their Human Resources Leadership Program in
Bridgeville, Pennsylvania, Bloomington, Illinois and Billerica, Massachusetts. From October 2006 to

9



December 2007, he worked as the Organization and Staffing Manager for GE Lighting Manufacturing,
North America and Plant Human Resources Manager in Goldsboro, North Carolina,

President, Industrial and Automotive Repair, North America: James J. Cannon

Mr. Cannon was appointed President of Industrial and Automotive Repair, North America,
located in Westerville, Ohio in January 2010. He served as President, Industrial Automotive Supply, in
Columbus, Ohio, from February 2009 to January 2010, He served as President and General Manager of
Stanley Engineered Storage Solutions, in Allentown, Pennsylvania from July 2007 until February 2009,
and General Manager of Stanley Vidmar Storage Technologies, in Allentown, Pennsylvania, from
October 2005 to July 2007, :

ITEM 3. LITIGATION

Certain Pending Actions

Ceballo v. Mac Tools, et al,, {Case No. MID-L-479011), Superior Court of New Jersey Law Division
Middlesex County. On June 29, 2011, Elba Maria Ceballo (*Ceballo™), the wife of former Mac Tools
distributor Andy Diaz tiled suit against Mac Tools, Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., and a former employee
of Mac Tools (collectively, “Mac Tools™), alleging that Mac Tools intentionally, recklessly or negligently
misrepresented or omitted material facts to fraudulently induce Ceballo into investing money so that her
husband could enter a distributor agreement, and violated the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act. Ceballo
sought damages for loss of investment capital, loss of income allegedly projected by Mac Tools, loss of
assets sold or encumbered to raise money paid, loss incurred in order to obtain and maintain the
distributorship, loss of savings, severe emotional distress, and loss of credit standing, Ceballo also sought
interest on all losses, treble damages, punitive damages, attorney’s fees, costs and disbursements. This
matter is pending. ' -

McNeil v. The Stanley Works, (Action No. 9803-00921), Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta, Judicial
District of Edmonton. On January 16,. 1998, Phil McNeil (“McNeil™), a former Mac Tools distributor
located in Canada, tiled a Statement of Claim against Stanley Canada Inc. (“Stanley Canada™), alleging
that Stanley Canada breached its contract with McNeil, and breached a statutory duty of fair dealing
under the Alberta Franchises Act. McNeil sought special and general damages of $250,000 (Canadian
dollars), interest, and costs. Stanley Canada obtained an Order from a Master in the Alberta Court of
Queen’s Bench on April 3, 1998, staying the court proceeding pending further order of the Court and
remitting the dispute in the Statement of Claim to arbitration in accordance with the Credit Assignment
Agreement between McNeil and Stanley Canada. Stanley Canada delivered to McNeil a Notice to
Negotiate in 1999 and a Notice to Arbitrate dated February 29, 2000. The Notice to Arbitrate included a
counterclaim by Mac Tools against McNeil for approximately $34,000 due from McNeil with respect to
unpaid amounts for tool purchases, plus interest, and $50,000 for breach of the Distributorship Agreement
by McNeil. The parties mediated the case, without resolution, in December 2000. Stanley Canada
obtained an Order from the Ontario Court of Justice dated September 23, 2002 appointing an arbitrator to
arbitrate the dispute between the parties. The matter was never arbitrated on its merits. Stanley Canada
withdrew its Notice of Arbitration by letter to McNeil dated May 20, 2005. No further action has been
taken by McNeil to pursue the Statement of Claim since that time, though the matter has not been
discontinued. ‘

Certain Concluded Civil Actions

Aisenbrey, et al. v. Mac Tools. Inc., et al., (Civil Action No. H-97-1953), United States District Court for
the Southern District of Texas. On May 16, 1997, John Aisenbrey and Andrew Lively (collectively,
“Aisenbrey and Lively”), former Mac Tools distributors located in Texas, tiled suit against Mac Tools
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and Stanley, alleging that Mac Tools and Stanley made fraudulent material misrepresentations of fact to
induce Aisenbrey and Lively to enter into distributor agreements with Mac Tools and that certain actions
of Mac Tools and Stanley violated the Texas Decepfive Trade Practices-Consumer Protection Act (the
“Texas Act”). Aisenbrey and Lively in the action sought actual damages in an unstated amount, treble
damages for alleged violations of the Texas Act, attorney’s fees, pre and post-judgment interest, and court
costs. On March 17, 1998 the Court entered an order granting Mac Tools’ and Stanley’s motion to stay
the court proceedings pending arbitration in accordance with the terms of the distribution agreements
signed by Mr. Aisenbrey and Mr. Lively. On November 15, 2001, Mac Tools and Mr. Aisenbrey entered
into a Settlement, General Release and Indemnification Agreement (the “Ajsenbrey Agreement”). Under
the terms of the Aisenbrey Agreement, Mac Tools agreed to pay Mr. Aisenbrey $2,500 and to rélease and
discharge him from any amount owed.-to Mac Tools. Mac Tools was given the right to any credit or
reserve balance created or established by Mac Tools in favor of Mr. Aisenbrey, and Mac Tools retained
the right to collect any money owed to Mr. Aisenbrey by his customers for tool purchases. Mac Tools
and Mr. Lively agreed to enter into a Settlement, General Release and Indemnificafion Agreement (the
.“Lively Agreement”). Under the terms of the Lively Agreement, Mac Tools agreed to pay Mr, Lively
$2,500 and to release and discharge himi from any amount owed to Mac Tools. Mac Tools was given the
right to any credit or reserve balance created or established by Mac Tools in favor of Mr. Lively and Mac
Tools retained the right to collect any money owed to Mr. Lively by his customers for tool purchases.

Alexander, et al. v, The Stanley Works, et al., (Case No. 6:06-cv-0045 HL), United States District Court
for the ‘Middle District of Georgia, Albany Division. On June 29, 2006, Jeramy D. Alexander, a Mac
Tools distributor located in Georgia, and his spouse, Jennifer Alexander (collectively, the “Alexanders™),
filed suit against Stanley and American Express Co., alleging that Stanley and American Express Co.,
through its subsidiary American Express Business Finance Corporation, the assignee of Stanley of certain
obligations of the Alexanders, made false and fraudulent misrepresentations and negligent
misrepresentations, committed legal or constructive fraud to induce the Alexanders to enter into
distributor agreements with Stanley, breached an alleged fiduciary duty to the Alexanders, converted
funds of the Alexanders, was unjustly enriched, breached its contract with the Alexanders, and tortiously
interfered with the Alexanders’ business relations. The Alexanders in the acfion sought declaratory relief
regarding the mandatory alternative dispute resolution clauses of the distribution agreement, a refund of
monies for sales of tools to the Alexanders, disgorgement of profits for alleged unlawful schemes, unjust
enrichment, an accounting, punitive damages, compensatory damages in an amount exceeding $75,000
for each of the Alexanders, pre-judgment interest, attorney’s fees and costs. In October 2006, the parties
agreed to 'mediate the case and further agreed that if the mediation were not successful, the Court could
dismiss Mrs. Alexander’s claims without prejudice and order Mr. Alexander’s claims to binding
arbitration, which the Court did in an order entered on March 12, 2007. As of the date of this disclosure
document, the Alexanders have not initiated an arbitration proceeding.

Heard v. Mac Tools Corporation, et al., (Case No. 02-08014-NM), United States District Court for the
Central District of Califoernia. On October 16, 2002 Brent Heard (*Heard™), a former Mac Tools
distributor, filed suit against Mac Tools, alleging that Mac Tools breached its contract with Heard,
breached the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, breached an alleged fiduciary duty to Heard,
intentionally interfered with economic advantage, intentionally infiicted emotional distress, negligently
inflicted emotional distress, and committed fraud. Heard sought lost profits, amounts paid for invoices,
lost revenue, reimbursement for remaining inventory at the end of Heard’s distributorship, lost goodwill,
lost future profits, damages for mental suffering and emotional distress, attorney’s fees and costs, and
punitive damages. On December 10, 2003, the parties entered into a General Mutual Release and
Settlement Agreement (the “Heard Agreement). Under the terms of the Heard Agreement, Mac Tools
-agreed to pay Heard $20,000 and to release and discharge Heard from any amount owed Mac Tools.. Mac
Tools was given the right to any credit or reserve balance created or established by Mac Tools in favor of
Heard, and Mac Tools retained the right to collect any money owed to Heard by his customers for tool
purchases.
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Lockett v. The Stanley Works, (Case No. 02-293]), United States Disfrict Court for the Western District
of Pennsylvania. On November 15, 2002 Ronald Lockett (*Lockett™), a former Mac Tools distributor
" located in Pennsylvania, filed suit against Mac Tools, alleging that Mac Tools breached its distributor
agreement with Lockett, breached an alleged statutory duty of fair dealing under the Pennsylvania
Franchise Act, breached the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing under the Pennsylvania
Consumer Protection Act, and made material misrepresentations to Lockett constituting fraud. Lockett
sought damages in excess of $75,000 for compensatory and punitive damages, plus attorney’s fees and
interest. Mac Tools counterciaimed against Lockett for damages of $3,234.46 related to unpaid amounts
for the purchase of inventory. On October 3, 2003, the parties entered into a Settlement Agreement and
Release of All Claims (the “Lockett Agreement™). Under the terms of the Lockett Agreement, Mac Tools
agreed to pay Lockett $1,500 and to forgive his debt to Mac Tools in the amount of $3,234.46,

Perry v. Stanley Mechanics Tools, et al, {Case No. CV030248), Superior Court of California for the
County of San Luis Obispo. On March 17, 2003, Kurt Perry (“Perry™), a Mac Tools former distributor,
filed suit against Stanley, Mac Tools, and a district manager of Mac Tools {collectively, the “Mac Tools
Defendants”); alleging that the Mac Tools Defendants made intentional and negligent misrepresentations
and/or concealed facts in regard to a particular distributorship territory in order to induce Perry to enter
into a distributor agreement with Mac Tools for that territory. The complaint further alleged breach of the
implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing and intentional interference with economic relations.
Perry sought special damages in an amount in excess of $200,000 and damages from the cost of changing
territories. Perry also sought damages for lost sales, lost future sales, lost goodwill, loss of revenue, loss
of future revenue, lost profits, loss of future profits, injury to his personal credit, inability to participate in
Mac Tools’ credit programs and failure to credit his business account. Perry also sought punitive and
exemplary damages. On or about August 23, 2004, the parties entered into a Settlement Agreement and
Release in Full of All Claims (the “Perry Agreement™). Under the terms of the Perry Agreement, Mac
Tools agreed to pay $15,000 to the bankruptcy trustee of Perry’s estate and agreed to relinquish its claim
for unpaid amounts for the purchase of inventory against Perry in the amount of $22,000. Under the
Perry Agreement, Perry agreed to satisfy all outstanding liens or charges connected to his relationship
with Mac Tools. On October 29, 2004, the Court dismissed the action,

Briseno v. Stanley Mechanics Tools, Corp., (Case No. 03 CV 1056 JM (JFS)), United States District
Court for the Southern District of California. On May 27, 2003, Guillermo Briseno (“Briseno™), a current
Mac Tools distributor located in California, filed suit against Mac Tools, alleging that Mac Tools
breached its distributor agreement with Briseno by failing to properly account for certain tool sales and
credits, breachéd_the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, breached its alleged fiduciary duty
to Briseno, and used fraud to induce Briseno to enter into the distributor agreement. Briseno sought
special damages in excess of $75,000, punifive damages, and attorney’s fees and costs. On August 19,
2003, the Court entered an order granting Mac Tools’ motion to stay the court proceedings pending
arbitration in accordance with the terms of the distributor agreements signed by Briseno. On March 4,
2004, Briseno requested, and the court entered, an order dismissing the case with prejudice.

Jean, et al. v. The Stanley Works, et al., (Case No. 1:04-¢v-01904-CAB), United States District Court for
the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division. On September 20, 2004 Robert Jean, Kenny Hankins,
Glenn Perkinson, Michael Brown and Curtis Freyermuth, Mac Tools distributors, on behalf of themselves
and other similarly situated Mac Tools distributors (the “Mac Tools Distributors™), filed suit {which suit
the Mac Tools Distributors amended on December 28, 2004) against Mac Tools, The Stanley Works (now
known as Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.) (*Stanley”) and American Express Co., alleging that Stanley and
American Express Co., through its subsidiary American Express Business Finance Corporation, the
assignee of Stanley of certain obligations of the Mac Tools Distributors, made false and fraudulent
misrepresentafions and negligent misrepresentations, committed legal or constructive fraud to induce the
Mac Tools Distributors to enter into distributor agreements with Mac Tools, Mac Tools breached an
alleged fiduciary duty to the Mac Tools Distributors, converted funds of the Mac Tools Distributors, was
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unjustly enriched, breached its contract with the Mac Toals Distributors, and tortiously interfered with the
Mac Tools Distributors’ business relations. The Mac Tocls Distributors also claimed defamation, false
imprisonment and fraudulent concealment. At the time of the filing, with the exception of Robert Jean
who was a current Mac Tools distributor, all of the Mac Tools Distributors were former Mac Tools
distributors. The Mac Tools Distributors in the action sought declaratory relief regarding the mandatory
alternative dispute resolution clauses of the distribufion agreement, a refund of monies for sales of tools to
the Mac Tools Distributors, disgorgement of profits for alleged unlawful schemes, unjust enrichment, an
accounting, punitive damages, compensatory damages in an amount exceeding $75,000 for each of the
Mac Tools Distributors, pre-judgment interest, attorney’s fees and costs, and a constructive trust. Mac
Tools moved to compel arbitration and dismiss the suit with respect to 93 of the 103 named Mac Tools
Distributors whose distributor agreement contained a mandatory arbitration provision. As to the
remaining 10 Mac Tools Distributors, Mac Tools moved to dismiss the suit it its entirety on the basis that
it failed to state any cause of action against Mac Tools upon which relief could be granted. On July 11,
2006, the Court granted in part and denied in part Mac Tools’ maticn to dismiss the suit. On August 29,
2006, the Court granted Mac Tools’ motion to compel as to the majority of the 93 Mac Tools Distributors
‘who had signed a distributor agreement with an arbitrafion provision- and referred the specific issues
relating to a subset of the Mac Tools Distributors to the Magistrate for an evidentiary hearing, which was
held on November 16 and 17, 2006. On April 3, 2007, the Magistrate recommended that Mac Tools’
Mofion to Compel Arbitration be granted as to the 93 Mac Tools Distributors. On April 16, 2007 the Mac
Tools Distributors filed an objection to the recommended decision, and on May 3, 2007 Mac Tools filed
its response to the objection. On July 14, 2008, the Court issued an Opinion and Order adopting the
Magistrate’s recommendation. On November 11, 2008, the Mac Tools Distributors filed a motion for a
protective order, to sever claims and to stay discovery. On January 23, 2009, the Court denied the Mac
Tools Distributors’ motion, set a case management schedule including a discovery cut-off of March 23,
2009 and a summary judgment motion date of April 23, 2009, stayed the claims of the parties ordered to
arbitration, and ordered the parties to submit arbitration status reports to the Court. On March 11, 2009,
the Mac Tools Distributors filed a Stipulation of Voluntary Dismissal of the claims of the remaining Mac
Tools Distributors, except for the claims of Mr, Robert Jean and Mr. Kenneth Hankins. On March 12,
2009, the Court granted the stipulation, and accordingly, only Mr. Jean and Mr. Hankins remained as
plainfiffs in the case. On April 23, 2009, Stanley filed a motion for summary judgment on all remaining
claims, which was granted on June 14, 2010. A final judgment terminating all claims was entered by the
Court on June 22, 2010

Lott v. Mac Tools, et al., (Case No. L-1891-07), Superior Court of New Jersey Law Division Monmouth
County. On April 16, 2007, Susan Lott (“Lott™), the wife of former Mac Tools distributor Michael Lott
(collectively, the “Lotts™), filed suit against Mac Tools and an employee of Mac Tools, alleging that Mac
Tools intentionally or negligently misrepresented or omitted material facts to induce Lott into investing
money so that her husband could enter a distributor agreement, intentionally infiicted emotional distress
on Lott, acted maliciously, negligently, carelessly, wrongfully, recklessly, and otherwise engaged in
gross, wanton and willful behavior and morally culpable-conduct, and violated the New Jersey Consumer
Fraud Act, Lott sought damages for loss of investment capital, loss of income allegedly projected by Mac
Tools, loss of assets sold or encumbered to raise money paid, loss incurred in order to obtain and maintain
the distributorship, loss of savings, severe emotional distress, and loss of credit standing. Lott also sought
interest on all losses, treble damages, punitive damages, attorney’s fees, costs and disbursements, On
September 10, 2007, the parties entered into a Settlement, General Release and Indemnification
Agreement (the “Lott Agreement”). Under the terms of the Lott Agreement, Mac Tools agreed to pay the
Lotts 340,000 and to release and discharge the Lotts from any amount then owed to Mac Tools. Mac
Tools was given the right to any credit or reserve balance created or established by Mac Tools in favor of
Mr. Lott, and Mac Tools retained the right to collect any money owed to Mr. Lott by his customers for
tool purchases. Additionally, Mr. Lott agreed to the return of any property belonging to Mac Tools.
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Rose v. Mac Tools, et al., (Case No. L-1907-07), Superior Court of New Jersey Law Division Monmouth
County. On April 16, 2007, Shari Rose (“Rose™), the wife of former Mac Tools distributor David Rose
(collectively, the “Roses™), filed suit against Mac Tools and an employee of Mac Tools, alleging that Mac
Tools intentionally or negligently misrepresented or omitted material facts to induce Rose into investing
money so that her husband could enter a distributor agreement, intentionally infiicted emotional distress
on Rose, acted maliciously, negligently, carelessly, wrongfully, recklessly, and otherwise engaged in
gross, wanton and willful behavior and morally culpable conduct, and violated the New Jersey Consumer
Fraud Act. Rose sought-damages for loss of investment capital, loss of income allegedly projected by
Mac Tools, loss of assets sold or encumbered to raise money paid, loss incurred in order to obtain and
maintain the distributorship, loss of savings, severe emotional distress, and loss of credit standing. Rose
also sought interest on all losses, treble damages, punitive damages, attorney’s fees, costs and
disbursements. On September 10, 2007, the parties entered into a Settlement, General Release and
Indemnification Agreement (the “Rose Agreement”). Under the terms of the Rose Agreement, Mac Tools
agreed to pay the Roses $40,000 and to release and discharge the Roses from any amount then owed to

. Mac Tools. Mac Tools was given the right to any credit or reserve balance created or established by Mac
Tools in favor of Mr. Rose, and Mac Tools retained the right to collect any money owed to Mr. Rose by
his customers for tool purchases. Additionally, Mr. Rose agreed to the return of any property belonging
to Mac Tools.

Bixby, et al. v. Stanley Mechanics Tools, Inc.. et al., (Case No. 51-2006-CA-1307-WS), Circuit Court of
the Sixth Judicial Circuit in and for Pasco County, Florida. On or about May 9, 2006, Jane Bixby, Diana
Floyd and Patricia Harrell, spouses of former Mac Tools distributors located in Florida, and Rose
DiSimone, sister to a former Mac Tools distributor located in Florida (collectively, the “Bixby
Plaintiffs), filed suit (which suit the Bixby Plainfiffs first amended on or about September 26, 2007)
against Mac Tools and certain employees of Mac Tools. In response.to the Bixby Plaintiffs’ first
amended complaint, on or about October 25, 2007, Mac Tools filed a Motion to Dismiss the Amended
Complaint or to Compel Arbitration. On or about January 7, 2008, the Bixby Plaintiffs amended the suit
for a second time. In response to the Bixby Plaintiffs” second amended complaint, on or about
January 25, 2008, Mac Tools filed a Motion to Dismiss. On or about March 10, 2008, the Court issued an
Order on Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss, denying Mac Tools’ Motion to Dismiss as to Count II of the
complaint (based on the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act), dismissing with prejudice the
Bixby Plaintiffs’ claims under the Florida Franchise Act, and dismissing without prejudice the Bixby
Plaintiffs’ fraudulent inducement claims and deceptive trade practices claims.

On or about May 16, 2008, Jane Bixby, David R. DiSimone (as personal representative of Rose
DiSimone), Diana Floyd, Patricia Harrell and David Harrell (a former Mac Tools distributor) (the w3
Amended Complaint Plaintiffs”) filed a 3 Amended Complaint, naming as additional defendants,
Michael Bixby and Lyle Floyd (both former Mac Tools distributors). The complaint alleged that Mac
Tools sold undisclosed franchises, violated the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act and the
Florida Franchise Act, misrepresented distributor’s potential income, intentionally and fraudulently
misrepresented certain facts and obtained an agreement entered into by Mac Tools and a distributor
through fraud and deceit. The 3 Amended Complaint Plaintiffs sought an injunction preventing Mac
Tools from entering into distributor agreements until Mac Tools registered as a franchise, and requiring
certain information be made available to distributors; they also sought damages for loss of investment
capital, loss of income allegedly projected by Mac Tools, loss of personal assets, loss incurred in
obtaining and maintaining the distributorship, loss of savings, loss of credit rating, and emotional distress.
The 3 Amended Complaint Plaintiffs further sought interest on all damages, attorney’s fees and costs,
rescission of the distributor agreement and return of any royalties paid, as well as a declaratory judgment
defining the scope of assignments by Michael Bixby and Lyle Floyd to their respective spouses of their
interests in damages from the action. In addition, Mr. Harrell sought a declaratory order that the Mac
Tools Franchise Agreement entered into by Mr. Harrell was a franchise.
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On October 26, 2008, former Mac Tools distributor Michael Bixby, his wife Jane Bixby (collectively, the
“Bixbys™), and Mac Tools entered into a Settlement, General Release and Indemnification Agreement
with Attached Stipulation of the Parties (the “Bixby Agreement”). Under the terms of the Bixby
Agreement, Mac Tools agreed to pay the Bixbys $35,000 and to release and discharge the Bixbys from
any amount owed to Mac Tools. Mac Tools was given the right to any credit or reserve balance created
or established by Mac Tools in favor of Mr. Bixby, and Mac Tools retained the right to collect any money
owed the Bixbys by customers for tool purchases. On May 12, 2009, the Bixbys’ claims were dismissed
with prejudice.

On December 1, 2008, former Mac Tools distributor David Harrell, his wife Patricia Harrell (collectively,
the “Harrells™), and Mac Tools entered into a Settlement, General Release and Indemnification
Agreement with Attached Stipulation of the Parties (the “Harrell Agreement™). Under the terms of the
Harrell Agreement, Mac Tools agreed to pay the Harrells $35,000 and to release and discharge the
Harrells from any amount owed to Mac Tools. Mac Tools was given the right to any credit or reserve
balance created or established by Mac Tools in favor of Mr. Harrell, and Mac Tools retained the right to
collect any money owed the Harrells by customers for tool purchases. On May 12, 2009, the Harrells’
claims were veluntarily dismissed with prejudice.

On December 4, 2008, former Mac Tools distributor Frank DeMarting, David R, DiSimone as the
Personal Representafive of the Estate of Rose DiSimone (the “Estate of Rose DiSimone™), and Mac Tools
entered into a Settlement, General Release and Indemnification Agreement with Attached Stipulation of
the Parties (the “DiSimone Agreement”™). Under the terms of the DiSimone Agreement, Mac Tools
agreed to pay the Estate of Rose DiSimone $35,000 and to release and discharge Mr. DeMartino and the
Estate of Rose DiSimone from any amount owed to Mac Tools. Mac Tools was given the right to any
credit or reserve balance created or established by Mac Tools in favor of Mr. DeMartino and Mac Tools
retained the right to collect any money owed Mr. DeMartino by customers for tool purchases. The Estate
agreed to dismiss Ms, DiSimone’s claims with prejudice, and on April 29, 2009, the final order of
dismissal with prejudice was entered by the Court.

Former Mac Tools distributor Lyle Floyd, his wife Diana Floyd, and Mac Tools verbally agreed to settle
the Floyds® claims against Mac Tools but the Floyds did not sign a settlement agreement. On or about
May 25, 2010, Mac Tools filed a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Prosecution requesting that the Court
dismiss the Floyds® claims against Mac Tools, and on December 3, 2010, the Court granted Mac Tools’
motion and dismissed the Floyds® claims without prejudice.

Injunctions; Restrictive Orders and Decrees .

During the first six months of 1999, Stanley entered into consent decrees with the Federal Trade
Commission (“FTC”) and the States of Connecticut and Missouri, pursuant to which Stanley agreed to
meet the very latest FTC guidelines for Made in U.S.A. labeling on its mechanics tools, The guidelines
require that products may be marked “Made in U.S.A.” if, and only if, those products have ail or virtually
all domestic content. The guidelines were announced by the FTC in December 1997, Almost all of
Stanley’s products met the guidelines even before they were announced. Immediately following the
change in the guidelines, Stanley voluntarily took steps to ensure that all of its products would comply
with the change. Those steps had already been taken when the consent decrees were agreed to in 1999,
and, as a result, Stanley was not required to make any additional changes.



In June 2006, Stanley entered into an additional consent decree and order with the U.S. Department of
Justice and the FTC to settle charges regarding representations made with respect to the origin of
components of its Zero Degree ratchets. The consent decree provided for payment by Stanley of a
$205,000 civil penalty and a prohibition on violating the FTC order issued in connection with the 1999
consent decrees described above. '

Except for the matters described above, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4, BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this item.

ITEM 5. INITIAL FEES

In order to acquire a Mac Tools franchise, you must pay to us an initial franchise fee of $3,000,
which, unless tinanced by us in circumstances as described in Item 10 of this disclosure document, is due
in full upon your execution of the Franchise Agreement. The initial franchise fee is not refundable. As
disclosed below, you will be required to purchase product inventory, equipment, and other items from
Mac Tools.

A payment is required to be made to Mac Tools by a franchisee for the initial inventory of tools
purchased for resale (the “Starter Inventory”). Inventory purchased for resale is sold to the franchisee at
Mac Tools’ published prices established from time to time by Mac Tools. Occasionally, an existing Mac
Tools tool inventory located in the vicinity of the route to be served by a new franchisee will become
available for purchase, and a new franchisee in the area may desire to purchase the existing tool inventory
to serve as the Starter Inventory. In this event, Mac Tools reserves the right to determine whether the
existing inventory can reasonably be substituted in place of the usual Starter Inventory package and, if it
agrees to permit this, the new franchisee will be required to execute documentation to reflect the
franchisee’s request and Mac Tools’ approval of the request.

The current Starter Inventory package is offered at a price in an amount of up to $50,000. The
Starter Inventory package consists of various components, a toolbox and a tool cart. Each component
includes a standard core assortment (“SCA™) of products. (For example, a SCA may include soft-line
'products with air-tools, parts, electronics, pliers, striking tools and accessories, and another SCA may
include hard-line products with screwdrivers and striking tools.) From time to time, in Mac Tools’ sole
discretion, each component may be updated to ensure that the mix of tools in the SCA reflects a collection
of the most popular products which Mac Tools is selling at that time. Regardless of how the mix of
products within SCAs is changed, the Starter Inventory as a whole will be priced at an amount which is
no more than $50,000. The franchisee also has the option, in addition to the Starter Inventory, to
purchase from Mac Tools internal tool displays for use inside its truck for $1,500. Payment for the
Starter Inventory and any merchandising displays purchased by the franchisee is made at the successful
conclusion of the initial training program in Ohio. The Franchise Agreement and other agreements and
forms (copies of which are attached) are typically executed by franchisees during the initial training
program, as described in Item 11 of this disclosure document. Franchisees may pick up the Starter
Inventory at Mac Tools’ distribution center in Columbus, Ohio or al an address specitied by the
franchisee. If sent to the address specitied by the franchisee, the Starter Inventory is generally received
by the week following completion by the franchisee of the initial training program. Any refunds of
payments by the franchisee for the Starter Inventory are subject to Mac Tools” then applicable Tool
Returns policy.
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Mac Tools reserves the right to offer other Starter Inventory packages, and to change prices and
credit terms, as it deems appropriate.

The franchisee is required to purchase or lease a new or used truck for the operation of the Mac
Tools Business. The franchisee can purchase the truck from any vendor, provided that the truck is one of
the models approved by Mac Tools and meets Mac Tools” current specifications. Mac Tools provides the
names of businesses that sell or lease approved models of trucks that meet Mac Tools® specifications and
that can equip the trucks with the appropriate fixtures. Occasionally, Mac Tools may have used trucks for
sale to franchisees. The prices of such trucks vary depending on the condition of the particular trucks.
We estimate the range of prices of trucks to be $10,000 to $120,000. These estimates include amounts
paid or reimbursed to us or to other suppliers by the franchisee for truck delivery, truck condition reports,
sales taxes, expenses of vehicle registration, and document fees related to purchase or lease of the truck
and registration with state and local jurisdictions. (See lItems 7 and 8 of this disclosure document for
further information.)

If the franchisee obtains a truck that has not yet had a decal package installed and if the supplier
of the truck is not including the decal package as part of the purchase price of the truck. the franchisee
must purchase the decal package from Mac Tools at the price paid by Mac Tools for the decal package
(the price is $735 as of the date of this disclosure document).

A franchisee may, at his or her option, decide to purchase from Mac Tools a Mobile Merchant
machine to enable the franchisee to accept customers’ charges of purchases using the GreenSky Trade
Credit, LLC (“GreenSky”) Mac Tools Card and other major credit cards. The cost for the Mobile
Merchant machine can be paid in a single payment charged to the franchisee’s trade account or as a series
of debits charged to the franchisee’s trade account. The cost of the Mobile Merchant, if paid in full, will
be $450, and the cost will be $525 if paid in 3 monthly equal installments of $175 each. There is no
interest charged on meonthly installments. Mobile Merchant is not required; however, it is highly
recommended to improve the efficiency of customers’ purchase transactions. The ongoing wireless
broadband charges and credit card administration and handling fees associated with this option are not
included in these totals and vary by provider. ‘

In addition, the franchisee may, but is not obligated to, purchase business, promotional and
merchandising supplies which are offered at competitive prices through Mac Tools or from independent
suppliers approved by Mac Tools.

Generally, none of the fees or payments disclosed above are refundable.

Conversion by Existing Mac Tools Distributor to Mac Tools Franchisee

Current Mac Tools distributors in good standing who desire to convert to become a Mac Tools
franchisee will be required to sign a Mac Tools Franchise Agreement, a copy of which is attached as
Exhibit B to this disclosure document, as well as the Distributor to Franchisee Conversion Addendum to
Mac Tools Franchise Agreement, a copy of which is included in Exhibit D to this disclosure document.
As is reflected in the Addendum, conversion franchisees will not be required to pay an initial franchise
fee to Mac Tools. The term of the Franchise Agreement for conversion franchisees will be 20 years.
Conversion franchisees will presumably already have a truck and Mac Tools product inventory and, thus,
will not be required to make these purchases, or have expenses related to decals for the truck. If the
conversion franchisee has not already obtained the optional items described above in this Item 5, it will
have the option to obtain them.
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Conversion by Franchisee from Competitive Tool Distribution Franchise System to Mac Tools
Franchisee

Mac Tools typically offers incentives to franchisees from competitive tool distribution franchise
systems who meet Mac Tools” then-effective qualifications regarding sales and experience and who
convert from being a franchisee or distributor in another system to become a Mac: Tools franchisee. Mac
Tools reserves its rights at any time to change its qualifications applicable to conversion candidates. The
terms of the incentives, if any, are negofiable between Mac Tools and the converting franchisee, but may,
for example, involve trade account credits in the amount of the converting franchisees expenses to have
their truck painted to reflect Mac Tools’ colors and to have Mac Tools decals applied, trade account
credits conditioned on attaining specific required inventory purchase target amounts, requirements that

“the converting franchisee attend Tool Fair, and other revisions to the converting franchisee’s obligations
under the Mac Tools Franchise Agreement. The converting franchisee will sign with Mac Tools a Mac
Tools Franchise Agreement, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit B to this disclosure document, as well
as the Franchisee Conversion Addendum to Mac Tools Franchise Agreement, a copy of which is included
in Exhibit D to this disclosure document, as modified to reflect any negotiated terms. Such conversion
franchisees will be required to pay an initial franchisee fee to Mac Tools. Such conversion franchisees
may already have a truck that is satisfactory to Mac Tools and, thus, will not be required to make this
purchase, but will likely be required to have the truck repainted to reflect Mac Tools’ colors and to
purchase the decal package and have it installed. The conversion franchisee must purchase a Starter
Inventory from Mac Tools. If the conversion franchisee has not already obtained the optional items
described above in this Item 5, it will have the option to obtain them.

ITEM 6.

OTHER FEES
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Annual Fee $900, if paid on or before | Monthly installment on or | Payable in the form of
January 15™: $990 if paid | before the fifteenth day of | debit(s) to your trade
in monthly installments of | each month of the account in monthly
$82.50 on or before the calendar year or asingle | installments of $82.50 on
fifteenth of each month. payment on or before or before the fifteenth of
The Annual Fee is payable | January 15" of each each month during the
beginning with the first calendar year. calendar vear, or a single
full calendar year during total {discounted)
the Term. payment of $900 if paid
: in full on or before
January 15" of each
calendar year.
On-going Variable, depending upon | Payable weekly Total price of product,
purchases of sales by franchisee (See Note 1) less 2% if paid in full
products to within 10 days or full
replenish tool price if paid within 30
inventory days.
{See Note 1)
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Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Late Charge

1.5% per month (18% per
year) or the highest rate
permitted by law
{whichever is lower),
based on the cash price of
products purchased on a
trade account and not paid
when due

Payable upon demand

Mac Tools may start
applying the charge under
the Purchase Agreement
when purchase on a trade
account is at least 10 days
past due and may
continue to apply it to the
unpaid balance until such
purchase is paid in full.

Costs and Legal
Fees

Will vary under the
circumstances

Payable upon demand

We are entitled to recover
damages, costs and
expenses, including
attorneys’ fees and
disbursements, that we
incur (1) as a result of
(a) default under the
Franchise Agreement, or
any related agreement
(b) enforcement of rights
under the Franchise
Agreement concerning
confidential information,
(c) enforcement of rights
under the Security
Agreement, (d) our
efforts to collect amounts
owed under the Purchase
Agreement, (e) your
assertion in arbitration or
litigation that the
representations and
warranties made by you

in the Franchise

Agreement are not true or
accurate, and (2) because
we were required to
compel arbitration,

Indemnity

Will vary under the
circumstances

Payable upon demand

The franchisee
indemnifies Mac Tools
from certain claims and
habilities connected with
the Mac Tools Business
and listed in Section
3.17(a) of the Franchise
Agreement.




Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

GreenSky Will vary under the Payable upon demand The franchisee will pay
Customer Credit circumstances 25% of the amount of an
Program Charge- account that Mac Tools
Offs reimburses GreenSky for

the franchisee’s
customers’ accounts that
are charged-off (See
Note 2)

Extended Trade $25 is due to Mac Tools Payable upon demand {See Note 1)
Program each time that a franchisee
administrative fee | participates in the
Extended Trade Program

Except as provided in the following notes, the fees and payments listed above are uniformly
imposed by us, collected by us, and payable to us. These fees and payments are nonrefundable.

Note 1: On-going purchases of products to replenish_inventory: As disclosed in Item 5 of this
disclosure document, the franchisee must purchase from us the Starter Inventory package prior to
operating the Mac Tools Business. (See Item 5 for more details.) After commencing operation of the Mac
Tools Business, the franchisee must purchase its on-going inventory of the Products from Mac Tools,
which Products are sold at the prices and on the terms in effect from time to time. During each year of
the term of the Franchise Agreement, unless you are currently complying with a written business
improvement plan approved by Mac Tools, you must purchase a quantity of Products having a total dollar
value (calculated based on the prices paid for Products and the net of the dollar value of returns) greater
than or equal to at least 80% of the National Franchisee Average and multiplied by the number of Routes
assigned to you. (The National Franchisee Average is defined in the Franchise Agreement as the amount
of purchases determined at least annually by Mac Toels by dividing the total number of Routes operated
by Mac Tools franchisees and distributors into the total dollar amount of the Products purchased by such
franchisees and distributors during the applicable period of time used to determine the average). Mac
Tools will advise you (either in hard copy or electronically by a posting on a Mac Toels website) of the
National Franchisee Average.

Although not obligated to do so, Mac Toels may provide for the purchase of inventory of the Products
and the SBD Products on credit, by giving the franchisee extended terms for payment. (See the Purchase
‘Agreement attached as Exhibit E.) (See Item 10 for additional information.) '

In addition, Mac Tools may periodically make certain Products available to certain Mac Tools franchisees
to purchase on extended repayment terms. If Mac Tools invites a franchisee to participate in the
Extended Trade Program, it is the franchisee’s option regarding whether to participate. The types of
Products made available, the inventory of products that must be purchased, the costs for the Products, the
repayment term, which franchisees are eligible to participate in the Program, and other additional
limitations on the Extended Trade Program are in the sole discretion of Mac Tools. Each time that a
franchisee participates in the Extended Trade Program, the franchisee must pay Mac Tools a $25
administrative charge. (See Item 10 for additional information.)

A new franchisee, at his or her option, may participate in the Mac Tools Pay By Phone program, a
program for making payments on the franchisee’s trade account. (Mac Tools also accepts payment from
franchisees made by credit card and ePay.) Pay By Phone is an electronic transfer of funds system that is
provided to franchisees at no cost. In order to make a payment on the franchisee’s trade account, the
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franchisee simply calls an 800 number (available 7 days a week and 24 hours a day) and schedules a
payment to the Mac Tools trade account. Payments will be withdrawn from the franchisee’s account on
the next business day (assuming the franchisee calls before 7:00 p.m. EST) and will be posted to Mac
Tools™ account on the following business day (except that payments withdrawn from the franchisee’s
account on Friday morning will be posted to Mac Tools’ account on Friday afternoon). If the franchisee
calls on Saturday or Sunday, the payment will be withdrawn from the franchisee’s account on Tuesday
and posted to Mac Tools” account on Wednesday. In order to enroll, the franchisee must complete the
Mac Tools Pay By Phone form (Exhibit L. to this disclosure document), attach a voided check from the
account that the franchisee wishes to be debited for payments to the franchisee’s trade account and submit
it on the first day of the initial training program. The directions, access code and password will be mailed
to the franchisee’s home address. Mac Tools' then current payment terms for the franchisee’s trade
account will apply to payments made via Pay By Phone.

A new franchisee, at his or her option, may participate in the ePay program, an online program by which a
franchisee can access a password protected website maintained by Mac Tools in order to make payments
“on the franchisee’s trade account. The ePay program is an electronic transfer of funds system that is
provided to a franchisee at no cost, following the franchisee’s voluntary online enrollment in the ePay
program. Participating franchisees receive a quarterly rebate of least 1% of all payments made through
the ePay program, as long as the franchisee is in good standing with Mac Tools and current on all
payments due to Mac Tools.

Return of Goods Purchased. During the term of the Franchise Agreement, Products, and if
applicable, SBD Products, may be returned to Mac Tools in accordance with the terms of Mac Tools’
then-current Tool Returns policy contained in the Field Operations Manual or as otherwise provided by
Mac Tools in writing. If the Franchise Agreement is terminated or expires either because the franchisee
has terminated the Agreement without giving Mac Tools notice of a default by Mac Tools, or because
Mac Tools has given the franchisee nofice of a default but the franchisee has failed to cure the default,
then, for 15 days following the termination or expiration effective date, Mac Tools will have the option
(but not the obligation unless otherwise required by state law) to purchase all or any portion of the
franchisee’s inventory of the Products and/or the SBD Products for the following purchase prices: for
truck-worn inventory, in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the most recent franchisee net price(s)
for such inventory, and, for new inventory in restockable condition, in an amount equal to ninety percent
(90%) of the most recent franchisee net price(s) for such inventory. Discontinued inventory is not to be
returned to Mac Tools, no ¢credit will be issued by Mac Tools for discontinued inventory, and Mac Tools
will have the right to dispose of any disconfinued inventory that is returned to Mac Tools. Mac Tools’
determination of the condition of the inventory for these purposes is final and binding. with no recourse.

If the Franchise Agreement is terminated or expires, authorization from Mac Tools is required
before any Product or SBD Product returns of any type will be accepted. Mac Tools will pay for the
freight to return the Product or the SBD Product provided the return is handled by the carrier Mac Tools
specifies when the return authorization. is issued. The Product and/or SBD Product returned should be
sent in-bound freight collect via the specified carrier. Failure to follow this procedure will result in the
freight cost being deducted from the credit.

No handling charge will be made if termination is due to the franchisee’s death, disability or
qualified refirement. The return policy is subject to change. Final settlement with the franchisee will be
made only after all outstanding balances owed to Mac Tools are satisfied. Mac Tools may apply the
repurchase credit against any amount owed to it by the franchisee for services or inventory purchases.

Note 2: GreenSky Customer Credit Program: You have the option to participate in a program where
GreenSky Trade Credit LLC will advance credit to certain of your customers as described in more detail
in.Item 8 of this disclosure document. GreenSky has agreed to lower its normal underwriting standards if
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we agree to reimburse GreenSky for the charge-off losses GreenSky incurs with respect to your customers
who obtain credit from GreenSky to purchase the Product and/or the SBD Product. If you wish to
participate in the GreenSky program, you must agree to pay GreenSky 25% of the charge-offs made by
GreenSky. The amount of the reimbursement obligation will vary based on the amount of GreenSky's
charge-offs under this program. You are also required to reimburse us for any payments we make to
GreenSky for charge-off losses related to your customers.

There are no purchasing cooperatives required to be disclosed in Item 6.

ITEM 7, ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

New Franchise

. YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

To Whom
Method Payment Is
Type of Expenditure Amount of Payment When Due To Be Made
Initial Franchise Fee $3,000 Lump sum At signing of Mac Tools
(See Note 1) Co Franchise
Agreement
Travel And Living $1,100 to Lump sum As arranged by Airlines, hotels, &
Expenses $1,500 you restaurants
While Training
(See Not;: 2)
Initial (Starter) $50,000 Lump sum Upon execution of | Mac Tools
Inventory (See Note 3) ‘ the Franchise
Agreement
Vehicle Purchase $10,000 to As required As required by Truck suppliers
(See Note 4) $120,000 by suppliers | suppliers
Equipment $2,450 | Lump sum Prior to opening Mac Tools and other
(See Note 5) ' suppliers
Computer System $1,600 to Lumpsum | Prior to opening Suppliers
(See Note 6) $3,000
Signs and Graphics $0 to $735 Lump sum Upon execution of | Mac Tools
(vehicle decals) (See the Franchise
Note 7) ' . Agreement
Professional Fees $850 to Asarranged | As arranged by Your professional
(See Note 8) $1,800 by you you advisors
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To Whom
Method Payment Is
Type of Expenditure Amount of Payment When Due To Be Made
Insurance (See Note 9) $340 per Lump sum Prior to opening Insurance company or
month; $2,040 companies
for first 6
months
Uniforms (See Note 10) $200 Lump sum Prior to opening Approved suppliers
Advertising Associated $50 to $250 | As incurred Upon receipt of Suppliers
With Commencement invoice
of Business
(See Note 11)
Licenses, Permits and §$50to $250 | Lump sum Prior to opening Government agencies
Authorizations
(See Note 12)
Additional Funds: 3 To $18,000 to As incurred As incurred “Various suppliers,
6 Months (Working $24,000 employees and others
Capital) (See Note 13)
TOTAL $89,340 to
$209,225

All figures in Item 7 are estimates only. Actual amounts will vary for each franchisee and each location

depending upon a number of factors.
refundable.

Note |

Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

Generally, none of the amounts presented in this Item 7 is

The inifial franchise fee covers some of our expenses of offering and selling Mac Tools
franchises and training and assisting new franchisees with matters related to preparing to
commengce operation of their Mac Tools Businesses.

This estimate includes airfare, meals and hotel for one person while attending the initial
training in Columbus, Ohio. The range of estimates presented above reflects that
transportation expenses will vary according to the distance, mode of transportation and
market for airiine transportation. This estimate does not include personal expenses.

The amount due for Starter Inventory can be paid in cash or other readily available funds
by the franchisee or financed by a third party lender. (See Item 10 for more information. )

This is the minimum required inventory for all starting franchisees. Inventory must be
replenished on a weekly basis to serve customers. This payment is nonrefundable, except
as such inventory may be subject to then-current Tool Returns policy, including a
restocking charge.

This estimate will vary significantly depending upon whether a new or used vehicle is
purchased. A new vehicle may cost between $70.000 and $120,000 and a used vehicle
between $10,000 and $70,000. Purchase or lease of a model of a vehicle approved by
Mac Tools is required for the operation of the Mac Tools Business. These estimates
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Note 5

Note 6

include amounts paid or reimbursed to us or to other suppliers for truck delivery, truck
condition reports, sales taxes, expenses of vehicle registration, and document fees related
to purchase or lease of the truck and registration with state and local jurisdictions. This
estimate does not include an estimate of the cost of outfitting the truck to display the
MAC Tools® logo, decals and other display requirements. (See Note 7 for more
information.) The franchisee can purchase the truck from any vendor. Mac Tools
provides the names of businesses that sell or lease approved models of trucks that meet
Mac Tools’ specifications and that can equip the trucks with the appropriate fixtures.
Prospective franchisees are encouraged to contact the companies listed below and other
companies to discuss the costs and terms of sale or lease of a truck. Used trucks may be
available from these vendors or other sources. Further information is available from the
franchisee’s District Manager. Currently, the companies on this list are:

Bush Specialty Vehicles

80 Park Drive

Wilmington, Ohio 45177

Contact: Ron Victor (866) 604-2874, Ext. 11

DNIJ Upfitters

1812 Sutton Road

Jamestown, Ohio 45335

Contact: David Leslie (877) 687-9685

This estimate is for the cost of a Mobile Merchant machine to enable the franchisee to
accept customers’ charges of purchases using the GreenSky MAC Card and other major
credit cards. This machine is not required; however, it is highly recommended to improve
the efficiency of purchase transactions. The cost for the Mobile Merchant machine can
be paid in a single payment charged to the franchisee’s trade account or as a series of
debits charged to the franchisee’s trade account. The cost of the Mobile Merchant, if paid
in full, will be $450, and the cost will be $525 if paid in 3 monthly equal installments of
$175 each. There is no interest charged on monthly installments. (The ongoing wireless
broadband charges and credit card administrafion and handling fees are not included in
this estimate ($24.95 per month plus 1.69% of the amount of charged transactions plus
$0.30 per transaction for MasterCard, Visa and Discover; American Express charges are
dependent upon the franchisee’s credit as evaluated by American Express; manually
keyed transactions for American Express card purchases have credit card administration
and handling fees of 3.25% and $0.30 per transaction). These amounts are paid to
Advance Merchant Solufions.) Also included in this cost is the one time cost of tool
displays required for display of inventory inside the truck. Purchase of these displays is
required. The estimate does not include other optional equipment which many
franchisees elect to use in their business, such as a fax machine, cell phone and credit card
machine.

The franchisee must purchase or lease for use in the Mac Tools Business either the
computer hardware designated by Mac Tools to run Mac Tools Mobile Business
Assistant software or other computer hardware that, after consultation with Mac Tools, is
determined to be compatible with and capable of running the Mobile Business Assistant
software and communicating with the internal computers at Mac Tools. (See Item 11 of
this disclosure document for additional disclosures related to the computer system and
related hardware and software that franchisees are required to obtain for their Mac Tools
Businesses.)

24



Note 7

Note §

Note 9

Note 10

Note 11

Note 12

Note 13

This estimate covers only the cost of the required truck decal package (this may be
included by the supplier as part of the cost of the acquisition of the truck) and does not
include the cost of installation of the required truck decal package. If the franchisee
obtains a used truck, the decal package may already have been installed). The decal is
purchased from Mac Tools, and installation can be performed by the franchisee or a third
party, al the franchisee’s option.

This'is an estimate of your expenses to have an attorney review the franchise documents,
as well as the costs of forming a business entity to be the franchisee business entity,
should you decide to do so. This estimate does not include the possible expenses of a
review of the documents by an accountant or business advisor.

The estimate of business insurance costs will vary by locality, local taxes and your
personal loss experience. The estimate provided is for the tirst six months’ coverage.
Coverage limits assumed in the estimate are as follows: truck coverage - $1,000,000;
general liability coverage - $1,000,000; inventory and equipment - $50,000; and business
interruption - $35,000. We reserve the right to require you to obtain additional types of
insurance and coverages, as provided under the Franchise Agreement.

This estimate covers three uniforms for one individual.

Advertising expenditures in connection with commencement of the business are not
required. Generally, franchisees have business cards printed for their Mac Tools
Business. These amounts are generally not refundable. {See ltem 11 of this disclosure
document for details.)

This is an estimate of various types of business permits and licenses that may be required
in your locality, such as truck licenses, sales tax permits and vendor licenses. You may
also be required to obtain other types of licenses, permits or authorizations. The number
and amounts of such fees varies from locality to locality. You must comply with all
federal, state and local statutes, ordinances and regulations affecting the conduct of your
Mac Tools Business.

This is an estimate only of the range of initial start-up expenses that you may incur, The
actual .amount of additional funds that you will need depends upon a variety of factors,
including the time of year when you start your business, your own management skills and
economic conditions. This estimate is based on our management’s experience and
expertise in the Mac Tools Business and our experience with businesses opened before
the date of this disclosure document and the working capital needs of those businesses.
The estimate is for a period of 3 to 6 months.
s

You may be able to tinance all or part of the initial investment from third parties. {See ltem 10 of

this disclosure document for additional information.)

Conversion by Existineg Mac Tools Distributor to Mac Tools Franchisee

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

To Whom
Method Payment Is
Type of Expenditure Amount of Payment When Due To Be Made

Equipment
{See Note 1)

$0 to $2,450 | Lump sum Prior to opening Mac Tools and other
suppliers
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To Whom
Method Payment Is
Type of Expenditure Amount of Payment When Due To Be Made
Professional Fees $0to $1,300 | Asarranged | As arranged by Your professional
(See Note 2) by you you advisors
Uniforms (See Note 3) 50 to $200 Lump sum Prior to opening Approved suppliers
TOTAL $0 to $3,950

All figures in Item 7 are estimates only. Actual amounts will vary for each franchisee and each location
depending upon a number of factors. Generally, none of the amounts presented in this Item 7 is

refundable,

Note |

Note 2

- Note 3

This estimate is for the cost of a Mobile Merchant machine to enable the franchisee to
accept customers’ charges of purchases using the GreenSky MAC Card and other major
credit cards. This machine is not required; however, it is highly recommended to improve
the efficiency of purchase transactions. The cost for the Mobile Merchant machine can
be paid in a single payment charged to the franchisee’s trade account or as a series of
debits charged to the franchisee’s trade account. The cost of the Mobile Merchant, if paid
in full, will be $450, and the cost will be $525 if paid in 3 monthly equal installments of
$175 each. There is no interest charged on monthly installments. (The ongoing wireless
broadband charges and credit card administration and handling fees ($24.95 per month
plus 1.69% of the amount of charged transactions plus 30.30 per transaction for
MasterCard, Visa and Discover, American Express charges are dependent upon the
franchisee’s credit as evaluated by American Express; manually keyed transactions for
American Express card purchases have credit card administration and handling fees of
3.25% and $0.30 per transaction)are not included in this estimate. These amounts are
paid to Advance Merchant Solutions.) Also included in this cost is the one time cost of
tool displays required for display of inventory inside the truck. Purchase of these displays
is required. The esfimate does not include other optional equipment which many
franchisees elect to use in their business, such as a fax machine, cell phone and credit card
machine, If the converting distributor already has purchased the Mobile Merchant
machine and tool displays for use in the Mac Tools Business, then the range of estimates
assumes no further purchase.

This is an estimate of your expenses to have an attorney review the franchise documents
should you choose to engage an attorney to do so. This estimate does not include the
possible expenses of a review of the documents by an accountant or business advisor.

If the converting distributor already has purchased uniforms for use in the Mac Tools
Business, then the range of estimates assumes no further purchase. Otherwise, this
estimate covers three uniforms for one individual.

You may be able to finance all or part of the initial investment from third parties. (See Item 10 of

this disclosure document for additional information.)
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Conversion by Franchisee from Competitive Tool Distribution Franchise Svstérﬁ to Mac Tools

Franchisee
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
To Whom
Type of Expenditure Amount ofwffzt}::::nt When Due Payment Is
Y To Be Made
Initial Franchise Fee 33,000 Lump sum At signing of Mac Tools
(See Note 1) Franchise
Agreement
Travel And Living 31,100 t0 Lump sum As arranged by Airlines, hotels, &
Expenses 31,500 you restaurants
While Training
(See Note 2)
Initial (Starter) $50,000 Lump sum Upon execution of | Mac Tools
Inventory (See Note 3) the Franchise
Agreement
Vehicle Purchase $0to As required As required by Truck suppliers
(See Note 4) $120,000 by suppliers | suppliers .
Equipment 32,450 Lump sum Prior to opening Mac Tools and other
(See Note 5) suppliers
Computer System $1,600 1o Lump sum Prior to opening Suppliers
(See Note 6) 33,000
Signs and Graphics $0 10 $735 Lump sum Upon execution of | Mac Tools
(vehicle decals) (See the Franchise
Note 7) Agreement
Professional Fees $0t0 31,300 | Asarranged | As arranged by Your professional
(See Note 8) by you you advisors
Uniforms (See Note 9) 3200 Lump sum Prior to opening Approved suppliers
Advertising Associated $50 to $250 | As incurred Upon receipt of Suppliers
With Commencement invoice
of Business
(See Note 10)
Additional Funds: 3 To 318,000 to As incurred As incurred Various suppliers,
6 Months (Working $24,000 employees and others
Capital) (See Note 11)
TOTAL - $76,400 to
$206,435
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All ﬁgﬁres in [tem 7 are estimates only. Actual amounts will vary for each franchisee and each location
depending upon a number of factors. Generally, none of the amounts presented in this [tem 7 is

refundable.

Note 1

Note 2

Not_e 3

Note 4

Note 5

The initial franchise fee covers some of our expenses of offering and selling Mac Tools
franchises and training and assisting new distributors with matters related to preparing to
commence operafion of their Mac Tools Businesses.

This estimate includes airfare, meals and hotel for one person while attending the initial
training in Columbus, Ohio. The range of estimates presented above reflects that
transportation expenses will vary according to the distance, mode of transportation and
market for airline transportation. This estimate does not include personal expenses.

The amount due for Starter [nventory can be paid in cash or other readily available funds
by the distributor or financed by a third party lender. (See [tem 10 for more information.)

~This is the minimum required inventory for all starting franchisees. [nventory must be

replenished on a weekly basis to serve customers., This payment is nonrefundable, except
as such inventory may be subject to then-current Tool. Returns policy, including a
restocking charge.

[n the event that the converting franchisee has a truck that Mac determines is suitable for
use in operating a route for a Mac Tools Business, no purchase of a truck may be
necessary, This estimate will vary significantly depending upon whether a new or used
vehicle is purchased. A new vehicle may cost between $70,000 and $120,000 and a used
vehicle between $10,000 and $70,000. Purchase or lease of a model of a vehicle
approved by Mac Tools is required for the operation of the Mac Tools Business. These
esfimates include amounts paid or reimbursed to us or to other suppliers for truck
delivery, truck condition reports, sales taxes, expenses of vehicle registration, and
document fees related to purchase or lease of the truck and registration with state and
local jurisdictions. This estimate does not include an estimate of the cost of outfitting the
truck to display the MAC Tools® logo, decals and other display requirements. (See Note 7
for more information.) The franchisee can purchase the truck from any vendor. Mac
Tools provides the names of businesses that sell or lease approved models of trucks that
meet Mac Tools’ specifications and that can equip the trucks with the appropriate
fixtures. Prospective franchisees are encouraged to contact the companies listed below

"and other companies to discuss the costs and terms of sale or lease of a truck. Used

trucks may be available from these vendors or other sources. Further information is
available from the franchisee’s District Manager. Currently, the companies on this list
are;

Bush Specialty Vehicles

80 Park Drive

Wilmington, Ohio 45177

Contact: Ron Victor (866) 6(4-2874, Ext. 11

DNIJ Uptfitters

1812 Sutton Road

Jamestown, Ohio 45335

Contact: David Leslie (877) 687-9685

This estimate is for the cost of a Mobile Merchant machine to enable the franchisee to
accept customers’ charges of purchases using the GreenSky MAC Card and other major
credit cards. This machine is not required; however, it is highly recommended to improve
the efficiency of purchase transactions. The cost for the Mobile Merchant machine can
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Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

Note 9

Note 10

Note 11

be paid in a single payment charged to the franchisee’s trade account or as a series of
debits charged to the franchisee’s trade account. The cost of the Mobile Merchant, if paid
in full, will be $450, and the cost will be $525 if paid in 3 monthly equal installments of
$175 each. There is no interest charged on monthly installments, (The ongoing wireless
broadband charges and credit card administration and handling fees are not included in
this estimate ($24.95 per month plus 1.69% of the amount of charged transactions plus
$0.30 per transaction for MasterCard, Visa and Discover; American Express charges are
dependent upon the franchisee’s credit as evaluated by American Express; manually
keyed transactions for American Express card purchases have credit card administration
arid handling fees of 3.25% and $0.30 per transaction). These amounts are paid to
Advance Merchant Solutions.) Also included in this cost is the one time cost of tool
displays required for display of inventery inside the truck. Purchase of these displays is
required. The estimate does not include other optional equipment which many
franchisees elect to use in their business, such as a fax machine, cell phone and credit card
machine.

The franchisee must purchase or lease for use in the Mac Tools Business either the
computer hardware designated by Mac Tools to run Mac Tools’ Mobile Business
Assistant software or other computer hardware that, after consultation with Mac Tools, is
determined to be compatible with and capable of running MBA and communicating with
the internal computers at Mac Tools. (See Item 11 of this disclosure document for
additional disclosures related to the computer system and related hardware and software
that franchisees are required to obtain for their Mac Tools Businesses.)

This estimate covers only the cost of the required truck decal package (this may be
included by the supplier as part of the cost of the acquisition of the truck) and does not
include the cost of installation of the required truck decal package. If the franchisee
obtains a used truck, the decal package may already have been installed). The decal is
purchased from Mac Tools, and installation can be performed by the franchisee or a third
party, at the franchisee’s option.

This is an estimate of your expenses to have an attorney review the franchise documents
should you choose to engage an attorney to do so, This estimate does not include the
possible expenses of a review of the documents by an accountant or business advisor.

This estimate covers three uniforms for oné individual.

Advertising expenditures in connection with commencement of the business are not
required.  Generally, franchisees have business cards printed for their Mac Tools
Business. These amounts are generally not refundable. (See Item 11 of this disclosure
document for details.)

This is an estimate only of the range of initial start-up expenses that you may incur. The
actual amount of additional funds that you will need depends upon a variety of factors,
including the time of year when you start your business, your own management skills and
economic conditions. This estimate is based on our management’s experience and
expertise in the Mac Tools Business and our experience with businesses opened before
the date of this disclosure document and the working capital needs of those businesses.
The estimate is for a period of 3 to 6 months.

You may be able to tinance all or part of the initial investment from third parties. (See Item 10 of

this disclosure document for additional information.)
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ITEM 8. RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We place restrictions on the sources of products and services that you sell or otherwise use in the
operation of your Mac Tools Business. In addition, certain products and services that you sell or
otherwise use in the operation of your Mac Tools Business must meet our specificafions and standards.
You may only offer products and services, and use products and equipment, authorized by us, including
any new services and products which may be developed, and you must provide those products and
services in accordance with our requirements, as established periodically The source of these obligations
is the Franchise Agreement and the purpose of these requirements is to maintain the Mac Tools image,
the MAC Tools® trademarks and service marks to insure the identification of Mac Tools Businesses and-
products by the public, to preserve and enhance the goodwill associated with Mac Tools, and to fulfill the
expectations of our customers.

We do not issue specifications and standards for goods and services to our franchisees and/or
approved suppliers. We do not permit you to contract with alternative suppliers when we have designated

or approved a-supplier.

In order to determine whether you are complying with the requirements of the Franchise
Agreement, our representatives may inspect your Mac Tools Business.

Items and Services Which Must Meet Mac Tools’ Specifications

Truck Used in the Operetion of the Mac Tools Routes

The franchisee is required to purchase or lease a new or used truck for the operation of each of
the Routes that the franchisee has been assigned in connection with its Mac Tools Business. The
franchisee can purchase the truck from any vendor, provided that the truck is one of the models approved
by Mac Tools and meets Mac Tools” current specifications. (See Note 4 of Item 7 of this disclosure
document for more information.)

Computer Hardware and Software

The franchisee must purchase for use in the Mac Tools Business a computer system or systems
meeting Mac Tools’ specifications, including without limitation, the capability to run the Mobile Business
Assistant software (“MBA software™), and to communicate with the internal computers at Mac Tools. The
franchisee may purchase such hardware from any source provided it meets Mac Tools’ specifications.
(See Item 11 for more information regarding the computer system and software required for use in the
Mac Tools Business.)

Insurance

Mac Tools requires franchisees to maintain comprehensive liability and property insurance with
at least $2,000,000 of coverage, covering the franchisee, his or her inventory of the Products and the SBD
Products, each of the trucks, and the franchisee’s employees, if any; you must also maintain workers’
compensation insurance at not less than the minimum amount required by law. The property insurance
covering the inventory of the Products and the SBD Products must insure against fire, theft and extended
coverage, must contain a “lenders loss payable” clause identifying Mac Tools as the “lender”, and must
be in an amount at least equal to the lesser of (i) the full replacement cost of the inventory or (ii) the total
amount of any indebtedness owed by the franchisee to Mac Tools. This policy must also name Mac
Tools as the “loss payee.”
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You must also maintain comprehensive general liability insurance coverage and commercial auto
liability coverage. The liability insurance must insure against a person suffering personal injury
(including death) or damage to their property, caused by any product sold by the franchisee (including the
Products and the SBD Products), or the franchisee’s employees, or caused by the use of any such product
(including the Products and the SBD Products) or caused by the truck(s) or any motor vehicle being
operated by the franchisee, or the franchisee’s employees, in the conduct of the Mac Tools Business, or in
any other way as a result of or in connection with the operation of the Mac Tools Business.

You must maintain at least the following types and amounts of insurance coverage:
(i) comprehensive general liability insurance in an amount of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and
combined single limit bodily injury and property damage, $2,000,000 in the aggregate for each policy,
(i) commercial automobile liability insurance for each truck with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per
accident for bodily injury and property damage, and minimum limits of $1,000,000 for uninsured and
underinsured motorist statutory- personal injury protection, and (iii) automobile physical damage
insurance, including earthquake and flood coverage, on each truck (in an amount equal to the lesser of the
actual cash value or the cost of repair, minus a maximum deductible of $500). Mac Tools must be
included as an “additional insured” on the comprehensive general liability insurance and as an “additional
insured grantor of franchise” and, if applicable, an “additional insured lessor” on the automobile liability
insurance.

[n addition to the minimum insurance coverage described above, you must obtain and maintain
additional insurance coverage as Mac Tools may require from time to time during the term of the
Franchise Agreement. The franchisee must complete the Insurance Loss Payee form (Exhibit K in favor
of Mac Tools.

This coverage can be obtained from any company or agent chosen by the franchisee and meeting
Mac Tools® specifications. Alternatively, Mac Tools has approved a special insurance policy that is
tailored to meet its specifications and which is administered through Marsh U.S. Consumer, a service of
Seabury & Smith, Inc. In addition, a comprehensive business insurance package (general liability, fire,
casualty, automobile liability and physical damage, inventory and computer equipment, optional business
interruption coverage and theft insurance) for the franchisee and the truck is available. Charges for these
programs will be quoted on an individual basis depending upon the franchisee’s needs. You may contact
the administrator at Marsh U.S, Consumer, a service of Seabury & Smith, Inc., P.O. Box 9314, Des
Moines, lowa 50306, (1-800-847-4003).

[n addition to the mandatory insurance coverage requirements discussed above, the franchisee
may wish to purchase disability insurance from an insurance company or agent providing such coverage
to cover him or her in the event that he or she is unable to operate the Mac Tools Business due to sickness
or disability. Because the Mac Tools franchisee is an independent business owner, workers compensation
is not available. Thus, a privately purchased disability insurance policy can provide varying levels of
income replacement during a period in which the franchisee cannot operate the business.

Uniforms

You and your employees must wear an approved Mac Tools uniform purchased from an approved
supplier while operating your Route(s). ‘
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Items énd Services Which Must Be Purchased From a Designéted Supplier
Products and SBD Products

All Products, and, if applicable, the SBD Products, offered by you in the operation of your Mac
Tools Business must meet our specifications, as periodically established, and must be purchased from us.
We are the sole designated supplier of Products and SBD Products.

Mobile Business Assistant Software

Mac Tools is also the sole designated supplier of the Mac Tools MBA software or other software
that Mac Tools identifies for use by its franchisees in the operation of their Mac Tools Businesses. The
MBA software is a special software program for product ordering, inventory control, record keeping and
communication with Mac Tools. (See Items 7 and 11 of this disclosure document for additional
disclosures regarding this software.) A franchisee must ensure that it has obtained any license or
necessary computer hardware components needed to permit the franchisee’s employees to use the MBA
software,

Business Forms

Mac Tools is also a supplier of various business forms and supplies designed specifically for use
in connection with the Mac Tools Business. Business cards and stationary must be obtained only through
a supplier designated by Mac Tools, with the supplier subject to change at any time. As of the date of this

disclosure document, the designated supplier is Finlay Prinfing.

Customer Credit Program

Currently, through an optional program with GreenSky, GreenSky offers to the franchisee a
financing program whereby a customer of the franchisee who qualifies may be able to finance purchases
of Products from the franchisee (the “Customer Credit Program™). Mac Tools franchisees are not
permitted to obtain a credit account within the Customer Credit Program for personal or business use.
GreenS8ky is the sole designated supplier of the Customer Credit Program. :

Under the Customer Credit Program, GreenSky offers a credit card to approved customers for the
purchase of Products from any enrolled Mac Tools franchisee. Franchisees must qualify for the Customer
Credit Program under GreenSky’s guidelines and rules. All franchisees enrolled in the Customer Credit
Program must sign a separate written agreement directly with GreenSky and a Rider to the franchisee’s
Mac¢ Tools Franchise Agreement (See Exhibit Q). Mac Tools may earn certain fees based upon its
referrals of franchisees to GreenSky for participation in the Customer Credit Program or other programs.
Franchisees must comply with GreenSky’s guidelines and rules governing merchants. Customers must
qualify for the Customer Credit Program under GreenSky’s guidelines and rules. Mac Tools does not
represent or guaranty that any franchisee will be enrolled as a merchant for the Customer Credit Program
nor can Mac Tools affect whether a customer will qualify to participate in the Customer Credit Program.
As a merchant participating in the Customer Credit Program, the franchisee may desire to consider
obtaining mobile credit card scanning equipment to accept credit card purchase transactions with
customers. (See Item 6, Note 5 of Item 7 and Item 10 of this disclosure document for additional
information.)

GreenSky has agreed to lower its normal underwriting standards for the Customer Credit Program
if we agree to reimburse GreenSky for the charge-off losses GreenSky incurs with respect to sales to
customers obtaining credit from GreenSky to purchase Product. If you wish to participate in the
Customer Credit Program, you must sign an agreement with GreenSky where you agree to pay GreenSky
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25% of the charge-offs made by GreenSky. You must also reimburse us for any payments we make to
GreenSky for charge-off losses related to your customers.

Other than as disclosed above, you are not required to purchase or obtain items or services from
designated suppliers or approved suppliers. There may be multiple sources available to you from which
you can obtain the items and services described above. [f we revoke our approval of an approved supplier
or the list of approved suppliers is otherwise amended, we will communicate with you in writing by
regular mail and/or email communication. Except for confidential and proprietary specifications, our
criteria for supplier approval are available to you,

Revenue Derived by Mac Tools from Sales to Franchisees

The Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. will derive revenue from your
purchases of tools from us. We estimate that the Mac Tools Division will receive, on average,
approximately $101,000 in purchases of inventory, supplies and services from each franchisee each year.
During its 2010 fiscal year, Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. received revenues. from required purchases by
Mac Tools franchisees of $806,215 and also received revenues of $120,375,463 from its non-franchised
U.S. Mac Tools distributors. Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. had total revenues of $8,409,600,000 during
its 2010 fiscal year. The percentage of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.’s total revenues represented by
required purchases by franchisees is 0.0096%. Mac Tools has no affiliates that sell or lease products to
franchisees.

We -estimate that the.required Mac Tools Business purchases from designated suppliers and
approved suppliers will consfitute 82% to 97% of your cost to establish a Mag¢ Tools Business, and 64%
to 80% of your total operating expenses thereafter,

Mac Tools may, but is not obligated to, negofiate volume discounts and purchase agreements with
suppliers for the benefit of Mac Tools franchisees. No purchasing or distribution cooperatives have been
established as of the date of this disclosure document.

Mac Tools may receive rebates and/or discounts on product promotions from certain suppliers to
Mac Tools Businesses. Mac Tools received no such rebates during 2010 related to Mac Tools franchises.
Generally, Mac Tools extends discounts on product promotions to its franchisees and uses other amounts
received on catalogs provided to franchisees and franchisee meetings (such as Tool Fair).

Except for your Mac Tools franchise, Mac Tools does not provide material benefits, such as
franchise renewals or additional franchises, based upon your use of suppliers.

Neither Mac Tools, nor any officers of Mac Tools nor any officers of Stanley Black & Decker,
Inc., own an interest in any non-Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.supplier listed in Item 8.
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ITEM 9. FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS
This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other
items of this disclosure document.

Franchise Agreement, Purchase Agreement, Security Agreement and Government Franchise

Agreement

Obligation

Section(s) in Franchise
Agreement, Purchase
Agreement, Security

Agreement and Government
Franchise Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

a. Site selection and
acquisition/lease

Not applicable

Not applicable

b. Pre-opening purchases/leases

Sections 3.4,3.11,3.12and 3.16
of the Franchise Agreement

Not applicable

¢. Site development and other
pre-opening requirements

Not applicable

Not applicable

d. Initial and ongoing training

Section 3.3 of the Franchise
Agreement

Iterns 6 and 11 of this disclosure
document

e. Opening Exhibit A of the Franchise Item 11 of this disclosure
Agreement document
f Fees Sections 1.2, 1.3 and 3.4 of the Items 5,6, 7,8, 11 and 17 of this

Franchise Agreement; Article 3

of the Purchase Agreement

disclosure document

g. Compliance with standards
and policies/Operations
Manual

Section 3.19 of the Franchise
Agreement; Article 6 of the
Purchase Agreement

Items 6, 8, 11, 15 and 16 of this
disclosure document

h. Trademarks and proprietary
information

Section 3.11 and Article 7 of the
Franchise Agreement

Items 12, 13, 14 and 15 of this
disclosure document

i, Restrictions on
products/services offered

Section 3.9 and Article 4 of the
Franchise Agreement

Items 6, 8 and 16 of this
disclosure document

j- Warranty and customer
service requirements

Section 3.14 and Article 6 of the
Franchise Agreement; Article 12
of Purchase Agreement

Item 16 of this disclosure
document
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Obligation

Section{s) in Franchise
Agreement, Purchase
Agreement, Security

Agreement and Government

Franchise Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

Territorial development and
sales quotas

Articles 3 and 4 of the Franchise
Agreement

Item 12 of this disclosure
document

Ongoing product/service
purchases

Section 5.8 of the Franchise
Agreement; Purchase Agreement

Items 6, 8 and 16 of this
disclosure document

. Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

Sections 3.1, 3.11 and 3.19 of the
Franchise Agreement

Item 17 of this disclosure
document

Insurance Section 3.16 of the Franchise Items 6, 7 and 8 of this disclosure
Agreement document
Advertising Section 7.7 of the Franchise Items 6, 7, 8 and 11 of this

Agreement

disclosure document

Indemnification

Section 3.17 of the Franchise
Agreement; Article 8 of
Government Franchise
Agreement

Item 6 of this disclosure
document

Owner’s participation/
management/staffing

Sections 3.1 and 3.2 of the
Franchise Agreement

Items 11 and 15 of this disclosure
document

Records and reports

Secfion 3.12 of the Franchise
Agreement; Article 7 of the
Purchase Agreement; Article 2 of
the Security Agreement; Section
3.3 and Article 4 of Government
Franchise Agreement

Item 6 of this disclosure
document

Inspections and audits

Section 3.8 and 3.12 of the
Franchise Agreement; Article 2
of the Security Agreement

Items 6 and || of this disclosure
document

Transfer Article 9 of the Franchise Items 6 and | 7 of this disclosure
Agreement; Article 9 of Purchase | document
Agreement

Renewal Section 2.2 of the Franchise Items 6 and 17 of this disclosure

Agreement

document

Post-termination obligations

Article |1 of the Franchise
Agreement; Article 7 of the
Government Franchise
Agreement

Item 17 of this disclosure
document
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Obligation

Section(s) in Franchise
Agreement, Purchase
Agreement, Security
Agreement and Government
Franchise Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

w. Non-competition covenants

Sections 3.9 and 11.3 of the
Franchise Agreement

Items 15 and 17 of this disclosure
document

x. Dispute resolution

Article 19 of the Franchise
Agreement; Articles 13 and 14 of
Purchase Agreement

Item 17 of this disclosure
document

y. Payment of accounts

Section 3.6 of the Franchise
Agreement; Articles | and 3 of
Purchase Agreement

Item 6 of this disclosure
document

z. Compliance with statutory
obligations

Section 3.15 of the Franchise
Agreement; Section 3.3.3 of the
Govermnment Franchise
Agreement

Item 1 of this disclosure
document

‘aa. Wearing an approved Mac
Tools uniform while
operating the Route

Section 3.1 of the Franchise
Agreement

items 7 and 8 of this disclosure
document

bb. Maintaining a level of
inventory of the Products at
all times

Section 5.8 of the Franchise
Agreement

Items 6, 7 and 8 of this disclosure
document

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other

items of this disclosure document.

Mobile Business Assistant Software License Agreement

Obligation

Section(s) in Mobile Business
Assistant Software License
Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

a, Site selection and
acquisition/lease

Not applicable

Not applicable

b.- Pre-opening purchases/leases

Not applicable

Not applicable

¢. Site development and other
pre-opening requirements

Not applicable

Not applicable
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Obligation

Section(s) in Mobile Business
Assistant Software License
Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

Initial and ongoing training

Article 4 of the Mobile Business
Assistant Software License
Agreement

Items 6 and 11 of this disclosure
document

Opening

Not applicable

Not applicable

Fees

Not applicable

Not applicable

Compliance with standards
and policies/Operations
Manual

Not applicable

Not applicable

Trademarks and proprietary
information

Not applicable -

Not applicable

Restrictions on
products/services offered

Not applicable

Not applicable

Warranty and customer
service requirements

Article 6 of the Mobile Business
Assistant Software License
Agreement

Item 16 of this disclosure
document

Territorial development and
sales quotas

Not applicable

Not applicable

Ongoing product/service
purchases

Not applicable

Not applicable

. Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

Article 5 of the Mobile Business
Assistant Software License
Agreement

Item 17 of this disclosure
document

Insurance

Not applicable

Not applicable

Advertising

Not applicable

Not applicable

Indemnification

Not applicable

Not applicable

Owner’s participation/
management/staffing

Not applicable

Not applicable

Records and reports

Not applicable

Not applicable

Inspections and audits

Not applicable

Not applicable
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Section(s) in Mobile Business

Obligation Assistant Software License Disclosure Document Item
Agreement
t.  Transfer Article 13 of the Mobile Business j Item 17 of this disclosure

Assistant Software License
Agreement

document

u. Renewal

Article | of the Mobile Business
Assistant Software License
Agreement

Item 17 of this disclosure
document

v. Post-termination obligations

Article 2 of the Mobile Business
Assistant Software License
Agreement

Item 17 of this disclosure
document

Non-competition covenants

Not applicable

Not applicable

x. Dispute resolution .

Not applicable

Not applicable

y. Payment of accounts

Not applicable

Not applicable

z. Compliance with statutory
obligations

Not applicable

Not applicable

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
~ help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other

items of this disclosure document.

Mac Tools Extended Trade Program (ETP) Terms and Conditions Agreement

Obligation

Section(s) in Mac Tools
Extended Trade Program
(ETP) Terms and Conditions
Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

a. Site selection and
acquisition/lease

Not applicable

Not.applicable -

b. Pre-opening purchases/leases

Not applicable

Not applicable

¢. Site development and other
pre-opening requirements

Not applicable

Not applicable -

d. Initial and ongoing training

Not applicable

Not applicable

e. Opéning

Not applicable

Not applicable

f Fees

Paragraphs 2 and 4

Item 10
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Obligation

Section(s) in Mac Tools

Extended Trade Program
(ETP) Terms and Conditions

Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

Compliance with standards
and policies/Operafions
Manual

Not applicable

Not applicable

Trademarks and proprietary
information

Not applicable

Not applicable

Restrictions on
products/services offered

Not applicable

Not applicable

Warranty and customer
service requirements

Not applicable

Not applicable

Territorial development and
sales quotas

Not applicable

Not applicable

Ongoing product/service
purchases

Not applicable

Not applicable

. Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

Not applicable

Not applicable

Insurance

Not applicable

Not applicable

Advertising

Not applicable

Not applicable

Indemnification

Not applicable

Not applicable

Owner’s participation/
management/staffing

Not applicable

Not applicable

Records and reports

Not applicable

Not applicable

Inspections and audits

Not applicable

Not applicable

Transfer

Not applicable

Not applicable

Renewal

Not applicable

Not applicable

Post-termination obligations

Not applicable

Not applicable

. Non-competition covenants

Not applicable

Not applicable

Dispute resolution

‘Not applicable

Not applicable

Payment of accounts

Paragraphs 2,3 and 4

Item 10
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ITEM 10.° FINANCING

Financing for Establishing the Mac Tools Business:

Mac Tools has a contractual relationship with Wells Fargo under which Wells Fargo offers
financing for the purchase of the Starter Inventory and/or the truck to certain qualified applicants seeking
to become a franchisee. If you are interested in making application for such financing, you must submit
the application to Wells Fargo, which will make an independent decision regarding such financing. Wells
Fargo generally finances the purchase of inventory for a term of 60 months at 8.99% interest. Wells
Fargo generally finances the purchase of a truck for a term that varies depending upon the vehicle
financed and its purchase price and at 9.99% interest. If the applicant is approved for financing of both
the Starter Inventory and the truck, these are documented as separate transactions.

Wells Fargo uses an agreement enfitled “Combination Loan and Security Agreement” {the “Loan
Agreement”) to evidence both types of loans.  The Loan Agreement contains certain material terms of
which you should be aware. These include the following: (1) You have the right to prepay the loan, with
the following prepayment premiums: 3% of the principal amount prepaid if paid during months 1-36, 2%
during months 37-48, 1% during months 49-60. and 0% thereafter. (Loan Agreement, second paragraph
under “Additional Provisions™); (2) If you do not pay on time, Wells Fargo has the right to declare the
enfire amount of the loan to be due by accelerating the loan, and to bring legal proceedings to collect the
amount due. If this happens, you will also be liable for the applicable prepayment premium, 12% interest
and Wells Fargo’s expenses incurred in collecting the loan, including our attorney’s fees. {(Loan
Agreement, Section 6); {3) After the maturity date of the note, the interest rate increases to the post-
maturity interest rate {12%). {Loan Agreement, Section 6); (4) The Loan Agreement contains a provision
by which you waive your right to a trial by jury (Loan Agreement, Section 7(0)); (5) Wells Fargo
approves the financing transactions with the individual franchisee or the individual principal of the
franchisee business enfity as the debtor {and not a franchisee business entity), and (6) Wells Fargo
requires the debtor to grant it a security interest in the collateral and proceeds {Loan Agreement, Section
3). If you are approved by Wells Fargo for a loan or loans, you should request review copies of the Loan
Agreement and other documents,

Mac Tools Trade Account Credit:

Mac Tools may provide inventory on credit, such that the franchisee is given extended terms for
payment. (See the Mac Tools Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) at Exhibit E)) The
purchase price for the products purchased on credit will be due and payable in the amounts and on the
dates shown on each balance forward statement or other transaction document. At the time you enter the
Purchase Agreement, the terms for credit purchases are: the total price shown, less 2% of that amount if
you pay in full within 10 days of the date of the balance forward statement, or the full price within 30
days of the date of the balance forward statement. We can change the terms of purchase in our discretion,
and we will notify you of any change. The extension of credit and the continuation of credit is at our sole
discretion. (Purchase Agreement, Article 1.} If you do not pay an invoice in full when due, we may
charge you a late charge which is calculated by applying a percentage rate to the unpaid cash price for the
period of fime that the purchase is past due. The percentage rate will be equal to the lower of {a) 1/4% per
month and {b) the highest rate permitted for such late charges, in the state(s) where you conduct your Mac
Tools Business. We may apply the percentage rate when your account is at least 10 days past due and
continue to apply it to the unpaid balance until the purchase is paid in full. The late charge is not a
finance charge, but should be considered a delinquency charge. We will and do take active steps to
collect late accounts. {Purchase Agreement, Article 3.)

Your indebtedness to Mac Tools in connection with the Mac Tools Business will be secured by a
security interest on certain of your business personal property. (Mac Tools Security Agreement (the
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“Security Agreement”); Article 8). You grant us this security interest in order to secure any and all
amounts which you owe to us of whatever nature, now or at any time in the future. (Security Agreement,
Article 8.) .

Any such indebtedness will also be guaranteed by the natural person who will oversee operation
of the Mac Tools Business (in the case of a franchisee which is a business entity), or may (in the case of a
franchisee who is a natural person) at the option of Mac Tools be guaranteed by the spouse or other
relative, friend, or business associate of such franchisee. (See the Guarantee of Payment and Performance
and the Guarantee of Indebtedness at Exhibit | and Exhibit J, respectively.) A franchisee who executes
the Franchise Agreement as an individual and who is married may be asked to arrange for his or her
spouse to execute the personal guaranty of the franchisee’s indebtedness to Mac Tools (Exhibit J) if the
spouse’s income and assets were considered among the qualificafions in the application process to
become a Mac Tools franchise. A third party, including a family member or spouse, may be required to
execute an Investor Guarantor Acknowledgment (see Exhibit R) relating to this Franchise Disclosure
Document and the Franchise Agreement if any of the following apply: (a) the third party’s income and
assets are considered among the qualifications in the franchisee candidate’s application to become a Mac
Tools franchisee; (b) the third party agrees to invest money or other resources in the franchisee
candidate’s Mac Tools® Business; or (c) the third party signs an individual guaranty to Mac Tools of the
obligations of the franchisee candidate’s Mac Tools Business. A franchisee who decides to form a
corporation, limited liability company or other business entity (“Entity”) to operate his or her Mac Tools
Business must execute a personal guaranty of the Entity’s obligations to Mac Tools (Exhibit I) and must
complete certain additional documents (Exhibit G and Exhibit H). Each owner of the Entity, acting as the
franchisee (including an owner who is the spouse of the individual who is the principal operator of the
Mac Tools Business) must execute a personal guaranty of the Entity’s obligations to Mac Tools (Exhibit
I). The Entity must be owned and controlled (control to be determined by ownership of at least 51% or
more of the ownership interests in the Entity) by the natural person who will oversee operation of the Mac
Tools Business. If a franchisee decides to form an Entity to operate the Mac Tools Business, certain
conforming modifications may be made to refiect this in the forms of the agreements attached as Exhibits.

If you do not make any payment owed to us under the Purchase Agreement or otherwise when the
payment is due, or if you do not follow the provisions of the Purchase Agreement, or if you are in default
under the Franchise Agreement or the Security Agreement or any.other agreement between you and us,
we may declare you in default under the Purchase Agreement. If you are in default under the Purchase
Agreement, all sums under the Purchase Agreement will become immediately due and payable by vou.
(Purchase Agreement, Article 10.) You agree to pay us the costs of collecting what you owe us, including
reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements, costs of collection agencies, and costs of arbitration, and
any other costs related to collecfion as allowed by law. (Purchase Agreement, Article 11.)

The Purchase Agreement contains certain material terms of which you should be aware. These
include the following: (1) the Purchase Agreement will be interpreted and construed under Ohio law
(Purchase Agreement, Section 13.1.); (2) the Purchase Agreement contains a jury waiver provision
(Purchase Agreement, Section 14.7.); (3) with limited exceptions, all claims, controversies, or disputes
arising out of or relating to the Purchase Agreement must be settled by arbitration (Purchase Agreement,
Section 14.4.); (4) with limited exceptions, all claims controversies, or disputes arising out of or relating
to the Purchase Agreement must be brought within one year from the occurrence of the facts that give rise
to the claim, controversy or dispute (Purchase Agreement, Section 14.6.); (5) neither we nor you is liable
to the other for punitive, exemplary, incidental, consequential, indirect or special damages arising from
the sale of products, the performance of any obligation under the Purchase Agreement or any other
agreement between you and us (Purchase Agreement, Article 16.); and (6) we and you waive, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, any right to punitive, exemplary, indirect, special, consequential or
incidental damages (Purchase Agreement, Secfion 15.1.).
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It is not our practice to assign the Purchase Agreement. However, Mac Tools has the right to
assign the Purchase Agreement to a third party without your consent. If we do so, the third party may
become immune under the law to any defenses to payment you may have against us. If a Purchase
Agreement is assigned to a third party, as long as the Franchise Agreement is effective, we will remain
primarily obligated to provide the assistance to you for which we are obligated under the Franchise
Agreement.

Mac Tools Extended Trade Program: Mac Tools may also periodically make certain Products
available to certain Mac Tools franchisees to purchase on extended repayment terms. If Mac Tools
invites a franchisee to participate in the Extended Trade Program, it is the franchisee’s option regarding
whether to participate. The types of Products made available, the inventory of products that must be
purchased, the prices of the products, the repayment term, which franchisees are eligible to participate in
the Program, and other additional limitations on the Extended Trade Program are in the sole discretion of.
Mac Tools. Currently, Mac Tools considers, among other factors, a franchisee’s credit and payment
history with Mac Tools and historical performance when determining whether a franchisee is eligible to
participate in the Extended Trade Program. A franchisee’s length of time with Mac Tools will affect the
level at which the franchisee may participate in the Program. In order to participate in the Extended
Trade Program, a franchisee must agree in writing to make weekly direct debit payments to Mac Tools
from the franchisee’s bank account. Weekly payment amounts may vary based on actual shipments and
the actual amount financed. In the past, the extended repayment term has ranged from 36 weeks to 50
weeks, however, the repayment term is subject to Mac Tools’ sole discretion, and in the future may not be
for the same term as previously offered by Mac Tools. Mac Tools does not charge interest on payments
made by a franchisee, but each time that a franchisee participates in the Extended Trade Program, the
franchisee must pay Mac Tools a $25 administrative charge. A franchisee that participates in the
Extended Trade Program must sign a Mac Tools Extended Trade Program (ETP) Terms and Conditions
Agreement, in a form similar to the form agreement attached as Exhibit P to this disclosure document and
must sign a Mac Tools Direct Debit Authorization Agreement, in a form similar to the form agreement
attached as Exhibit O to this disclosure document.

Mac Tools Card Program: Currently, through an optional program with GreenSky, a third-
party provider, GreenSky offers to the franchisee a financing program whereby a customer of the
franchisee who qualifies may be able to finance purchases of Products from the franchisee (the “Customer
Credit Program”). Under the Customer Credit Program, GreenSky offers to approved customers of
participating franchisees a credit card for the purchase of Products from the franchisee. If the franchisee
wishes to participate in the Customer Credit Program, he or she must enter into a Rider to the Franchise
Agreement, in a form similar to the form agreement attached as Exhibit Q to this disclosure document,
and must sign a separate written agreement directly with GreenSky. The franchisee and his or her
customers must qualify for the Customer Credit Program under GreenSky’s guidelines and rules. Mac
Tools does not represent or guarantee that any franchisee or customer will qualify to participate in the
Customer Credit Program. Mac Tools may earn certain fees from GreenSky based upon its referrals of
franchisees to GreenSky for participation in the Customer Credit Program or otherwise.

Other than as disclosed above, neither Mac Tools nor Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. offers direct
or indirect financing to you. Other than as disclosed above, we do not receive direct or indirect payments
for placing financing. We do not guarantee any loan or lease that you may obtain or any obligation that
you may incur in your Mac Tools Business.

From time to time, Mac Tools may provide prospecfive new franchisees with information

regarding lenders that are willing to enter into financing arrangements for the Mac Tools Business with
Mac Tools franchisees.
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ITEM 11.

FRANCHISOR'’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND
TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Obligations Before Opening

assistance:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6) .

7

Before you begin operation of your Mac Tools Business, we will provide the following

Grant you a limited non-exclusive license to use the trade names and trademarks
associated with Products in connection with your marketing and sale of Products.
(Franchise Agreement — Section 7.1).

Provide you with an initial training program including training materials. (Franchise
Agreement — Section 3.3). ‘

Assign you a route, or routes including a list of stops with one or more potential
customers at each stop and approximately 325 potential customers overall. (Franchise
Agreement — Section 3.1(a)). Mac Tools customarily provides the route assignment to
the franchisee at the same time that the franchisee signs the Franchise Agreement.

Sell our products to you in accordance with the terms and procedures in the Franchise
Agreement and the Field Operations Manual and at Mac Tools’ prices as published to
you from time to time. (Franchise Agreement — Article 5).

Provide you with use of our Field Operations Manual in hard and/or electronic copy
containing the current rules, policies and procedures to be followed by you in operating
your business. (Franchise Agreement — Section 3.1(b)).

Provide a limited warranty on the products that we have manufactured for the published
warranty period against defects in material or workmanship. (Franchise Agreement —
Article 6). s

Indemnify you against claims and losses arising out of defects in or design of products
that we manufacture. (Franchise Agreement — Section 3.18).

We generally do not provide equipment, signs, tixtures or supplies (other than inventory) directly.
We are generally not in the practice of providing you with written specitications for these items. We do
not deliver or install those items for use by you in the operation of your Mac Tools Business. We
occasionally may provide you with the names of approved suppliers offering these items to the extent that
they are typically used in a Mac Tools Business.

Obligations After Opening

After commencement, and during the operation, of your Mac Tools franchise, we will:

1)

2)

Sell our products to you in accordance with the terms and procedures in the Franchise
Agreement and the Field Operations Manual and at Mac Toeols’ prices as published to
you from time to time. (Franchise Agreement - Article 5).

Accept returns of products in accordance with the Franchise Agreement and our Tool
Returns policy. (Franchise Agreement — Section 5.6).
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3 Provide notice to you of the minimum product purchase requirement, including the
National Franchisee Average. (Franchise Agreement - Section 5.8).

4) Advise you of our decision regarding any requested change in your Route and providing
30 days written notice of our proposed changes to your Route. (Franchise Agreement ~
Section 4.3).

5) Cooperate with you in resolving customer complaints. (Franchise Agreement — Section
3.14).

6) Provide a limited warranty on the products that we have manufactured for the published
warranty period against defects in material or workmanship, (Franchise Agreement -
Article 6).

7 Indemnify you against claims and losses arising out of defects in or design of products

that we manufacture. (Franchise Agreement.— Section 3.18).

While, at any given time, each and every Product and/or SBD Product may not be carried by a
franchisee on its truck, in order for a franchisee to meet the obligations under its Franchise Agreement,
the franchisee must offer for purchase by its customers all products and services as provided for in the
Field Operations Manual or as otherwise designated by us. (Franchise Agreement — Section 3.1(b)).

We do not have an obligation, either before or after opening, to hire or train your employees.
You must obtain our consent if you plan to hire an employee to operate one or more of your Routes. For
each employee, you must conduct a background check and prepare a background check report. You must
submit a written proposal to Mac Tools to hire the employee, including a background check report. Mac
Tools may object to the proposed employee if the proposed employee fails to meet Mac Tools
qualitications. (Franchise Agreement — Section 3.1(c)).

Although we do not have an obligation to do so, we are signiticantly involved in improving and
developing the franchised Mac Tools Business and developing products that you will offer your
customers. We endeavor to make available to you, for purchase by your customers, a wide variety of
product inventory. It is our right to make ultimate decisions concerning the products and/or services that
we make available to you for resale to your customers, and we have the right to add to, discontinue or
modify the products and services from the list of available products and/or services at our discretion.
There are no limits on this right to make changes.

We do not have an obligation to establish prices but may suggest prices to you from time to time.
(Franchise Agreement — Section 5.2). '

As disclosed below in this Item 11, we require you to use the MBA software in your Mac Tools
Business, which we may, in our sole discretion, provide to you at our expense. This sofiware provides
you with administrative, bookkeeping, accounting and inventory control software tools. (Franchise
Agreement — Section 3.12)

Although we do not have an obligation to resolve operating problems you encounter, we are in
the practice of providing you with advice and consultatlon in connection with the operation of your Mac
Tools Business.

Advertising .

We do -not require franchisees to spend money on advertising. Some franchisees purchase
business cards for their Mac Tools Business.
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Mac Tools produces promotional flyers and catalogs from time to time and may provide some
copies to franchisees without requiring payment. Franchisees may purchase additional copies of such
materials from Mac Tools. We were paid $2,182.70 by franchisees for these purchases in 2010.
Franchisees may purchase their own items used to promote brand awareness from other sources, but any
use of the MAC Tools® trademarks on these promotional items will require approval by Mac Tools. A
sample or graphic representation of the item must be submitted. All items must be in good taste and
representative of the values of our brand. The sale of these items may be governed by state consumer
sales acts. You should check whether any laws in your state apply to the sale of these items before you
sell them to your retail customers. Promotional supplies may be ordered in the same manner as regular
product. Subject to the requirement that all advertising materials must be approved in advance by us, you
are free to prepare your own materials and to contract with agencies and suppliers of your choice.

Mac Tools is not obligated to conduct advertising, but if it elects to do so, Mac Tools may use the
services of various outside agencies to assist its own in-house staff in producing promotional fiyers and
catalogs for the Mac Tools franchise system for advertising on a local level. We do not generally
advertisé in other media or on a regional or nafional level. :

We have no obligation to spend any money for advertising in the geographic area of your Route.
We have not appointed an advertising council composed of franchisees that advises us on advertising

policies. You are not required to participate in any advertising cooperative or advertising fund.

Computer System

Ail franchisees are required to use the MBA software (see Exhibit M) or other software that Mac
Tools identifies for use by its franchisees in the operation of their business. MBA is a special software
program for product ordering, inventory control, record keeping and communicafion with Mac Tools. At
Mac Tools’ option, the MBA software or other software will be provided to the franchisee at no expense
to the franchisee. Unless you have obtained our written permission to use alternative software, you must
obtain licenses and necessary computer system hardware to permit your employees to use the MBA
software (or other designated software). The franchisee must purchase for use in the business a computer
system that meets our specifications. We estimate that it will cost you $1,600 to $3,000 to purchase the
computer hardware system. The computer system will be used to store word processing data and financial
information.

Franchisees may purchase the computer hardware system from any source; including a vendor
approved by Mac Tools, whose contact information is as follows:

Abetech

12560 Fletcher Lane, Suite 100
Roger, MN 55374

Telephone number; 800-478-8644

The franchisee must transmit to Mac Tools on, at a minimum, a twice weekly basis the
information generated by, and stored on, the franchisee’s computer system for each of the franchisee’s
Routes.

As of the date of this disclosure document, you must license, at your expense, Windows XP
(Home or Professional) or Windows 2007. This software product is the proprietary property of Microsoft
Corporation, One Microsoft Way, Redmond, Washington 98052-6399, (425) 882-8080. This software
has been approved by us for your use. We are not aware of the availability of any support programs
available for this software,
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You must purchase at your own expense all system maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates for
hardware and operating system sofiware, except that Mac Tools will provide you with any required
updates to the MBA sofiware.

-

Except as disclosed above, we do not provide technical assistance for the computer hardware or
software components. Under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, you must periodically upgrade
and/or update the hardware components and/or software programs that make up your computer system to
meet our then-current minimum specifications and list of required capabilities, There are no contractual
limitations on the frequency or cost of this obligation. We estimate that the annual cost of options or
required upgrades will be between $0 and $250.

We will have independent access to the information generated or stored on your computer system
through the MBA software.

It is requested and recommended that you establish and maintain an e-mail account with a
reputable e-mail service provider which meets the specifications we provide periodically and that you

provide us with that e-mail address.

Field Operations Manual

Mac Tools makes available to each franchisee a copy of a manual, in hard and/or electronic copy,
which contains mandatory and suggested specifications, standards, operating procedures and rules
prescribed from time to time by us, as well as information relative to your other obligations under the
Franchise Agreement and the operation of the Mac Tools Business (the “Field Operations Manual™). Mac
Tools may revise and update this Field Operations Manual from time to time. The Field Operations
Manual is Mac Tools’ property and is proprietary to Mac Tools, and the franchisee must keep the Field
Operations Manual confidential and must return (or destroy) it to Mac Tools when he or she ceases being
a franchisee.

As of the date of this disclosure document, the table of contents of our Field Operations Manual
and the number of pages (out of a total of 57 pages) on each subject within the Field Operations Manual is
as follows: -

Mac Tools Field Operations Manual
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The Field Operations Manual must remain confidential and is our property. We will have the
right to add to and otherwise modify the Field Operations Manual pericdically as it deems necessary.

Business Location

. A Mac Tools Business is largely operated out of the truck or van in which the tool displays and
product inventory are transported to stops on the Route assigned by Mac Tools to your Mac Tools
Business. Most Mac Tools franchisees use an office in their home to support the business. We do not
select a business location for you, and we are not required to provide any assistance to you in selecting a
location. Although we assign the Route(s) to your Mac Tools Business, we do not approve the
geographic or other area in which your business is located. We do not assist you in conforming any
business location to local ordinances and building codes and/or obtaining any required permits. We are
not responsible for constructing, remodeling or decorating any business location you may use for
operation of your Mac Tools® Business.

Time Before Opening

We estimate that the typical length of time between the execution of the Franchise Agreement
and commencing operation of your Mac Tools Business is, in most cases, less than 14 days, but this
period could be shorter depending upon several factors. Factors affecting the length of time usually
include obtaining the necessary financing arrangements and the time needed by you to conclude your
current business occupation,

Training

It is required that a franchise candidate accompany an existing Mac Tools franchisee or
distributor, selected by Mac Tools, on the franchisee’s or distributor’s route (“Mentor Ride™). The only
exception to this requirement is if there is no mentor in the area. This Mentor Ride lasts approximately
five business days and occurs approximately one week before the inifial training described below.
Following the Mentor Ride, unless otherwise notified by Mac Tools, a franchise candidate may attend the
initial training program.

The initial training program includes a mandatory classroom training program that generally lasts
approximately eight days (depending upon training class size) held in Columbus, Ohio. This initial
training program is held approximately 12 to 20 times per calendar year and must be successfully
completed by the franchise candidate, New franchise candidates are required to sign a Confidenfiality
Agreement and Acknowledgment of Ownership (see Exhibit C). Upon successful completion of the
initial training program to Mac Tools’ satisfaction, the franchise candidate may elect, at Mac Tools’
invitation, to sign the Franchise Agreement and become a Mac Tools franchisee. If a franchise candidate
fails to successfully complete the initial training program, he or she will not become a Mac Tools
franchisee. a
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Following a franchisee’s signing of the Franchise Agreement, he or she receives additional
training during the first five consecutive working days on his or her Route and at least five additional
working days within the first 30 days on his or her Route with the franchisee’s District Manager (or a
representative of the District Manager). A franchisee must complete the one on one training in order to
continue as a franchisee.

Training is currently provided in Mac Tools policy, sales, business management, collection and
operating procedures, including training in merchandising, product knowledge, sales, the use of the MBA
software, the tool truck, bookkeeping, credit, inventory control, tool repair and warranty and Mac Tools’
policies and procedures.

As of the date of this disclosure document, the initial training program is as follows:

TRAINING PROGRAM

Subject/
Type of Training/
Objective

Hours of Classroom Hours of On the

. . Location
Training* Job Training*

Mentor Ride Not applicable 40 - 60 - In Region
(Understanding of day
to day operations;
Sales experience;
Introduction to
computer systems)

Toel School 60 Not applicable Columbus, Ohio
(Selling Techniques;
Computer Skills;
Financial
Management;
Exposure and training
on all fundamentals of
the business)

DM Fast Start Not applicable 80 On Your Route
(Continued training; '
fundamentals of
selling, servicing
customers and
computer systems on
route)

Field Excellence Up to 3 hours per event Not applicable In District
Meetings
(On-going product and
best pracfice training
at District
level}(Optional)
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Subject/
Type of Training/
Objective

Hours of Classroom Hours of'On the

Training* Job Training* Location

DM Work-With Up to 12 hours per Not applicable On Route
(One on One training event
with DM, DM works

side by side with
franchisee on his/her
route to address any

selling, service,
financial or process
‘issues.)

Event Training Up to 5 hours per event Not applicable Al Event Location
{On-going training
provided at National
and International
Events — focused on
sales and
preduct)(Opfional)

* The hours of classroom training and on the job training are estimates, and more or less training may be
necessary to gain proficiency in the various subject areas depending upon your prior experience with
these subject areas.

Training will take place either at our offices in Columbus, Ohio, at a location near you where
another Mac Tools franchisee or distributor is operating, or, if acceptable to both us and the individual
franchisee, at the individual franchisee’s location and/or in the franchisee’s truck on the Route. The
instructional materials will include the Field Operations Manual.

The training instructors have the following numbers of years of experience in the field for which
they will provide instruction and the following numbers of years experience with Mac Tools: Guy
DeCara, Seminar Training Manager, has 18 years experience in the field and 32 years experience with
Mac Tools; and Jason Gardner, Field Trainer, has 3 years experience in the field and 14 years experience
with Mac Tools.

Prior to communications with your customers, each of your employees must successfully
complete the inifial orientation and training classes for a franchisee’s employees as well as successfully
completing any follow-up training conducted by your District Manager. A franchisee may attend, but is
not required to attend, the annual Tool Fair conference presented by Mac Tools.

Mac Tools may provide optional supplemental training courses, all as Mac Tools deems
necessary. Ongoing training will be held at the facilities of Mac Tools in Columbus, Ohio or at another
location designated by Mac Tools. Mac Tools will cover the expenses related to providing such training.
You must pay for transportation and room and board for you and/or your employees associated with any
optional supplemental training programs in which you decide to participate.

The training sessions, whether inifial training programs or additional training programs, will be

conducted as often as required and will be presented at our expense. Unless Mac Tools notifies you
otherwise, you are responsible for your transportafion and living expenses and those of your employees
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incurred in connection with any and all training. Neither 'you nor your employees will receive any
compensation from us while attending the initial training program. All franchisees must attend and
successfully complete the initial training program within the time period agreed upon by the parties at the
time of the signing of the Franchise Agreement and prior to commencing the business.

Periodically, and on an as-needed basis, we may provide mandatory follow-up training programs
that you must attend in a location designated by us. Mac Tools covers the expenses related to providing
such training. You must pay for transportation and room and board for you and/or your employees
associated with any mandatory follow-up training programs.

Franchisee Advisory Council

Mac Tools has plans to establish a Franchisee Advisory Council in the future. When established,
the Franchisee Advisory Council will meet periodically to discuss issues of importance to you, other Mac
Tools franchisees and Mac Tools. The Franchisee Advisory Council will be composed of franchisee
representatives and representatives of Mac Tools as determined by. Mac Tools. '

ITEM 12. TERRITORY

The franchisee is granted the right to distribute the Products, and, if applicable, the SBD Products
in connection with the operation at its Mac Tools Business. The operation of the franchisee’s Mac Tools
Business includes the operation of at least one assigned Route, and upon the agreement of the franchisee
and Mac Tools, on one or more additional Routes. Each Route assigned by Mac Tools consists of a list of
stops (“Stops™). The location and territory which make up a Route is outlined in Exhibit A of the
Franchise Agreement. It is Mac Tools’ policy initially to assign approximately 325 potential customers
(“Customers™) per Route. Mac Tools makes no representation with respect to whether these potential
Customers will purchase the Products or, if applicable, the SBD Products. The appointment of the
franchisee, and the assignment of the Stops and the Route to the franchisee, is nonexclusive, except that
Mac Tools will not assign any Stops assigned to any of the franchisee’s Route(s) to another franchisee,
distributor or Mac Tools employee distributors. The franchisee does not have any ownership interest in
any of the franchisee’s Route(s) or the Stops and Customers assigned, or the franchisee’s employees to
the Route(s). The Franchise Agreement provides that the franchisee, or the franchisee’s employees, may
only service Customers located at Stops on each of the franchisee’s Route(s). You are not permitted to
use other channels of distribution, including the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or direct marketing
to solicit sales outside of your assigned Route(s). You are not permitted to use the Internet to offer the
Products or, if applicable, the SBD Products for sale.

The appointment of the franchise is made on a nonexclusive basis, and Mac Tools and any of its
aftiliates may, either by itself or through another entity (or under other trademarks), use other means,
including without limitation through the Internet, catalogue sales, telemarketing, direct marketing, direct
mail solicitation, telemarketing, sale of Products and SBD Products at automotive racing venues and
through retail automotive products stores to sell the Products and the SBD Products to any customers,
including to Customers on your Route(s), except that we will not do so using distributors or franchisees,
We will not assign any of the Stops on your Route(s) to any other franchisee or Mac Tools employee
distributor.

Other than your right to personally solicit Customers on your Route(s), you will not receive an
exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from
other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. Mac Tools also reserves the right, in
its sole discretion, to sell directly to customers in areas that are not being serviced by a Mac Tools

51



franchisee. Neither Mac Tools nor any of its affiliates, including Stanley, must pay you for soliciting or
accepting orders in your territory.

A franchisee may request that Mac Tools add new Stops to, or delete Stops from any of his or her
Route(s). We will advise you in writing within 30 days after we receive your request whether or not we
approve it. If the number of Stops and/or the number of Customers at Stops on the Route is such that
Mac Tools reasonably believes that the franchisee, or the franchisee’s employees, cannot effectively make
the number of minimum personal contacts required under the Franchise Agreement (as disclosed above),
then Mac Tools has the right, with at least 30 days written notice to the franchisee, to adjust the number of
Stops on any of the franchisee’s, the Route(s) and/or to designate different Stops as part of each Route, so
that the Route is, in Mac Tools’ opinion, more manageable by the franchisee or the franchisee’s
employees. Additionally, Mac Tools reserves the right to make other additions, delefions and/or other
changes in any of the Route(s) as Mac Tools reasonably believes is necessary and equitable under the
circumstances to insure an adequate Customer base, to insure the proper level of Customer service and to
balance confiicting considerations for local, regional and national accounts. The franchisee is responsible
for keeping his or her Route assignment list, for each of his or her Routes, current with- accurate shop
information, including the complete shop name, shop address, and the number of potential customers, and
for submitting to Mac Tools annually on or before December 1%, for each of the Routes, a current Route
assignment list approved, signed and dated by the franchisee in the required format prescribed by Mac
Tools.

Products and SBD Products are not to be sold to any person who the franchisee knows will use
the products primarily for personal, family, household, or other consumer purposes.

If Mac Tools determines that the franchisee, or the franchisee’s employees, has failed to provide
consistent service (including, without limitation, the conduct of consistent sales and/or collection
activities) to the Customers at a Stop during any period of 30 consecutive days, Mac Tools may remove
the Stop from the applicable Route.

In addition, Mac Tools may alter the number of Stops if Mac Tools reasonably believes that the
franchisee has not complied with the following requirements: (a) visiting a weekly average of at least
80% of the Customers at the Stops on each of the franchisee’s Route(s) and (b) visiting all of the
franchisee’s Customers on each of the Route(s) at least once per calendar month. The Route may also be
altered in order to ensure an adequate Customer base, to insure the proper level of Customer service and
to balance considerafions for local, regional and nafional accounts.

The Franchise Agreement does not grant to you options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to
acquire additional franchises within contiguous areas to the Route, and you will not be provided such
rights except in a separate written agreement. We have not established, nor do we have plans to establish,
another franchise, company-owned method of distribution or another channel of distribution selling or
leasing similar products or services under a different trademark.

ITEM 13. TRADEMARKS

As a Mac Tools franchisee, you will be granted in the Franchise Agreement a limited, non-
exclusive license (the “Trademark License™) to use certain of our trademarks, service marks, trade names,
logos and symbols, as designated by us, only in connection with the advertising, promotion and sale of
Products in accordance with the terms of your Franchise Agreement. Consult the Franchise Agreement
for the terms and conditions of the Trademark License. The Marks are owned by Stanley Logistics, LLC,
an affiliate of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. Stanley Logistics, LLC has licensed to us the right to use
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these Marks (as defined below) and the right to sublicense the use of these Marks to you solely in
connection with the operation of your Mac Tools Business.

Among the trademarks licensed to you in the Franchise Agreement are the following four
principal trademarks (the “Marks”™), which are registered with United States Patent and Trademark Office
(the “USPTO™):

Mark: : “*MAC TOOLS” (Words in stylized form)

Registrafion No.: 2,193,059

Registration Date: October 6, 1998

Mark: “*MAC TOOL.S (and Design})”
Registrafion No.: 1,783,842

Registration Date: July 27, 1993

Mark: - *MACT

Registration No.: 1,974,452

Registration Date: May 21, 1996

Mark: “MAC QUALITY TOOLS and (Design)”
Registration No.: 1,347,213

Registration Date: July 9, 1985

As of the date of this disclosure document, Stanley Logistics, LLC has filed all required affidavits
needed to maintain the registrations of the Marks.

All of the Marks have been renewed at least once.
All of the Marks are registered on the Principal Register of the USPTO.

There are no currently effective material determinafions of the USPTO, Trademark Trial and
Appeal Board, or the trademark administrator of any state or any court, nor any pending infringement,
opposition or cancellation proceedings, that affects the ownership, use, or licensing of the Marks in a
manner material to the franchise.

There is no pending material federal or state court litigation regarding our use or Stanley
Logistics, LLC’s ownership rights in the Marks.

There are no currently effective third party agreements that significantly limit our right to use or
license the use of the Marks in a manner material to the franchise. As discussed above, we have been
granted a license to use and to sublicense the use of certain of the Marks through a license agreement (the
“License Agreement”) with Stanley Logistics, LLC. The License Agreement is unlikely to affect the
franchisee to any significant extent. The License Agreement’s duration 10 years from the effective date
of this Agreement and automatically is renewed from year to year unless prior to the expiration of the
preceding term, either Licensee or Licensor gives the other party at least sixty (60) days’ written notice of
its intention to terminate the Agreement. The License Agreement may be terminated only upon a breach
or default by the other party that is not cured within 60 days of written notice of the breach or default.

_ The Franchise Agreement does not obligate us to protect your use of the Marks or protect you
against claims of infringement or unfair competition arising out of your use of the Marks.
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The Franchise Agreement requires that, if you become aware of any infringement of any of the
trademarks, you must promptly notify us of such infringement. The Franchise Agreement does not
require us to take affirmative action when notified of these uses or claims,

Under the Franchise Agreement, we has the right to control any administrative proceedings or
lifigafion involving the Marks.

The Franchise Agreement does not require us to participate in your defense and/or to indemnify
you for expenses or damages if you are a party to an administrative or judicial proceeding involving a
Mark, or if a proceeding involving a Mark is resolved unfavorably to you.

Under the Franchise Agreement, if we discontinue or modify any of the Marks, we may require
you to discontinue or similarly modify your use of that Mark. )

We do not know of any superior prior rights or infringing. uses that could materially affect your
use of the Marks in the state where your franchise will be located.

ITEM 14, PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We do not currently own any patents or copyrights that are material to the Mac Tools Business.
Certain of our products may be patented. We do not currently have any pending patent applications that
are material to the Mac Tools Business. However,-we do own proprietary rights in our confidential
information and trade secrets. The Field Operations Manual and various other bulletins and directives,
which we publish to our franchisees periodically and which relate to the standards, procedures and
specifications for operafion of the Mac Tools Business, are proprietary and confidenfial. Section 3.20 of
the Franchise Agreement provides that the any information, knowledge, know-how, and techniques which
we designate as confidential will be deemed confidential for purposes of the Franchise Agreement. We
grant you a limited license to use our trade secrets and proprietary know-how relating to the operation of
your Mac Tools Business (the “Confidential Information™). You acquire no interest in the Confidential
Information provided to you other than the right to utilize it in development and operation of your Mac
Tools Business in accordance with, and during the term of, the Franchise Agreement. You agree that
certain confidential information is confidential, proprietary and a trade secret of Mac Tools and that you
will not communicate, disclose, or use for your benefit (other than for the operation of your Mac Tools
Business during the term of the Franchise Agreement) or the benefit of any other person, persons,
partnership, association, or corporation any confidential information, knowledge, or know-how
concerning the methods of operation of the Mac Tools Business which are trade secrets, including without
limitation the MBA software, your electronic business records, any electronic records which we may
provide to you, and the Field Operations Manual. You agree that you are prohibited from disclosing,
copying, duplicafing, recording, reproducing or otherwise making available the contents of the Field
. Operations Manual to any unauthorized person without our consent.

You must promptly notify us of any use of, or claim of right to, the Confidential Information and
any lifigation instituted by any third party against us or you involving the Confidential Information. The
Franchise Agreement does not require us to take affirmative action when notified of these uses or ¢laims.
We may, in our sole discretion, undertake the defense, prosecution or settlement of any litigation relating
to the Confidential Information and we have the right to control those proceedings. We have no
obligafion to indemnify you for expenses or damages in a proceeding involving the Confidential
Information. If we disconfinue or modify any of the Confidential Information, we may require you, at
your expense, to discontinue or similarly modify your use of that Confidential Information. We may
terminate your rights under the Franchise Agreement if you fail to modify or discontinue use of
Confidential Information when notified by us.
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ITEM 15. OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You are obligated under the Franchise Agreement to participate and use your best efforts in your
Mac Tools Business, but you are not required to operate the Route(s). Each Route assigned to you by
Mac Tools must be operated by either you or by one of your employees under your direct supervision and
control. There must be a minimum of one person assigned to operate each Route and you must keep Mac
Tools informed at all times of the name of the individual assigned to operate each Route,

In the event that you decide to hire an employee to operate one or more Routes, for each such
employee, you must conduct a background check and prepare a background check report. You must
submit to Mac Tools a written proposal to hire the proposed employee, including a copy of the
background check report. Mac Tools may object to your proposal (i) if any proposed employee fails to
meet Mac Tools’ qualifications, (ii) if the proposed employee was previously involved in any business or
employment relationship with Mac Tools that, in Mac Tools’ view, was not satisfactory, (iii) if the
proposed employee has within the last year been either an employee of Mac Tools or a Mac Tools’
franchisee or distributor, or if Mac Tools has evidence that the proposed employee has previously
committed (x) any act constituting fraud or misrepresentation, (y) crimes involving moral turpitude,
financial dishonesty, assault or battery, or (z) engages in behavior damaging to the Mac Tools’ name and
business reputation. Other than as disclosed above, there are no limitafions on whom you can hire as an
employee of your Mac Tools Business. An employee of your Mac Tools Business is not required to have
any amount of equity interest in the franchised business.

You and your employees are obligated under the Franchise Agreement to attend and satisfactorily
complete the initial orientation and initial training program disclosed in Item 11 of this disclosure
“document. Your employees must successfully complete any follow-up training conducted by your District
Manager. You will ensure that your employees operate any Routes assigned to them in such a manner as
will enhance Mac Tools® and your business reputation and goodwill.

Under the Franchise Agreement, you agree that certain confidential information is confidential,
proprietary and a trade secret of Mac Tools and that you will not communicate, disclose, or use for your
benefit (other than for the operafion of your Mac Tools Business during the term of the Franchise
Agreement) or the benefit of any other person, persons, partnership, association, or corporafion any
confidential information, knowledge, or know-how concerning the methods of operation of the Mac Tools
Business which are trade secrets, including without limitation the MBA software, your electronic business
records, any electronic records which we may provide to you, and the Field Operations Manual. You
must enter into a nondisclosure agreement in a form satisfactory to Mac Tools with your employees and
you must provide us with a copy of each signed agreement,

Under the Franchise Agreement, you agree that during the term of the Franchise Agreement, you
or your employee(s) may not be engaged in, connected with, or own an interest in a competing business.

Under the Franchise Agreement, you agree that during the term of the Franchise Agreement and
or one year after the termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, you may not, at any location
within three miles of any Stop on any Route assigned to you under the Franchise Agreement, engage in
any business involving the sale of products by certain of our competitors or be engaged in or have an
interest in any business that supplies products to substanfially similar customers as those under your
Franchise Agreement. You must enter into a non-competition and confidentiality agreement in a form
satisfactory to Mac Tools with your employees and you must provide us with a copy of each signed
agreement.
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ITEM 16. RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

Restrictions on the Sale of Goods: You, and, if applicable, your employees, may not sell
products other than Products or, if applicable, the SBD Products, unless the other product is obtained: (1)
by accepting a trade-in from a customer; or (2) at the request of a customer and you are unable to obtain
such product from Mac Tools within the required time period. You must make available for purchase by
the customers of your Mac Tools Business all of the Products that we offer. You must discontinue selling
or offering for sale from your Mac Tools Business any products or services that we disapprove in writing
from time to time. We have the right to add to, discontinue or modify the required products and services
at our discretion. There are no limits on this right to make changes.

Restrictions as to whom the Franchisee May Sell Goods: You must sell, and supervise the
sale by your employees, the Products and the SBD Products, if applicable, only at Stops on the Route(s)
to customers who are users of the Products and, as applicable, the SBD Products in the automotive after-
market, service stations, independent garages, car and truck dealerships, non-automotive accounts such as
- cycle shops, lawn mower shops, airports, marinas, machine shops, factories, farm implement dealers or
repairers, commercial agricultural use, and other commercial users of tools and shop equipment. You or
your employees may not knowingly sell the Products or the SBD Products, (1) to any person(s) who
isfare, or who you and/or your employees have reason to know is/are, in the business of reselling tools
and equipment or (2) to individuals who are going to use them primarily for personal, family, household
or other consumer purposes. Sales may only be made to customers located at designated Stops along the
franchisee’s assigned Route(s).

Mac Tools may enter into agreements with customers, including the government, to create local,
regional or national accounts and/or government accounts. If so, the franchisee must provide service to
such customers in compliance with such agreements.

(See Items 8 and 12 of this disclosure document for additional information.)

ITEM 17. RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements, You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Franchise Agreement

Section
Provision in Franchise Summary
Agreement
a. Length of the franchise Section 2.1 The term continues for 5 years unless terminated earlier
term under the terms of the Franchise Agreement. For Mac
Tools distributors converting to franchisees, the term of the
Franchise Agreement is 20 years.
b. Renewal or extension of | Section 2.2 Two successive renewal terms of tive years each, provided
the term that renewal conditions are met.
For Mac Tools distributors converting to franchisees, there
are no renewal terms.
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Provision

Section
in Franchise
"~ Agreement

Summary

The term renewal means that the franchise relationship is
extended for an additional term of years under our then-
current form of Franchise Agreement, which may have
materially different térms and conditions than your original
contract.

c.

Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Section 2.2

Y ou must provide Mac Tools with timely notice of
renewal; you are not in default under the Franchise
Agreement or any other agreement between you and Mac
Tools; you have been in full compliance with all material
terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement and any
other agreement between you and Mac Tools during the
term of the agreement(s); you sign the then-current form of
Franchise Agreement, you execute a general release (a
copy of the form of General Release of All Claims is
included as Exhibit Y to this discloesure document}; you
comply with then-current qualitications and training
requirements; and you agree to upgrade your truck to
conform to then-current standards.

Termination by
franchisee

Section 10.3

If we defauh under the Franchise Agreement and fail to
cure the default within 60 days after written notice from
you, you may terminate the Franchise Agreement. Any
termination of the Franchise Agreement by you which is
not related to a default by us must be preceded by at least
30 days written notice,

Termination by
franchisor without cause

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisor with cause

Article 10

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement upon your
default.

“Cause” detined —
curable defaults

Article 10

Defaults that can be cured include: misuse of the Mac
Tools System, rights, trademarks, trade names or other
actions that impair the goodwill associated with these; your
failure to make payment to us when due; your failure to
furnish us with any report or information required by the
Franchise Agreement; your failure to operate the
franchised Mac Tools Business in compliance with the
Franchise Agreement and Field Operations Manual; your
failure to perform any provisions of the Franchise
Agreement or other agreements to which you and we are
parties. '

h.

“Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Article 10

Non-curable defaults include: your bankruptcy or
insolvency (to the extent permitted by applicable law); any
fraudulent act or misrepresentation by you in connection
with any of your applications provided to us or agreements
with us; any conviction of a feleny or other crime
involving moral turpitude or tinancial dishonesty, or any
assault by you, or by one of your employees, on a
Customer or other individual at a Stop, which, in our
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Provision

Section
in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

opinion, may adversely affect our goodwill; our receipt of.
multiple or serious complaint(s) about your behavior, or
the behavior of your employee(s), while conducting the
business that breaches your Franchise Agreement and
damages MAC Tools® name and business reputation
and/or presents an unacceptable risk of claims against Mac
Tools; any failure by you or by your employee(s) to
successfully complete the initial training program required
by us to our safisfacfion; you or your employee(s) sell any
products other than (i) products manufactured by us, (ii)
products distributed by us, {iii) other products and
merchandise to'ensure Customer satisfaction if you are
unable to obtain such other products and/or merchandise
from Mac Tools within the required time, (iv) items that
are traded-in by vour Customers, or you fail to purchase
from us all products that you or your employee(s) sell
which are manufactured or distributed by us, or
competition with us by you or your employee(s) without
our consent, or your involvement in a business competitive
with us; you fail to fully utilize a computer system and the
MBA software in the business, or fail to transmit
information generated by the computer system to us, in
compliance with our requirements; you or your
employee(s) fail to participate in collection efforts as
directed by us; you fail to meet the requirements regarding
the minimum levels of service to be provided to
Customers; any disclosure by you or your employee(s) of.
confidential information; you fail to meet Mac Tools’
minimum service requirements; the abandonment of the
business by you or the failure to properly service the
Customers on the Route(s); you or your employees sell the
products, without our written consent, to customers not
assigned to your Route(s); you fail, more than twice within
a thirty day period, to pay invoices by the applicable
payment due dates or otherwise fail to make a payment
obligation to us; you fail (i} to purchase an amount of
products greater than or equal to eighty percent (80%) of.
the applicable national average during any year, multiplied
by the number of Routes assigned to you, or (ii} if
instituted by us, you fail to meet the minimum product
purchase requirement, as announced by us, during any two
full fiscal quarters of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. within a
twelve (12) month period; any default by you or your
employee(s) under the Franchise Agreement which occurs
within 6 months after written notice of another default for
the same reason; any default by you or your employee(s)
which occurs at any time after notice of three other defaults
for any reason; you fail to comply with any agreements
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Provision

Section
in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

with GreenSky regarding your participation in the
Customer Credit Program, you commit fraud with respect
to the Customer Credit Program or your agreement(s) with
GreenSky expire or are terminated; your death (regardless
of whether or not you have formed an entity to operate the
business) subject to Mac Tools then effective policy on
franchisee survivorship; your disability, to the extent that
you cannot perform your obligations for six consecutive

“months or for any six months within an eighteen month

period (if you do not have an employee to perform your
obligations); your failure to cure, within the applicable cure
pericd, any default under agreement(s) with-us, if we have
provided financing to you.

Franchisee’s obligations
on termination/non-
renewal

Article 11

Obligations include cessation of use of the Mac Tools
System and the Marks and advertising; complete de-
identification of the business, including the truck; return of
all Mac Tools Business manuals, customer lists, computer
files and other materials related to the franchised Mac
Tools Business; payment to us of all amounts owed; and
refrain from competing with us for a period of one year
following termination.

Assignment of contract
by franchisor

Section 9.1

We have the right to assign our rights and obligations
under the Franchise Agreement to anyone assuming our
obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

“Transfer” by franchisee
— defined

Secfion 9.2

A transfer includes any assignment of the Franchise
Agreement, any right, responsibility or interest granted to
the franchisee under the Franchise Agreement; the
delegation of the franchisee’s duties under the Franchise
Agreement; the transfer of all or substantially of the
franchisee’s assets; the transfer of the Mac Tools Business
to a business entity; any merger, consolidation,
reorganization, or other action involving change in the
franchisee’s ownership or control of the Mac Tools
Business; any sale, resale, pledge, assignment, transfer or
encumbrance of voting stock of, or other ownership
interest in any business entity, if the franchisee is a
business entity.

Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

Sections 9.2
and 9.3

We must approve all transfers, but we will not
unreascnably withhold our consent,

Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer

Secfions 9.2
and 9.3

All obligations to Mac Tools, including monetary
obligations, have been satisfied; you agree that your right
to receive compensation is subordinate to Mac Tools’
rights to receive any outstanding obligation, including
monetary obligation, due from you; you sign a general
release (a copy of the form of General Release of All
Claims is included as Exhibit Y to this disclosure
document); the transferee franchisee signs a written
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Provision

Section
in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

assumption and agrees to fully repair, refurbish and update
any equipment used in the Mac Tools Business in
accordance with Mac Tools” most current specifications;
the transferee franchisee meets Mac Tools’ qualifications;
the transferee franchisee signs the then-current Mac Tools
Franchise Agreement and other ancillary agreements; at
transferee franchisee’s expense, the transferee franchisee
completes the then-current initial training program.

The preceding conditions to transfer do not apply to any
transfer of the franchisee’s interest in its Mac Tools

| Business to a business entity formed by the franchisee for

the convenience of ownership of the Mac Tools Business,
but Mac Tools may condition the transfer on the following
requirements:

The transferee entity is newly organized, and its governing
documents provide that its activities are limited exclusively
to the operation of the Mac Tools Business; legal and trade
names of the entity must comply with the terms of the
Franchise Agreement; the franchisee owns all of the
ownership interest in the entity, except as required by law,
and acts as its principal executive and operating officer;
the franchisee uncondifionally guarantees the payment and
performance of the entity’s obligations to Mac Tools;

the face of each ownership certificate of the transferee
entity is conspicuously endorsed with a legend regarding
transfer of the certificate; copies of the entity’s governing
documents are provided to Mac Tools prior to transfer; and
the name of the transferee entity does not consist of or
contain the Proprietary Marks or any variation of the
Proprietary Marks.

n,

Franchisor’s right of first
refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

Section 9.4

If you receive a bona fide written offer to purchase your
rights or interests under the Franchise Agreement,
including the franchise granted to you under the Franchise
Agreement, you must submit the offer to us. For a period
of ten days, Mac Tools has the right to purchase the rights
or interest. Any purchase by Mac Tools must be
completed within 60 days of Mac Tools’ delivery to you of
written notice of its intent to exercise its right to purchase.
If Mac Tools does not exercise its right of first refusal and
if Mac Tools approves of the purchaser, you may complete
the sale to the third party purchaser. If the sale is not
completed within 120 days after delivery of the offer to
Mac Tools, you must again provide Mac Tools with the
offer to purchase, and Mac Tools may exercise its right of
first refusal.
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Provision

Section
in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

Franchisotr’s option to
purchase franchisee’s
business

Not applicable

Not applicable

Death or disability of
franchisee

Section 10.1

The Franchise Agreement automatically terminates upon
your death, or the death of the individual signing the
Franchise Agreement, regardless of whether you have
formed an entity to operate the business subject to our then
effective policy on franchisee survivorship.

Non-competition
covenants during the term
of the franchise

Section 3.9

Except for limited circumstances, during the term of the
Franchise Agreement, you must not individually nor in
conjunction with any person, firm, partnership,
corporation, limited liability company, or other third party
as principal, agent, shareholder, director, officer, employee,
consultant or guarantor or in any other manner whatsoever,
directly or indirectly carry on or be engaged in or
concerned with or interested in, financially or otherwise, or
advise in the establishment or operation of, any business
which consists substantially of the supply of products to
users in the automotive after-market, service stations,
independent garages, car and truck dealerships and to non-
automotive accounts such as cycle shops, lawn mower
shops, marinas, machine shops, factories, airports, farm
implement dealers or repairers, commercial agricultural use
and other commercial users of tools and shop equipment.

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, you or your
employee(s) may only sell (a) products manufactured by
us, (b) products distributed by us, (c) other products and
merchandise to ensure Customer satisfaction if you are

‘unable to obtain such other products and/or merchandise

from - Mac Tools within the required time, and (d) items
that are traded-in by your Customers. All products
manufactured or distributed by us that you or yout
employee(s) sell must have been purchased by you from us
unless such restrictions are invalid under the laws of the
state(s) in which you conduct your business. You or your
employee(s) will not compete with us, or with any of our
other Mac Tools franchisees, distributors, or employee
distributors, directly or indirectly, whether individually or
as an ofticer, director, shareholder, employee, agent or
aftiliate of any competitor of ours or otherwise, without our
prior written consent.

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated ot
expires

Section 11.3

Except for limited circumstances, for one year following
termination of the Franchise Agreement for any reason,
you may not, directly or indirectly, whether individually or
as an officer, director, member, partner, principal, agent, or
employee, at any location within three miles of any Stop on
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Provision

Section
in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

any assigned Route, the individual(s) signing the Franchise
Agreement may not (i) engage in any business involving
the sale of products manufactured or sold by Snap-On
Incorporated, Mateo Tools subsidiary of Danaher
Corporation, or The Cornwell Quality Tools Company, or
any parent, successor, subsidiary or affiliate of any of
them, or (ii) carry on or be engaged in or concerned with or
interested in, financially or otherwise, or advise in the
establishment or operation of, any business which consists
substantially of the supply of products to users in the
automotive after-market, service stations, independent
garages, car and truck dealerships and to non-automotive
accounts such as cycle shops, lawn mower shops, marinas,
machine shops, factories, airports, farm implement dealers
or repairers, commercial agricultural use and other
commercial users of tools and shop equipment.

Modification of the
agreement

Article 18

There may be no modifications generally unless they are in
writing and signed by both parties, but the Field Operations
Manual is subject to change by us in our sole discretion.

Integration/merger clause

Article 18

The terms of the Franchise Agreement are complete and
none of the terms may be added to, modified, superseded
or altered, except by written agreement or modification
signed by you and us. However, nothing in the Franchise
Agreement, or any related agreement, is intended to
disclaim the representations made in the franchise
disclosure document that we provided to you.

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

Article 19

Ail disputes between you and us (and any parties making
claims against us through you) will be resolved by a
mandatory three-step process. We will both attempt in
good faith to resolve promptly any controversy or claim by
negotiation. The disputing party will give the other party
written notice of the dispute, and, within 30 business days
after receipt of the notice (the “Response Date™), the
receiving party will provide a written response. The parties
will meet and/or otherwise communicate within 30 days of
the Response Date to attempt in good faith to resolve the
dispute. If the matter is not resolved within 60 business
days of the original notice of dispute or if the responding
party will not meet or communicate within 30 days of the
Response Date, either party may initiate mediation of the
matter with JAMS, The Resolution Experts. New York
New York is the location for mediation, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the parties. The mediator will be
mutually selected by the franchisee and Mac Tools, but if
one cannot be agreed to, then by the then-effective rules of
JAMS. If the matter is not resolved within 60 business
days of the institution of the mediation procedure, then the
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P rovision

Section
in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

matter will be settled by a sole arbitrator in accordance
with the then-effective JAMS Comprehensive Arbitration
Rules and Procedures and the United States Arbitration
Act, 9 U.S.C. §§ 1-16. New York New York is the
location for arbitration, unless otherwise agreed in writing
by the parties. The arbitrator will be mutually selected by
the franchisee and Mac Tools, but if one cannot be agreed
to, then by the then-effective rules of JAMS. The arbitrator
may not award punitive, exemplary, indirect, speéial,
consequential or incidental damages or any other damages
in excess of actual direct damages or in excess of any limit
on direct damages set out in the Franchise Agreement,
whichever is lower. However, both parties will be entitled
to reimbursement of costs and expenses, if any, incurred in
compelling the other party to arbitrate. Arbitration may not
be brought on a class-wide or multiple plaintiff basis. See
State Addenda.

v. Choice of forum

Section 19.2

Courts of the State of Ohio or the U.S, District Court for
the Southern District of Ohio will have sole jurisdiction
over enforcement of arbitration and/or enforcement of the
Franchise Agreement. You consent to mediation and
arbitrafion in New York, New York. See State Addenda.

w. Choice of law

Section 19.1

Ohio law applies. See State Addenda,

x. Termination of a Route

Section 10.4

If the Franchise Agreement is terminated, all rights
respecting each Route are automatically terminated. If you
or your employee(s) breach the Franchise Agreement
relating to a particular Route, Mac Tools may terminate the
Agreement or terminate your rights regarding the particular
Route. Ifyou fail to service one or more of your Routes
for a cumulative period of more than 30 days, Mac Tools
may terminate your rights regarding that particular Route.
Upon termination of any Route, you must, with respect to
that Route, stop the use of the Mac Tools System and the
Marks and advertising; de-identify of the business,
including the truck used in connection with the Route;
return of all Mac Tools Business manuals, customer lists,
computer files and other materials related to the Route, pay
to us of all amounts owed with respect to the Route; and -
refrain from competing with us,

y. Purchase of Inventory

Section 11,2

Within 15 days following the expiration or termination of
the Franchise Agreement, Mac Tools may but is not
obligated to purchase all or any portion of your inventory
of the Products and/or the SBD Products for the following
prices: for truck-worn inventory, in an amount equal to
fifty percent (50%) of the most recent franchisee net
price(s) for such inventory, and, for new inventory in
restockable condition, in an amount equal to ninety percent
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Section
in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

(90%) of the most recent franchisee net price(s) for such
inventory, Discontinued inventory may not be returned to
Mac Tools and you will not receive a credit for
discontinued inventory.

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Purchase Agreement

Provision

Section
in Purchase
Agreement

Summary

a. Length of the franchise
term

Not applicable

Not applicable

b. Renewal or extension of
the term

Not applicable

Not applicable

The term renewal means that the franchise relationship is

extended for an additional term of years under our then-
current form of Franchise Agreement, which may have
materially different terms and conditions than your original
contract.

¢. Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Not applicable

Not applicable

d. Termination by
franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

e. Termination by
franchisor without cause

Not applicable

Not applicable

f  Termination by
franchisor with cause

Not applicable

Not applicable

g. “Cause” defined —
curable defauhs

Not applicable

Not applicable

h. *“Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Not arpplicable

Not applicable

i.  Franchisee’s obligations
on termination/non-
renewal

Not applicable

Not applicable

Sectién 9.1

J.  Assignment of contract We have the right to assign our rights and obligations
by franchisor under the Purchase Agreement to anyone assuming our
obligations under the Purchase Agreement.
k. “Transfer” by franchisee | Section 9.2 You may not assign the Purchase Agreement or any right,

— defined

responsibility or interest granted by the Purchase
Agreement without our written consent. You also may not
delegate the duties under the Purchase Agreement, transfer
all or substantially all of your assets, incorporate your
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Section
in Purchase
Agreement

Summary

business (if you are not already conducting the business
through a corporation) or otherwise organize the business
as any other form gf entity, or participate in any merger,
consolidation, reorganization, or other action involving any
change in the undersigned individual’s ownership or
control of your business, without our prior written consent.

Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

Section 9.2

We have the right to approve the transferee which may be
held for any bona fide business reason.

. Coendifions for franchisor

approval of transfer

Section 9.2

We have the right to approve the transferee which may be
held for any bona fide business reason.

Franchisor’s right of first
refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

Not applicable

Not applicable

Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s
business

Not applicable

Not applicable

Death or disability of
franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

Non-competition
covenants during the term
of the franchise

Not applicable

Not applicable

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated or

Not applicable

Not applicable

expires

Modification of the Article 25 There may be no modifications generally unless they are in
agreement writing and signed by both parties.

Integration/merger clause | Article 25 The terms of the Purchase Agreement are complete and

none of the terms may be added to, modified, superseded
or altered, except by written agreement or modification
signed by you and us.

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

Articles {3 and
14 _

All disputes between you and us (and any parties making
claims against us through you) will be resolved by a
mandatory three-step process. We will both attempt in
good faith to resolve promptly any controversy or claim by
negotiation. The disputing party will give the other party
written notice of the dispute, and, within 30 business days
after receipt of the notice (the “Response Date”), the
receiving party will provide a written response. The parties |
will meet and/or otherwise communicate within 30 days of
the Response Date to attempt in good faith to resolve the
dispute. If the matter is not resolved within 60 business
days of the original notice of dispute or if the responding
party will not meet or communicate within 30 days of the
Response Date, either party may initiate mediation of the
matter with JAMS, The Resclution Experts. If the matter
is not resolved within 60 business days of the institution of
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Provision

Section
in Purchase
Agreement

Summary

the mediation procedure, then the matter will be settled by
arbitration in accordance with the United States Arbitration
Act, 9 U.S.C. §§ 1-16 and the arbitration must, unless
otherwise agreed in writing, take place in Columbus, Ohio.
The arbitrator may not award punitive, exemplary, indirect,
special, consequential or incidental damages or any other
damages in excess of actual direct damages or in excess of
any limit on direct damages set out in the Franchise
Agreement, whichever is lower. However, both parties
will be entitled to reimbursement of costs and expenses, if
any, incurred in compelling the other party to arbitrate.

v, ‘Choice of forum

Section 14.4

Courts of the State of Ohio or any U.S. District Court
located in Ohio will have sole jurisdiction over
enforcement of arbitration and/or enforcement of the
Purchase Agreement

w. Choice of law

Section 13.1

Ohio law applies.

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Security Agreement

Provision

Section
in Security
Agreement

Summary

a. Length of the franchise
term

Not applicable

Not applicable

b. Renewal or extension of
the term

Not applicable

Not appliéable

The term renewal means that the franchise relationship is
extended for an additional term of years under our then-
current form of Franchise Agreement, which may have
materially different terms and conditions than your original
contract.

¢. Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Not applicable

Not applicable

d. Termination by
franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

e. Termination by
franchisor without cause

Not applicable

Not applicable

f. Termination by
franchisor with cause

Article 3

We may immediately terminate the Security Agreement
and pursue any remedies available to us under the Security
Agreement upon your default.

g. “Cause” detined —
curable defaults

Not applicable

Not applicable
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Provision

Section
in Security
Agreement

Summary

h.

*Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Not applicable

Non-curable defaults include: your failure to pay when
due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, any part of the
indebtedness owed to us; your failure or neglect to
perform, keep or observe any other term, provision,
condition, covenant, warranty or representation contained
in the Security Agreement or in any other agreement which
you at any time enter into for the purpose of providing us
with additional security for the payment of any portion of
the indebtedness; any warranty, representation or
statement, report or certificate made or furnished te us by
you or on your behalf that is not true and correct in any
material respect when made or furnished; the occurrence of
any material uninsured damage to or uninsured loss, theft
or destruction of any of the collateral; the death of you (if a
natural person) or (if you are an entity) the death of any
individual executing the Security Agreement; the
dissolution, termination of existence of business,
insolvency, business failure, appointment of a receiver for
any part of the property of, or the assignment for the
benefit of creditors by you or any guarantor or surety for
you; commencement of any bankruptey, receivership,
reorganization, insolvency or liquidation proceeding by or
against you or a guarantor or surety for you; we, in good
faith, deem ourselves insecure al any lime for any
commercially sound reason; you cease to conduct your
business as it is currently being operated or are enjoined,
restrained or in any way prevented by court order from
conducting all or any material part of your business affairs;
you become insolvent or are generally not paying your

. debts as they mature or the making of any transfer by you

in an attempt to defraud creditors or any assignment by you
for the benefit of your creditors; any default by you under,
or termination of, any lease relating to any motor vehicle
from which you sell products or any other property in
which all or any part of the collateral may be stored; any
repossession of any motor vehicle from which you sell
products or any other property in which the collateral is
stored; any transfer of all or substantially all of your assets,
any incorporation of your business (or other organization
of the business as any other form of entity) without our
prior written permission, or any merger, consolidation,
reorganization, or other action involving any change in the
ownership or control of your business; the rendering of any
judgment against you in the amount of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000.00) or more, or the initiation of any
proceeding or the rendering of any judgment affecting the
collateral which seeks to establish, attach, or foreclose any
lien on the collateral, or on any part thereof, or which we
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Provision

Section
in Security
Agreement

Summary

determine may affect our security interest in the collateral;
and any default by you in, or termination of, the Franchise
Agreement or the Purchase Agreement.

Franchisee’s obligations
on termination/non-
renewal

Not applicable

Not applicable

j. Assignment of contract Section 10.3 We have the right to assign our rights undér the Security

by franchisor Agreement to anyone,

k. “Transfer” by franchisee | Notapplicable | Not applicable

-- detined

1. Franchisor approval of Not applicable | Not applicable

transfer by franchisee '

m. Conditions for franchisor | Not applicable | Not applicable

approval of transfer

n. Franchisor’s right of first | Not applicable | Not applicable

refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business
0. Franchisor’s epticn to Not applicable | Not applicable
purchase franchisee’s
business
p. Death or disability of Article 3 The Security Agreement automatically terminates upon
franchisee your death, or the death of the individual signing the
Security Agreement, regardless of whether you have
formed an entity to operate the business.
q- Non-competition Not applicable | Not applicable
covenants during the term
of the franchise

r. Non-competition Not applicable | Not applicable

covenants after the
franchise is terminated or
expires

s.  Modification of the Section 10.2 There may be no modifications generally unless they are in

agreement writing and signed by both parties.

t. Integration/merger clause | Secfion 10.2 The terms of the Security Agreement are complete and
none of the terms may be added to, moditied, superseded
or altered, except by written agreement or medification
signed by you and us.

u. Dispute resolution by Not applicable | Net applicable

arbitration or mediation
v. Choice of forum Not applicable | Not applicable

w. Choice of law

Article 5

Ohio law applies.
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This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You

should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Government Franchise Agreement

Provision

Section
in
Government
Franchise
Agreement

Summary

Length of the franchise
term

Not applicable

Not applicable

Renewal or extension of:
the term

Not applicable

Not applicable

The term renewal means that the franchise relationship is
extended for an additional term of.years under our then-
current form of:Franchise Agreement, which may have
materially different terms and conditions than your original
contract.

Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Not applicable

Not applicable

Terminafion by
franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisor without cause

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisor with cause

Article 7

We may terminate the Government Franchise Agreement
upon your default with 30 days prior written notice (or
such longer period as applicable state law may require) and
failure by you to cure the default within the 30 days (or
longer) period.

“Cause” defined —
curable defaults

Not applicable

Not applicable

“Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Article 7

Non-curable defaults include: your faiiure to adhere to the
terms of the Government Franchise Agreement in
accepting or fulfilling any order under the Government
Franchise Agreement; your failure to maintain the records
and reports identified in the Government Franchise
Agreement; your failure to make any report identified in
the Government Franchise Agreement; and your failure to
make any records and reports identified in Government
Franchise Agreement available for examination or audit.

Franchisee’s obligations
on termination/non-
renewal

Not applicable

Not applicable

Assignment of contract
by franchisor

Not applicable

Not applicable

“Transfer” by franchisee
—~ defined

Not applicable

Not applicable

Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable
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Provision

Section
in
Government
Franchise
Agreement

Summary

m. Conditions for franchisor

approval of transfer

Not applicable

Not applicable

Franchisor’s right of first
refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

Not applicable

Not applicable

Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s
business

Not applicable

Not applicable

Death or disability of
franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

Non-competition
covenants during the term
of the franchise

Not applicable

Not applicable

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated or
expires

Not applicable

Not applicable

Modification of the

‘agreement

Not applicable

Not applicable

Integration/merger clause

Not applicable

Not applicable

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

Not applicable

Not applicable

V.

Choice of forum

Not applicable

Not applicable

w. Choice of law

Not applicable

Not applicable

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Mobile Business Assistant Software License Agreement

Provision

Section
in Mobile
Business
Assistant
Software

License

Agreement

Summary

a.

Length of the franchise
term

Article 2

The term continues for the same term as the Franchise

Agreement between you and us.
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Provision

Section
in Mobile
Business
Assistant
Software
License

Agreement

Summary

Renewal or extension of
the term

1

Not applicable

Not applicable

The term renewal means that the franchise relationship is
extended for an additional term of years under our then-
current form of Franchise Agreement, which may have
materially different terms and conditions than your original
contract.

Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisor without cause

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisor with cause

Article 2

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement immediately
upon your default.

“Cause” defined —
curable defauhs

Not applicable

Not applicable

“Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Article 2

Non-curable defaults include: you fail to comply with any
of the terms and conditions of the Mobile Business
Assistant Software License Agreement or any license
granted under the Mobile Business Assistant Software
License Agreement, which default is not cured within
thirty (30) days after we have given written notice of such
default to you, or the term of the Mobile Business Assistant
Software License Agreement or of any license granted
expires or terminates for any reason; or an event of default
occurs under any other agreement between you and us,
which default is not cured within any applicable cure
period; or you cease to be an authorized Mac Tools
franchisee for any reason.

Franchisee’s obligations
on termination/non-
renewal

Article 2

Return to us the original and all copies of the MBA
Software and all related documentation, erase the MBA
Software from all storage media in your possession upon
which it has been stored, return to us any computer
equipment loaned by us in connection with the MBA
Software, and certify in writing to us that each such action
has been taken.

Assignment of contract
by franchisor

Not applicable

Not applicable

“Transfer” by franchisee
— defined

Not applicable

Not applicable

71




Provision

Section
in Mobile
Business
Assistant
Software

License

Agreement

Summary

Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer

Not applicable

Not applicable

Franchisor’s right of first
refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

Not applicable

Not applicable

Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s
business

Not applicable

Not applicable

Death or disability of
franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

Non-competition
covenants during the term
of the franchise

Not applicable

Not applicable

Non-competition
covenants after the

- franchise is terminated or

expires

Not applicable

Not applicable

There may be no modifications generally unless they are in
writing and signed by both parties.

s.  Modification of the
agreement

Article 14

The terms of the Mobile Business Assistant Software
License Agreement are complete and none of the terms
may be added to, modified, superseded or altered, except
by written agreement or modification signed by you and us.

t. Integration/merger clause | Article 14

u. Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

Not applicable | Not applicable

v. Choice of forum Not applicable | Not applicable

w. Choice of law Article 12 Ohio law applies.
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This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements, You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Extended Trade Program Terms and Conditions Agreement

Provision

Section
in Extended
Trade
Program
Terms and
Conditions
Agreement

Summary

Length of the franchise
term

Paragraphs }
and 2

We determine the period of time during which your option
to purchase products under the extended trade program
begins and ends, in our discretion. The total number of
weekly payments required under the extended trade
program is determined by us, in our discretion.

Renewal or extension of
the term

Not applicable

Not applicable

The term renewal means that the franchise relationship is
extended for an additional term of years under our then-
current form of Franchise Agreement, which may have
materially different terms and conditions than your original
contract.

Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisor without cause

Not applicable

Not applicable

Termination by
franchisor with cause

Not applicable

Not applicable

“Cause” defined —
curable defaults

Not applicable

Not applicable

“Cause” defined ~
non-curable defaults

Not applicable

Not applicable

Franchisee’s obligations
on termination/non-
renewal

Not applicable

Not applicable

Assignment of contract
by franchisor

Not applicable

Not applicable

“Transfer” by franchisee
- defined

Not applicable

Not applicable

Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

Not applicable

Not applicable

. Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer

Not applicable

Not applicable
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Section
" in Extended
Trade
Provision Program Summary
Terms and
Conditions
Agreement

n. Franchisor’s right of first | Not applicable | Not applicable
refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

0. Franchisor’s option to Not applicable | Not applicable
purchase franchisee’s
business

p. Death or disability of Not applicable | Not applicable
franchisee :

q- Non-competition Not applicable | Not applicable

covenants during the term
of the franchise

r. Non-competition Not applicable | Not applicable
covenants after the
franchise is terminated or

expires
s. Modification of the Not applicable | Not applicable
agreement
t. Integration/merger clause | Not applicable | Not applicable
u. Dispute resolution by Not applicable | Not applicable
arbitrafion or mediation
v. Choice of forum Not applicable | Not applicable
w. Choice of law Not applicable | Not applicable

ITEM 18. PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote the Mac Tools franchise.

ITEM 19, FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The Federal Trade Commission’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide inforination
about the actual or potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets (Mac
Tools Businesses), if there is a reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in
the disclosure document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19
may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet {Mac Tools
Business) you are considering buying; or {2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this
ltem 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location (for a
particular route) or under particular circumstances.

Those Mac Tools Businesses which were in operation for all of calendar year 2010 had total

purchases of products from Mac Tools during calendar year 2010 in the amounts noted below. The
amounts of purchases noted below represent the prices paid by franchisees and distributors to Mac Tools
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for product inventory, Mac Tools sells products to its franchisees and distributors at discounts from the
recommended prices at which sales of products to customers are made. Franchisees and distributors set
the prices at which they sell products to their customers. The information presented below includes
information for distributors within the United States generally and for franchisees located within
Kentucky. No information regarding Mac Tools employee distributors is included below.

Total Purchases of Products Number of Franchisees and Percentage of all
from Mac Tools during - Distributors Reporting Total Franchisees and
2010 Purchases Within This Category Distributors

Less than $50,000 55 6.1%
$50,000 to $74,999 75 8.3%
$75,000 to $99,999 105 11.6%
$100,000 to $124,999 122 13.5%
$125,000 to $149,999 122 13.5%
$150,000 to $174,999 95 10.5%
$175,000 to $199,999 88 9.7%
$200,000 to $224,999 70 7.7%
$225,000 to $249,999 54 6.0%
$250,000 to $274,999 33 3.6%
$275,000 to $299,999 24 2.6%
$300,000 to $324,999 10 1.1%
$325,000 to $349,999 12 _ 1.3%

~$350,000 to $374,999 7 0.8%
$375,000 to $399,999 9 1.0%
$400,000 to $424,999 4 0.4%
$425,000 to $449,999 5 0.6%
$450,000 to $474,999 2 0.2%
$475,000 to $499,999 4 0.4%
$500,000 to $524,999 | 0.1%
$525,000 to $549,999 0 0.0%
$550,000 to $574,999 | 0.1%
$575,000 to $599,999 0 0.0%
Over $600,000 6 0.7%
TOTAL 904 100%

These actual preduct purchase totals are of all Mac Tools distributors and franchisees who were in
business during all of calendar year 2010. They should not be considered as the actual or probable
total product purchases that will be made by you. Some Mac Tools Businesses have purchased this
amount, Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance that you’ll purchase as much

product inventory, and Mac Tools does not represent that you can expect to attain these amounts of
purchases.

Other than the preceding tinancial performance representation, Mac Tools does not make any
tmanCIaI performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make
any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we
may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance
information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor's management by
contacting Mac Tools, Attn: On-Boarding Manager, 505 North Cleveland Avenue, Westerville, Ohio
43082, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.
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Substantiation of the data used in preparing the information above will be made available to you
upon reasonable demand; provided, however, that this shall not be construed to require disclosure of the
identity of a specific franchisee or to require the release of franchisee-specific data without the consent of
the franchisee.

ITEM 20. OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

As previously disclosed, we began offering Mac Tools franchises in Kentucky on
March 31, 2007, and we began offering Mac Tools franchises in states other than Kentucky as of the date
of this disclosure document. A list of our franchisees and the addresses and business telephone numbers is
attached as Exhibit S to this disclosure document. Other than a small number of employee distributors
handling special assignments, Mac Tools does not operate company-owned mobile tool distribution
businesses that are similar to the Mac Tools Business disclosed in this disclosure document, and Mac
Tools does not intend to establish additional company-owned Mac Tools businesses.

Following is information on franchised and company-owned Mac Tools Businesses as of the end
of 2008, 2009 and 2010 fiscal years of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc..

ITEM 20 TABLE NO. 1
SYSTEMWIDE OUTLET SUMMARY
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2008/2009/2010"

Column 1 Column 2 " Column 3 Column 4 Column 8
Qutlets at the " Qutlets at the Net
Outlet Type Year Start of the Year | End of the Year Change

Franchised 2008 3 6 -2
2009 6 3 +2

2010 3 3 0

Company-owned 2008 2 2 0
' 2009 2 2 0

2010 2 2 0

Total Qutlets 2008 10 3 -2
2009 3 10 +2

2010 10 10 0

" As of the date of this disclosure document Mac Tools had 1,002 traditional Mac Tools distributorships.
The traditional Mac Tools distributorships are not franchises, in that no franchise fee was required to be
paid to Mac Tools by the distributors. Otherwise, the traditional distributorship business is similar to the
franchised Mac Tools Business disclosed in this disclosure document. A current list of Mac Tools
distributors and their addresses and business telephone numbers is included as Exhibit X to this disclosure
document.
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Following is information on transfers of franchised Mac Tools Businesses to new owners (other
than to Mac Tools) as of the end of the 2008, 2009 and 2010 fiscal years of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.:

ITEM 20 TABLE NO. 2
TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS
(OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2008/200%/2010

Column 1

Column 2 Column 3
State Year Number of Transfers
Kentucky 2008 0
2009 0
2010 0
Total 2008 0
2009 0
2010 0

Following is information on franchised Mac Tools Businesses as of the end of the 2008, 2009 and
2010 fiscal years of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.:

ITEM 20 TABLE NO. 3
STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2008/2009/2010

Column | Column Column Column | Column Column Column Column Column

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 3 9

Ceased Outlets .

Outlets at Re-acquired ;| Operations | at end of

Start of Qutlets Term- Non- by Other the
State Year Year QOpened inations | Renewals | Franchisor Reasons Year*

Kentucky 2008 3 0 2 0 0 0 6
2009 6 3 0 0 0 ] 8
2010 3 0 0 0 0 0 8
Total - 2008 8 0 2 0 0 0 6
' 2009 6 3 X 0 0 ] 3
2010 3 0 0 0 0 0 8

* The fiscal year ends for Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (formerly known as The Stanley ‘Works) were
January 1, 2011, January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009,
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Company-Owned Mac Tools Businesses

Following is information on the company-owned Mac Tools businesses as of the end of the 2008,
2009 and 2010 fiscal years of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.:

ITEM 20 TABLE NO. 4
STATUS OF COMPANY-OWNED OUTLETS
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2008/2009/2010

Column 1l | Column2 | Column3 | Columnd | ColumnS | Columné | Column?7 } Column 8
Outlets
Re-
Qutlets at acquired Qutlets Outlets at
Start of Qutlets From Qutlets Sold to End of

State Year Year Opened .| Franchisee | Closed | Franchisee | the Year
Totals 2008 2 0 0 0 0 2
2009 2 0 0 0 0 2
2010 2 0 0 0 0 2

Other than a small number of employee distributors handling special assignments, Mac Tools
does not operate company-owned mobile tool distribution businesses that are similar to the Mac Tools

Business disclosed in this disclosure document.

For example, Mac Tools has assigned employee
distributors to each of a large theme park location and a location at which several NASCAR racing teams
maintain facilities. Mac Tools also makes assignments of open, unassigned Routes to be operated by one
of its District Manager trainees on a temporary basis for training purposes. Mac Tools does not intend to
establish additional company-owned Mac Tools businesses.

Following is information on our projection for the sale of Mac Tools franchises and the opening
of company-owned Mac Tools Businesses during Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.’s 2011 fiscal year
(January 2, 2011 through December 30, 2011):

ITEM 20 TABLE NO., 5
PROJECTED OPENINGS AS OF THE DATE OF THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
State Franchise Agreements Projected New Projected New
Signed but Outlet Not | Franchised Outlet in Company-Owned
Opened the Next Fiscal Year Qutlets in the Next
Fiscal Year
Alabama 0 5 0
Alaska 0 1 0
Arizona 0 5 0
Arkansas 0 2 0
California 0 50 0
Colorado 0 10 0
Connecticut 0 3 0
Delaware 0 | 0
District of Columbia 0 0 0
Florida 0 22 0
Georgia 0 7 0
Hawaii 0 2 0
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Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

State Franchise Agreements Projected New Projected New

Signed but Outlet Not | Franchised Outlet in Company-Owned
Opened the Next Fiscal Year Outlets in the Next

Fiscal Year

Idaho

Illinois

Indiana

lowa

Kansas

Kentucky

Louisiana

Maine

Maryland

[« W EN (SR LAY JUS J NN

Massachusetts

Michigan

—_— )

Minnesota

Mississippi

<

Missouri

Montana

Nebraska

Nevada

New Hampshire

New Jersey

New Mexico

New York

North Carolina

North Dakota

Ohio

Oklahoma

Oregon

Pennsylvania

Rhode Island

South Carolina

South Dakota

Tennessee

Texas

Utah

Vermont

—i_ ) _lra o —lw
e ST E - RV Y LV e RN VY g 1] bl P IS EE-N TS TSI LN LN

Virginia

Washington 10

West Virginia

Wisconsin

(o} Lonll For) [or) Do) Lan) Kol Dok Fon ) Rar) Fonl Dee) Rl fon) Fon) fen) fae) fon) fand fon) fon ) Do) fan ) fand [ ] fun ) Dan ) fun} vl fond fan) Don] fon) Fan] Lo ) Fan ) Dan) B ) Lan)
o(o|lo|loio|o|o|o|o|o|oiIo|o|o|o|C|O|O|O|IC|O|O|C|C|O|IoIC|C|o|o oo ||l

Wyoming

Total 0 391 0

The number of projections for franchised outlets in our next fiscal yéar include existing Mac Tools
distributors who convert their distributorship to a franchise, as well as new franchised outlets.
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Following is a list of the names, cities and states and current business telephone numbers (or, if
unknown, the last known home telephone number) of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated,
canceled, not renewed or who otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the
Franchise Agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., or
who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks before the issuance date of this disclosure document:

None,

Following is a list of the names, cities and states and current business telephone numbers (or, if
unknown, the last known home telephone number) of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated,
canceled, not renewed or who otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the
Franchise Agreement from the date of the most recently completed fiscal year end of Stanley Black &
Decker, Inc, until the date of this disclosure documerit; ‘

Clayton Harrison
Park City, KY 42160
(270)453-3432

Gregory Kimble
Owensboro, KY 42303
(270) 570-4529

Dewey Nicholson
London, KY 40741
(606) 862-0752

Following is a list of the names, cities and states and current business telephone numbers of
franchisees that signed a Franchise Agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year of Stanley
Black & Decker, Inc. but have not yet opened a franchised outlet:

None.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed in the future to other buyers
when you leave the franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, no current or former Mac Tools franchisees have signed
agreements with confidentiality clauses that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as a
franchisee in the Mac Tools franchise system.

As of the date of this disclosure document, there is no trademark-specific franchisee organization
associated with the Mac Tools” franchise system that must be disclosed in this disclosure document.

ITEM 21. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In March 2010, The Stanley Works acquired all of the stock of The Black & Decker Corporation,
which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Stanley Works. Immediately following the acquisition,
The Stanley Works changed its name to Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. Mac Tools is a division of Stanley
Black & Decker, Inc. The audited financial statéments of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., for the fiscal
years ending on January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, and the audited financial statements of The Stanley
Works (now known as Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.) for the fiscal year ending on January 3, 2009, and
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the unaudited financial statements of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. dated July 2, 2011, are included in this
disclosure document as Exhibit A.

ITEM 22. CONTRACTS

Attached to this disclosure document are copies of the following agreements and forms relating to
the Mac Tools franchise: '

Apgreements:

Exhibit B. Mac Tools Franchise Agreement

Exhibit C. Confidentiality Agreement and Acknowledgment of Ownership

Exhibit D. Conversion Addenda to Mac Tools Franchise Agreement

Exhibit E, Mac Tools Purchase Agreement

Exhibit F. Mac Tools Security Agreement

Exhibit G, Mac Tools Franchisee Business Entity Worksheet

Exhibit H. Certificates of Resolutions

Exhibit I. Guaranty of Payment and Performance of an Entity Mac Tools Franchisee
Exhibit J. Guaranty of Indebtedness of a Mac Tools Franchisee

Exhibit K. Insurance Loss Payee Form )

Exhibit L. Mac Tools Pay By Phone Form

Exhibit M. Mobile Business Assistant Software License Agreement

Exhibit N. Mac Tools Government Franchise Agreement

Exhibit O. Mac Tools Direct Debit Authorization Agreement

Exhibit P, Mac Tools Extended Trade Program (ETP) Terms and Conditions Agreement
Exhibit Q. Rider to Mac Tools Franchise Agreement

Exhibit R. Investor Guarantor Acknowledgment

Exhibit V. Acknowledgment of Receipt of FTC Consent Orders
Exhibit W. State Addenda
Exhibit Y. General Release of All Claims

ITEM 23, RECEIPTS

The last pages of this disclosure document are two copies of a detachable document
acknowledging your receipt of this disclosure document. Please detach from this disclosure document
and sign one of the two copies of this Receipt and return it directly to us at our offices at the address listed
below. If these pages or any other pages or exhibits are missing from your copy, please contact the Mac
Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. at this address or phone number:

Mac Tools Division of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.
505 North Cleveland Avenue

Westerville, Ohio 43082

Attention: On-Boarding Manager

(614) 755-7000

www mactools.com
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EXHIBIT A

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF STANLEY BLACK & DECKER. INC



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company"} as of January 1,
2011 and January 2, 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareowners' equity, and cash flows for each of the three
fiscal years in the period ended January 1, 201 1. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at ltem 5. These
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairiy, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company
al January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the
pericd ended January 1, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set
forth therein,

As discussed in Note A to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
141(R), Business Combinations (codified in ASC 805, Business Combinations), effective for the Company on January 4, 2009.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of January 1, 201 |, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 18, 2011 expressed an ungualified opinion
thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young, LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
February 18, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Sharcholders of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.

We have audited Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (the "Company") intemnal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2011,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report on Intermal
Co;trol over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit. .

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating e ffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, p_rojcclio_n_s of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. '

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2011, based on
the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Company as of January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
shareowners' equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 1, 2011 and our report dated February 18, 2011
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emnst & Young, LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
February t8, 2011



Consolidated Statements of Operations

Fiscal years ended January 1, 2011, January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009

(In Millions of Dollars, except per share amounts)

Net Sales

Costs and Expenses

Cost of sales

Selling, general and administrative
Provision for doubtful accounts

Other-net

Restructuring charges and asset impairments
(Gain on debt extinguishment

Interest income

Interest expense

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes
Income taxes on continuing operations

Earnings from continuing operations
Less: Net earnings attributable to non-controlling interests

Net earnings from continuing operations atiributable te Stanley Black & Decker, Inc

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes
Income taxes (benefit) on discontinued operations

Net (loss) eamings from discontinued operations
Net Earnings Attributable te Stanley Black & Decker, In¢
Basic earnings per share of common stock:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Total basic earnings per share of commen stock

Diluted earnings per share of common stock:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Total diluted earnings per share of common stock

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,

A-03

2010 2009 2008
58,409.6 $3,737.1 $4,426.2
$5,460.8 $2,228.8 $2,754.8

2,156.6 1,014.4 1,090.0
12,3 14.0 17.6
199.6 139.1 111.6
242.6 40.7 85.5
- (43.8) {9.4)
(9.4) @a.1) (9.2)
110.0 63.7 92.1
S8,172.5 $3,453.8 $4,133.0
237.1 2833 2932
389 54.5 72.5
$198.2 $2288 5220.7
— 2.0 1.7
198.2 226.8 219.0
— (5.8) "132.8

— (3.3) 449
$— $(2.5) §87.9
$198.2 $224.3 $306.9
$1.34 $2.84 £$2.77
—_ (0.03) 111
$1.34 $2.81 $388
$1.32 $2.82 $2.74
— (0.03) 1.10
$1.32 $2.79 $3.84




Consolidated Balance Sheets
January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010
{Millions of Dollars)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and notes receivable, net
Inventories, net

Prepaid expenses

Other cwrent assets

Total Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Goodwill

Customer Relationships, net
Trade Names, net

Other Intangible Assets, net
Qther Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareowners' Equity
Current Liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt

Deferred Taxes

Post-retirement Benefits

Other Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes R and §)

Shareowners' Equity
Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. Shareowners' Equity
Preferred stock, without par value:

Authorized and unissued 10,000,000 shares
Common stock, par value $2.50 per share:

Authorized 300,000,000 shares in 2010 and 200,000,000 shares in 2009
[ssued 176,091,572 shares in 2010 and 92,343,410 shares in 2009
Retained eamings
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
ESOP

Less: cost of common stock in treasury (9,744,142 shares in 2010 and 11,864,786 shares in 2009)
Stanley Black & Decker, Inc, Shareowners' Equity

Non-controlling interests

Total Shareowners' Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareowners' Equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2010 2009
$1,745.4 $400.7
1,417.1 532.0
1,272.0 366.2
224.0 73.2
157.1 39.8
4,815.6 1,411.9
1,166.5 575.9
59419 1,818.4
889.8 413.4
1,839.4 331.1
143.0 31.9
343.2 186.5
$15,1394 _ $4.769.1
51.6 $90.4
416.1 208.0
998.6 410.1
1,325.9 483.5
2,742.2 1,i92.0
3,018.1 1,084.7
901.1 120.4
642.8 136.7
765.5 223.8
4407 2309
2,301.8 2,295.5
48857 126.7
(116.3) (76.5)
(74.5) (80.8)
7,437.4 2,495.8
(420.4) (509.7)
7,017.0 1,986.1
52.7 25.4
7,069.7 2,011.5
$15,139.4 _ $4.769.1




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fiscal years ended January I, 2011, January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009
(Millions of Dollars)

2010 2009 2008
Operatiag Acdvities:
Net earnings . $198.2 $226. 3308.6
Less: net eamnings atiributable 10 non-controlling interests — 2.0 1.7
Net eamings anributable 10 Stanley Black & Decker, Inc £198.2 $224.3 £306.9
Adjustments to reconcile net eamings to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 348.7 200, 183.0
Inventory step-up amortization . 1735 — -
Pre-tax loss (gain) on szle of businesses — 1.6 (126.5)
Asset impairments 24.1 6.8 17.1
Stock-based compensation expense 85.1 20.7 13.9
Prgvision for doubtful accounis : 123 14.0 17.6
Debt-fair vatue amortizasion 3719 — —
Other non-cash items ) @.n (9.4) 36.9
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: .
Accounts receivable 225 130.5 129.1
Enventories 353 152.8 26.5
Accounts payable 73 57.3) (32.9)
Accrued expenses 529 {62.0) 12.7
[ncome taxes (25.0) 16.2 (11.3)
Other current assets 18.7 (24.8) (12.7)
Long-term receivables (14.6) .o(244) - {16.6)
Defined benefit liabilities (276.9) (17.4) (22.9)
Cther long-term liabilities 28.0 6.7 342
Oher 17.2 (25.6) (32.4)
Net cash provided by opersting activities 739.3 3394 516.6
Investing Activities: .
Capital expenditures (165.4) (72.9) (94.6)
Capinalized sofiware (20.1) (20.5) (45.2)
Proceeds from sales of assets 1.0 .5 43
Business acquisitions (550.3) (24.3) (575.0)
Proceeds from sales of businesses — —_— 204.6
Cash acquired from Black & Decker 9494 — —_
Undesignated interest mte swap tenninations 1 — -
Proceeds from net investment hedge settlements 43.9 — 19.1
Payments on net investment hedge settlements (29.0) _ —_
Other — — 232
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 269.6 (115.2) (464.6)
Financing Activities:
Paymenis on long-tenn deb: (515.8) (64.5) (44.9)
Proceeds from debt issuance 1,013.2 — 249.7
Net repayments on short-term borrowings (263.6) (119.9) (73.5)
Debt issuance costs (3.4) — (L.%)
Interest rate swap terminations — — 16.2
Stock purchase contract fees n (15.2) (1.l
Purchase of common stock for treasury (4.9) (2.6) (103.3)
Net premium paid for equity option (50.3) 9.2) —_—
Termination of forward starting inmerest rate swap (48.4) — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 396.1 61.2 19.2
Cash dividends on common stock (201.6) (103.6) (99.0)
Other — 48 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 313.6 (249.0) (48.2)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2.2 13.9 (32.6)
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13447 189.1 (28.8)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year . 400.7 2116 240.4
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 51,7454 $400.7 52116

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance December 29, 2007
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings
Less: Red ble intetest ified 10 Jzabilities
Currency translation adjusienent and othes
Cash Now hedpe. nel afl tax
Change in pension, net of tax
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared — $1.26 per shar
Cash dividends declared lo non-contralling interests
Issuance of cammon stock
Repurchase of cammon slock (2,240,45) shares)
Tax benelil on canvertibls notes hedge
Eguity unit repurchase
Other, stock-based compensalion relaled
Tax benefil related lo siock options exercised
ESOP and related lax Benefit

Balance Januaiy 3, 2009
Comprehensive income;
Net earnings .
Currency translation adjustment and other
Change in pension, net of lax
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared — $1.30 per share
Issuance of common stock
Repurchase ol common stock (62,33h shares)
Net premium paid and settlement of equity option
Farmation of joinl venture
Other, stock-based compensation related
Tax Benelit related Lo slock options exercised
ESOP and related tax henefit
Balance January 2, 2010
Compreheasive income:
Net earnings
Currency translation adjustment and other
Cash lNow hedge. net ol 1ax
Change in pension. net of tax
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared — §1.34 per share
Equity purchase contracts — slock issuance
[ssuance of common stock
Black & Decker cansideration paid .
Repurchase of cammon stock (79,357 shares)
Convertible equily — offering fees
Coavertihie equity — non-cash stock contract fees
Net premium paid and settlement of equity option
Non-controlling interest buyout
Non-conlrolling imerests ol acquired businesses
Other, stock-based compensation related
Tax Beneln refated 1o slock oplions exercised
ESOP and related tax Benefit

Balance January 1,2011

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareowners' Equity
Fiscal years ended January 1, 2011, Jannary 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009
{Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

Accumulated
Addllional Other Non-
Cominon Paid In Rel ained Comprchensive Treasury Coptralliag Shareowner'
Stack Capital Earnings Income (Lass ESOP Stack Interests Equl
$230.9 $64.7 S2.008.8 $472  S(91H) §{504.8) 518.2 $1,772.2
1069 1.7 308.6
0.5 (0.5)
(158.1) (158.1)
(0.3) 0.3)
{40.8) (408) .
106.9 (199.2) 1.2 108.9
(99.00 (99.0)
09 09
(16.00 313 15.3
(103.3) (103.3)
10 Lo
47 4.7
139 13.9
32 32
22 6.6 3.3
230.9 915 2,199.9 (15200 (87.2) (576.8) 18.5 1.724.8
2243 10 226.3
77.1 Tl
{1.6) (16)
2243 75.5 0 301.8
(103.6) (101.6)
(6.9) (27.1) 95.1 61.1
(2.6) (26)
16.2 (25.4) %.2)
4.9 4.9
20.7 20.7
52 52
2.0 6.4 8.4
309 126.7 2,295.5 (76.5) (50.5) (50,7 54 2,005
198.2 - 198.2
(6.9) (6.9)
(54.9) (54.9)
220 220
198.2 (39.8) — 153.4
(193.9) (1939
129 307 320.0
(30.2) 958 65.3
196.9 44589 04 4.656.2
4.9) (49)
(13.6) (13.6)
(14.9) (14.9)
(48.6) .n (50.3)
0.7 (1.6) 0.9
89 289
850 85.0
t4.6 14.6
20 6.3 83
5440.7 54,8857 8$2,301.8 ${116.3} _ ${74.8 3{a20.4 §52.7 $7,069.7

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

A - 06




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION — On March 12, 2010 a wholly owned subsidiary of The Stanley Works was merged with and into The Black &
Decker Corporation ("Black & Decker"), with the result that Black & Decker became a wholly owned subsidiary of The Stanley Works (the
"Merger”). In connection with the Merger, The Stanley Works changed its name to Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. The results of the operations and
cash flows of Black & Decker have been included in the Company's consolidated financial statements from the time of the consummation of the
Merger on March 12, 2010 (see Note E, Merger and Acquisitions). ’

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively the
"Company”} which require consolidation, after the elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. The Company's fiscal year ends on the
Saturday nearest to December 31. There were 52, 52 and 53 weeks in the fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as certain
financial statement disclosures. While management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements
are appropriate, actual results could differ from these estimates.

FOREIGN CURRENCY — For foreign operations with functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar, asset and liability accounts are translated
at current exchange rates; income and expenses are translated using weighted-average exchange rates. Translation adjustments are reported in a
separate component of shareowners' equity and exchange gains and losses on transactions are included in eamnings.

CASH EQUIVALENTS — High]y liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

ACCOUNTS AND FINANCING RECEIVABLE — Trade receivables are stated at gross invoice amoun] less discounts, other allowances and
provision for uncollectible accounts and financing receivables are initially recorded at fair value, less imnpairments or provisions for credit losses.
Interest income earned from financing receivables that are not delinquent is recorded on the effective interest method. The Company considers any
financing receivable that has not been collected within 90 days of original billing date as past-due or delinguent. Additionally, the Company
considers the credit quality of all past-due or delinquent financing receivables as nonperforming.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS — The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful accounts using two methods. First, a
specific reserve is established for individual accounts where information indicates the customers may have an inability to meet financial obligations.
Second, a reserve is determined for all customers based on a range of percentages applied to aging categories. These percentages are based on
historical collection and write-off experience. Actual write-offs are charged against the allowance when collection efforts have been unsuccessful.

INVENTORIES — U.S inventories are predominantly valued at the lower of Last-In First-Out ("LIFO") cost or market because the Company
believes it results in better matching of costs and revenues. Other inventories are valued at the lower of First-In, Firsi-Out {("FIFO"} cost or market
because LIFO is not permitted for statutory reporting outside the U.S. See Note C, Inventory, for a quantification of the LIFQ impact on inventory
valuation,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — The Company generally values property, plant and equipment {"PP&E"), including capitalized
software, on the basis of historical cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Costs related to maintenance and repairs which do not
prolong the assets’ useful lives are



expensed as incurred. Depreciation and amortization are provided using straight-line methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Useful Life
Years
Land improvements 10-20
Buildings 40
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Computer software 3-5

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the lease.

The Company reports depreciation and amortization of property, ptant and equipment in cost of sales and selling, general and administrative
expenses based on the nature of the underlying assets. Depreciation and amortization related to the production of inventory and delivery of services
are recorded in cost of sales. Depreciation and amortization related to distribution center activities, selling and support functions are reported in
selling, general and administrative expenses.

The Company assesses its long-lived assets for impairment when indicators that the carrying values may not be recoverable are present. In assessing
tong-lived assets for impairment, the Company groups its long-lived assets with other assets and liabilitics at the lowest level for which identifiable
cash flows are generated (“asset group") and estimates the undiscounted future cash flows that are directly associated with and expected to be
generated from the use of and eventual disposition of the asset group. If the carrying value is greater than the undiscounted cash flows, an
impairment loss must be determined and the asset group is written down to fair value. The impairment loss is quantified by comparing the carrying
amount of the asset group to the estimated fair value, which is determined using weighted-average discounted cash flows that consider various
.possible cutcomes for the disposition of the asset group.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS — Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underiying net assets
of acquired businesses. Intangible assets acquired are recorded at estimated fair value. Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives
are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually during the third quarter, and at any time when events suggest an impairment more likely
than not has occurred. To assess goodwill for impairment, the Company determines the fair value of its reporting units, which are primarily
determined using management's assumptions about future cash flows based on long-range strategic plans. This approach incorporates many
assumptions including future growth rates, discount factors and tax rales. In the event the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeded its fair value,
an impairment loss would be recognized to the extent ihe carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill exceeded the implied fair vatue of the
goodwill. Indefinite-lived intangible asset carrying amounts are tested for impairment by comparing to current fair market valug, usually determined
by the estimated cost to lease the asset from third parties. Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives
generally using an accelerated method. Under this accelerated method, intangible assets are amortized reflecting the pattern over which the
economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed. Definite-lived intangible assets are also evaluated for impairment when impairment
indicators are present. If the carrying value exceeds the totat undiscounted future cash flows, a discounted cash flow analysis is performed to
determine the fair value of the asset. If the carrying value of the asset were to exceed the fair value, it would be written down to fair value. No
goodwill or other significant intangible assct impairments were recorded during 2010, 2009 or 2008.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Derivative financial instruments are employed to manage risks, including foreign currency, interest rate
exposures and commoadity prices and are not used for trading or speculative purposes. The Company recognizes all derivative insiruments, such as
interest rate swap agreements, foreign currency options, commodity contracts and foreign exchange contracts, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives arc recognized periodically either in earnings or in Shareowners' Equity as a component of other
comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative financial instrument is undesignated or qualifies for hedge accounting, and if so,
whether it represents a fair value, cash flow, or net investment hedge. Changes in the fair value of derivatives accounted for as fair value



hedges are recorded in eamings in the same caption as the changes in the fair value of the hedged items. Gains and losses on derivatives designated
as cash flow hedges, to the extent they are effective, are recorded in other comprehensive income, and subsequently reclassified to earnings to offset
the impact of the hedged items when they occur, In the event it becomes probable the forecasted transaction to which a cash flow hedge relates will
not occur, the derivative would be terminated and the amount in other comprehensive income would generally be recognized in earnings. Changes in
the fair value of derivatives used as hedges of the net investment in foreign operations, to the extent they are etfective, are reported in other
comprehensive income and are deferred until the subsidiary is sold. Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedges under FASB
Accounting Standards Codification, ("ASC") 815 "Derivatives and Hedging" ("ASC 815"}, and any portion of a hedge that is considered ineffective,
are reported in earnings in the same caption where the hedged items are recognized.

The net interest paid or received on interest rate swaps is recognized as interest expense. Gains and losses resulting from the early termination of
interest rate swap agreements are deferred and amortized as adjustments to interest expense over the remaining period of the debt originally covered
by the terminated swap.

REYENUE RECOGNITION - General: Revenue is recognized when the eamings process is complete, colleclability is reasonably assured, and
the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer, which generally occurs upen shipment of the finished product but sometimes is
upon delivery to customer facilities.

Provisions for customer volume rebates, product returns, discounts and allowances are recorded as a reduction of revenue in the same peried the
related sales are recorded. Consideration given to customers for cooperative advertising is recognized as a reduction of revenue except to the extent
that there is an identifiable benefit and evidence of the fair value of the advertising, in which case the expense is classified as Selling, general, and
administrative expense ("SG&A").

Multiple Element Arrangements: In 2010, 2009 and 2008, approximately $900 million, S900 million and $1 billion, respectively, in revenues were
generated by multiple element arrangements, primarily in the Security segment. These sales contracts typically consist of products sold and installed
by the Company at the customer location. Revenue from equipment sales is generally recognized once installation is complete. Certain sales
agreements also include maintenance and monitoring services pertaining to the installed equipment. Service revenue is recognized ratably over the
contract term as services are rendered. Customer billings for equipment not yet installed and for menitoring services not yet rendered are deferred to
the extent paid in advance by customers,

When a sales agreement involves multiple elements, deliverables are separately identified and consideration is allocated based on their relative fair
values in accordanee with ASC 605-25, "Revenue Recognition — Multiple-Element Arrangements”. Fair value is generally determined by reference
to the prices charged in stand-alone transactions.

COST OF SALES AND SELLING, GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE — Cost of sales includes the cost of products and services provided
reflecting costs of manufacturing and preparing the product for sale. These costs include expenses to acquire and manufacture products to the point
that they are allecable to be seld to customers and costs to perform services pertaining to service revenues (e.g. installation of security systems,
automatic doors, and security monitoring costs). Cost of sales is primarily comprised of inbound freight, direct materials, direct labor as well as
overhead which includes indirect labor, facility and equipment costs. Cost of sales also includes quality control, procurement and material receiving
costs as well as intenal transfer costs. Selling general and administrative ("SG&A"} costs include the cost of selling products as well as
administrative function costs. These expenses generally represent the cost of selling and distributing the preducts once they are available for sale and
primarily include salaries and commissions of the Company’s sales force, distribution costs, notably salaries and facility costs, as well as
administrative expenses for certain support functions and related overhead.
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ADVERTISING COSTS — Television advertising is expensed the first time the advertisement airs, whereas other advertising is expensed as
incurred. Advertising costs are classified in SG&A and amounted to $120.7 million in 2010, $30.3 million in 2009 and $39.3 million in 2008,
Expense pertaining to cooperative advertising with customers reported as a reduction of net sales was $200.0 million in 2010, $23.3 million in 2009
and $29.0 million in 2008. Cooperative advertising with customers classified as SG&A expense amounted to $5.8 million in 2010, $5.7 million in
2009 and $6.6 million in 2003,

ACQUISITION COSTS — In fiscal 2010 and 2009 costs associated with new business acquisitions are expensed as incurred as required under
SFAS No. 141(R}, "Business Combinations,” {"FAS 141{R)") codificd in ASC 8035, "Business Combinations” ("ASC 305"). Refer to the section
entitled New Accounting Standards alsp included within Note A for further details. Prior to 2009, certain costs directly related to acquisitions
including legal, audit and other fees, were recorded to goodwill.

SALES TAXES — Sales and value added taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities are excluded from Net sales
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS — The Company generally does not bill customers for freight. Shipping and handling costs associated
with inbound freight are reported in cost of sales. Shipping costs associated with outbound freight are reported as a reduction of Net sales and
amounted to $161.6 million, $87.1 million and $129.7 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Distribution costs are classified as SG&A and
amounted to $198.1 million, $102.2 million and $122.2 millicn in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION — Compensation cost relating to stock-based compensation grants is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, which is generally four years. The expense for stock options and restricted stock units awarded to retirement eligible employees
(those aged 55 and over, and with 13 or more years of service) is recognized on the grant date, or (if later) by the date they become retirement-
eligible. :

POSTRETIREMENT DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN — The Company uses the corridor-approach lo. determine expensg recognition for each
defined benefit pension and other postretirement plan. The corrider approach defers actuarial gains and losses resulting from variances between
actual and expected results {based on economic estimates or actuarial assumptions) and amortizes them over future periods. Fer pension plans, these
unrecognized gains and losses are amortized when the nel gains and losses exceed 10% of the greater of the market-related value of plan assets or
the projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year. For other postretirement benefits, amortization occurs when the net gains and losses
exceed 10% of the accumulated posiretirement benefit obligation at the beginning of the year. For ongoing, active plans, the amount in excess of the
corridor is amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period for active plan participants. For plans with primarily inactive
participants, the amount in excess of the corridor is amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining life expectancy of inactive plan
participants,

INCOME TAXES — Income tax expense is based on reported eamings before income taxes. Interest and penalties related to income taxes are
classified as Income taxes on continuing operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of
temporary dilferences between assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes, and
are measured by applying enacted tax rates in effect in years in which the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

EARNINGS PER SHARE — Basic earnings per share equals net earnings attributable to Stanley Black & Decker, Inc., less earnings allocated to
restricted stock units with non-forfeitable dividend rights, divided by weighted-average shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per
share include the impact of commen stock equivalents using the treasury stock method when the effect is dilutive.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS — The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date of issuance of the Company's annual financial
statements, )



NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Implemented: In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements," ("SFAS 157") codified in ASC 820, "Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure” ("ASC 820"). SFAS 157 establishes a single definition of fair value and a framework for measuring fair value, sets
out a fair value hierarchy to be used to classify the source of information used in fair value measurements, and requires new disclosures of assets and
liabilities measured at fair value based on their level in the hierarchy. §FAS 157 indicates that an exit value {selling price} should be utilized in fair
value measurements rather than an entrance value, or cost basis, and that performance risks, such as credit risk, should be included in the
measurements of fair value even when the risk of non-performance is remote. SFAS 157 also clanfies the principle that fair value measurements
should be based on assumptions the marketplace would use when pricing an asset whenever practicable, rather than company-specific assumptions.
In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. 157-1 and 157-2, which respectively removed leasing transactions and deferred its effective date for
one year relative to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). Accordingly, in fiscal 2008 the Company applied SFAS |57 guidance to: (i} all applicable
financial assets and liabilities; and (ii) nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the Company's financial
statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). In January 2009, the Company applied this guidance to all remaining assets and liabilities
measured on a non-recurring basis at fair value. The adoption of SFAS 157 for these items did not have an effect on the Company, Refer to Note M,
Fair Value Measurements, for disclosures relating to ASC 820.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141{R}, "Business Combinations," {"SFAS 141(R}") codified in ASC 803, "Business
Combinations". SFAS 141(R) requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize the full fair value of assets acquired and liabilifies
assumed in the transaction (whether a full or partial acquisition), establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and requires the acquirer to disclose the information needed lo evaluate and understand the nature and effect
of the business combination. This statement applies to all transactions or other events in which the acquirer obtains conrrol of one or more
businesses, including those sometimes referred to as "true mergers" or "mergers of equals" and combinations achieved without the transfer of

. consideration, for example, by contract alone or through the lapse of minority veto rights. For new acquisitions made following the adoption of
SFAS 141(R}, significant costs directly related to the acquisition including legal, audit and other fees, as well as most acquisition-related
restructuring, must be expensed as incurred. For the years ended January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010 the Company expensed $83.5 million and
$24.1 million of acquisition-related costs, respectively. Additionally, as part of SFAS 141{R} contingent purchase price arrangements (also known as
eam-outs) must be re-measured to estimated fair value with the impact reported in earnings. With respect to all acquisitions, including those
consummated in prior years, changes in tax reserves pertaining to resolution of contingencies or other post acquisition developments are recorded to
earnings rather than goodwill. SFAS 141(R) was applied to the Company's business combinations completed in fiscal 2010 and 2009.

[n December 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2005-16, "Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets". This
ASU eliminates the concept of a "qualifying special-purpose entity,"” clarifies when a transferor of financial assets has surrendered control over the
transferred financial assets, defines specific conditions for reporting a transfer of a portion of a financial asset as a sale, requires that a transferor
recognize and initially measure at fair value all assets obtained and liabilities incurred as a result of a transfer of financial assets accounted for as a
sate, and requires enhanced disclosures lo provide financial statement users with greater transparency about a transferor’s continuing involvement
with transferred financial assets. The adoption of this ASU did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-17, "Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest
Entities." This ASU eliminates the concept of a "quahfying special-purpose entity", replaces the quantitative approach for determining which
enterprise has a controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity with a qualitative approach focused on identifying which enterprise has a
controlling financial interest through the power to direct the activities of a variable interest entity that most significantly impact the entity's economic
performance. Additionally, this ASU requires enhanced disclosures



that prcwlde users of financial statements with more information about an enterprise's invelvement in a variable interest entity. In January 2010, the
Company applied this guidance and the adoption of the ASU did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements,

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-20, "Disclosures About the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit
Losses.” This ASU amends existing disclosures to require a company to provide a greater level of disaggregated information about the credit quality
ofits financing receivables and its allowance for credit losses. In December 2010, the Company applied this guidance to its financing receivables.
Refer to Note B, Accounts and Notes Receivable.

Not Yer Implemented: In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-13, "Revenue Recognition (Topic 605) — Multiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangements”. This ASU eliminates the requirement that all undelivered elements must have objective and reliable evidence of fair value before a
company can recogmze the portion of the consideration that is attributable to items that already have been delivered. This may allow some
companies to recognize revenue on transactions that involve multiple deliverables eariier than under the current requlrernents Additionally, under
the new guidance, the relative selling price method is required to be used in allocating consideration between deliverables and the residual value
method will no longer be permitted. This ASU is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or matenaiiy modified beginning in
fiscal 2011 although early adoption is permitted. A company may elect, but will not be required, to adopt the amendments in this ASU
retrospectively for all prior periods. The Company has evaluated the ASU and does not believe it will have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements,

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-28, "Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)." This ASU modifies the first step of the
poodwill impairment test to include reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts. For these reporting units, the second step of the goadwill
1mpalrment test shall be performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any, when it is more likely than not that a goodwill impairment
exists. This ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning afier December 15,2010. The Company has evaluated the ASU and does
not believe it will have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements,

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29, "Business Combinations {Topic 805)." This ASU specifies that if a company presents
comparative financial statements, the company should disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination that
occurred during the year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only. The ASU also expands the
supplemental pro forma disclosures under Topic 805 to include a description of the nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma
adjustments directly attributable to the business combination included in the pre forma revenue and earnings. This ASU is effective prospectively for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after

December 15, 2010. Effective January 1, 2011, the Company will adept this ASU and include alt required disclosures in the notes to its consolidated
financial statements.

B. ACCOUNTS AND FINANCING RECEIVABLE

(Millions of Doliars) 2010 2009

Trade accounts receivable $1,333.2 $486.4
Trade notes recejvable 61.9 457
Other accounts receivables . ‘ 78.3 31.8
Gross accounts and notes receivable 1.473.4 563.9
Allowance for doubtfu] accounts ' {56.3) 31.9)
Accounts and notes receivable, ne) 51.417.1 $532.0
Long-term trade notes receivable, net $114.9 $93.2




Trade receivables are dispersed among a large number of retailers, distributors and industrial accounts in many countries. Adequate reserves have
been established to cover anticipated credit losses. Long-term trade financing receivables are reported within Other assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Financing receivables and long-term financing receivables are predominately related to certain security equipment leases with
commercial businesses. Generally, the Company retains legal title to any equipment leases and bears the right to repossess such equipment in an
event of default. All financing receivables are interest bearing and the Company has not classified any financing receivables as held-for-sale.

In December 2009, the Company entered into an accounts receivable sale program that was scheduled to expire on December 28, 2010. Cn
December 13, 2010, the Company extended the term of that program for one year and the program is now scheduled to expire on December 12,
201i. According to the terms of that program the Company is required to sell certain of its trade accounts receivables at fair value to a wholly
owned, bankrupicy-remote special purpose subsidiary ("BRS"). The BRS, in turn, must sell such receivables to a third-party financial institution
("Purchaser") for cash and a deferred purchase price receivable. The Purchaser's maximum cash investment in the receivables at any time is
$100.0 million. The purpose of the program is to provide liquidity to the Company. The Company accounts for these transfers as sales under

ASC 860 "Transfers and Servicing”, The Company has no retained interests in the transferred receivables, other than collection and administrative
responsibilities and its right to the deferred purchase price receivable, At January 1, 2011 the Company did not record a servicing asset or liability
related 1o its retained responsibility, based on its assessment of the servicing fee, market values for similar transactions and its cost of servicing the
receivables sold. ’

As of January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, $31.5 million and $35.2 million of net receivables were derecognized. Gross receivables sold amounted
t0 $552.1 million ($492.9 million, net) for the year ended January 1, 2011, These sales resulted in a pre-tax loss of $1.4 million for the year ended
January 1, 2011. Proceeds from transfers of receivables 1o the Purchaser totaled $495.3 million for the year ended January 1, 201 1. Collections of
previously sold receivables, including deferred purchase price receivables, and all fees, which are settled one month in arrears, resulted in payments
to the Purchaser of $498.8 million for the year ended January 1, 2011. Servicing fees amounted to $0.3 million for the year ended January 1, 2011.
The Company's risk of loss following the sate of the receivables is limited to the deferred purchase price, which was $13.8 million a| January 1,
2011 and $17.7 million al January 2, 2010. The deferred purchase price receivable will be repaid in cash as receivables are collected, generally
within 30 days, and as such the carrying value of the receivable recorded approximates fair value. Delinquencies and credit losses on receivables
sold in 2010 were less than $0.2 million for the year ended January I, 201 1. Cash inflows related to the deferred purchase price receivable totaled
$174.4 million for the year ended January 1, 201 1. All cash flows under the program are reported as a component of changes in accounts receivable
within operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows since all the cash from the Purchaser is either: 1) received upon the initial
sale of the receivable; or 2) from the ultimate collection of the underlying receivables and the underlying receivables are not subject to significant
risks, other than credit risk, given their short-term nature.

C. INVENTORY

(Milliens of Dollars) 2014 2009

Fimished products $915.1 $252.8
Work in process 117.5 49.0
Raw materials 2394 64.4
Total $1,272.0 $366.2

Net inventories in the amount of $516.6 million at January 1, 2011 and $116.0 million at January 2, 2010 were valued at the lower of LIFO cost or
market. [f the LIFO method had not been used, inventories would have been $67.0 million higher than reported at January 1, 2011 and 364.6 million
higher than reported at January 2, 2010. During 2010, inventory quantities increased due to the Merger and resulting addition of Black & Decker
inventories (§1.070 billion) resulting in an increment al January 1, 2011, During 2009, inventory quantities were reduced resulting in a liquidation of
LIFO inventory quantities carried at lower costs



prevailing in prior years as compared with the cost of 2009 purchases, the effect of which increased Cost of sales by approximately $6.5 million and

decreased Net earnings attributable to Stanley by approximately $4.0 million.

D. PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Millions of Daollars) . 2010 2009

Land $113.9 $44.1
Land improvements 40.6 23.8
Buildings 464.2 284.2
Leasehold improvements . 43.0 298
Machinery and equipment - . 1,300.2 902.7
Computer software ’ 225.1 209.9
Property, plant & equipment, gross ' $2,187.0 $1,494.5
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization £1,020.5) (918.6)
Property, plant & equipment, net $1,166.5 $575.9

As more fully disclosed in Note E. Merger and _Acqﬁisitions, in connection with the Merger, the Company acquired property, plant and equipment

with a fair value of $569.9 million.

Depreciation and amortization expense associated with property, plant and equipment was as follows:

(Milliens of Dolars) . 2010 2009 2008

Depreciation S177.4 k $76.1 $74.0
Amortization 26.0 19.4 18.5
Depreciation and amortization expense $203.4 $95.5 $92.5

The amounts above are inclusive of discontinued operations depreciation and amortization expense of $0.5 million in 2008.

E. MERGER AND ACQUISITIONS
MERGER

On March 12, 2010 (the "merger date"), a wholly owned subsidiary of The Stanley Works ("Stanley") was merged with and into Black & Decker,
with the result that Black & Decker became a wholly owned subsidiary of Stanley. As part of the Merger, Black & Decker stockholders received
1,275 shares of Stanley stock for each share outstanding as of the merger date. All of the outstanding Black & Decker shares and equity based
awards were exchanged for Stanley shares and equity awards as part of the Merger. Fractional shares generated by the conversion ratio were cash
settled for S0.3 million. After the exchange was completed, pre-merger Stanlcy shareowners retained ownership of 50.5% of the combined
Company. In conjunction with consummating the Merger, the name of the combined Company was changed to "Stanley Black & Decker, Inc".

Black & Decker is a global manufacturer and marketer of power tools and accessories, hardware and home improvement products, and technology-
based fastening systems, The Merger creates a larger and more globally diversified company with a broad array of products and services with
significant exposure to growing and profitable product areas, Stanley and Black & Decker's product tines are generally complementary, and do not
present areas of significant overlap. By combining the two companies, there are significant cost saving opportunities through reductions in corporate

overhead, business unit and purchasing consolidation, and by combining elements of manufacturing and distribution.
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Based on the closing price of Stanley common stock on the merger date, the consideration received by Black & Decker shareholders in the Merger
had a value of $4.657 billion as detailed below,

Conversion

(1nn millions) Calcalation  Faif Value
Black & Decker common stock outstanding as of the merger date 61.571
Multiplied by Stanley’s stock price as of the merger date multiplied by the exchange ratio of 1.275 ($57.86 * 1.275) ___ $73.77 %45422
Fair value of the vested and unvested stock options pertaining to pre-merger service issued to replace existing grants at

closing (a) 91.7
Fair value of unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units pertaining to pre-merger service issued to replace existing

grants at closing (a) 12.2
Other vested equity awards (a) 10.1
Cash paid to settle fractional shares ) 0.3
Total fair value of consideration transferred $4.656.5

(a) As part of the Merger the Company exchanged the pre-merger equity awards of Black & Decker for Stanley Black & Decker equity awards.
Under ASC 805, the fair value of vested options and the earned portion of unvested options, restricted stock awards and restricted stock units
are recognized as consideration paid. The remaining value relating lo the unvested and unearned options, restricted stock awards and restricted
stock units will be recognized as future stock-based compensation. The allocation of the pre-merger equity awards between consideration paid
and future stock-based compensation is as follows (in millions):

Fair value
Recognized as . Fair Value to be

Award

type : - Number of Censideration Recognized a5 Fulure

(In millions) . Awards Paid _Compensation Cost
Stock options 5.8 $91.7 $14.1
Restricted stock units and awards 04 12.2 12.3
Other vested equity awards 0.2 10.1 —_
Total 6.4 $114.0 $26.9

The following assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of the pre-merger Black & Decker stock options in the determination of
consideration paid;

[

Stock price $57.86
Post conversion strike price . . . $23.53 - $74.11
Average expected volatility 32%
Dividend yield 0.7%
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate 1.4%
Weighted-average expected term 2.9 years
Weighted-average fair value per option $18.72

The expected volatility is based on two equally weighted components: the first component is the average historical volatility which is based on daily
observations and duration consistent with the expected life assumption; the second component is the market implied volatility of traded options. The
average expected term of the option is based on historical employee stock option exercise behavior as well as the remaining contractual exercise
term. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. treasury securities with maturities equal to the expected life of the option. The fair value of
restricted slock and restricted stock units and other vested equity awards was $57.86 per share, Total compensation expense recognized during the
year ended January 1, 2011 for the options, restricted stock, and restricted stock awards that were assumed as part of the Merger was $8.8 million.
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The transaction has been accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting which requires, among other things, the assets acquired and
liabilifies assumed be recognized at their fair values as of the merger date. The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of major assets
acquired and liabilities assumed as part of the Merger:

(Millions of Dollars) 20]0
Cash $949.4
Accounts and notes receivable 907.3
Inventory 1,070.1
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 257.5
Property, plant and equipment . 569.9
Trade names 1,505.5
Customer relationships 383.7
Licenses, technology and patents 112.3
Other assets 200.1
Short-term borrowings (175.0)
Accounts payable (479.6)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (830.9)
Long-term debt (1,657.1)
" Post-retirement benefits ) (768.8)
" Deferred taxes (703.6)
Other liabilifies (513.3)
Total identifiable net assets $827.5
Goodwill 38290
Total consideration transferred $4,656.5

As of the merger date, the expected fair value of accounts receivable approximated the historical cost. The gross contractual receivable was
$951.7 million, of which $44.4 million was not expected to be collectible.

The amount allocated to trade names includes $1.362 billion for indefinite-lived trade names. The weighted-average useful lives assigned to the
finite-lived intangible assets are trade names — 14 years; customer relationships — 15 years; and licenses, technology and patents — 12 years.

Black & Decker has three primary areas of contingent liabilities: environmental, risk insurance (predominantly product liability and workers
compensation) and uncertain tax liabilities, Additionally, Black & Decker is involved in various lawsuits in the ordinary course of business,
including litigation and administrative proceedings involving commercial disputes and employment matters. Some of these lawsuits include claims
for punitive as well as compensatory damages. The majority of the confingent liabilities are recorded al fair value in purchase accounting, aside from
those pertaining to uncertainty in income taxes which are an exception to the fair value basis of accounting; however certain environmental matters
that are more legal in nature are recorded at the probable and estimable amount.

Goodivill is calculated as the excess of the consideration transferted over the net assets recognized and represents the expected revenue and cost
synergies of the combined business, assembled workforce, and the going concern nature of Black & Decker. [t is estimated that $167.7 million of
goodwill, relating to Black & Decker's pre-merger historical tax basis, will be deductible for tax purposes.

The purchase price allocation for Black & Decker is substantially complete. As the Company finalizes its purchase price allocation, it is anticipated
that additional purchase price adjustments will be recorded relating to certain environmental remediation liabilities for ongoing feasibility study
results, tax matters, and for other minor items, Such adjustments will be recorded during the measurement period in the first quarter of 2011. A
single estimate of fair value results from a complex series of judgments about future events and uncertainties and relies heavily on estimates and
assumptions. The Company's judgments used to determine the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
as well as asset lives, can materially impact the Company’s results from operations, The finalization of the Company's purchase accounting
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assessment will result in changes in the valuation of assets and liabilities acquired which is not expected 1o have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated statement of operations, balance sheet or cash flows.

ACQUISITIONS

The Company completed thirty acquisifions during 2010, 2009, and 2008. These businesses were acquired pursuant to the Company's growth and
portfolio repositioning strategy. The 2010 and 2009 acquisitions were accounted for in accordance with ASC 805 while 2008 acquisitions were
accounted for as purchases in accordance with SFAS No. 141 "Business Combinations”, Duning 2010, the Company completed ten acquisitions for
an aggregate value of $547.3 million aside from the Merger. During 2009, the Company completed six acquisitions for an aggregate value of

$24.2 million. During 2008, the Company completed fourteen acquisitions for an aggregate value of $572.4 million. The results of the acquired
companies are included in the Company's consolidated operating results from the respective acquisition dates. All of the acquisitions have resulted in
the recognition of goodwill. Goodwill reflects the future eamings and cash flow potential of the acquired business in excess of the fair values that are
assigned to all other identifiable assets and liabilities. Goodwill arises because the purchase price paid reflects numerous factors including the ’
strategic fit and expected synergies these targets bring to existing operations, the compefitive nature of the bidding process and the prevailing market
value for comparable companies. ASC 805 requires all identifiable assets and liabilities acquired to be reported at fair value and the excess is
recorded as goodwill. The Company obtains information during due diligence and from other sources which forms the basis for the initial allocation
of purchase price to the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities acquired. In the months following an acquisition, intangible asset valuation
reports, asset appraisals and other daia are obtained in order for managemenu to finalize the fair values assigned to acquired assets and liabilities.

In November 2010 the Company purchased 70% of the outstanding shares of GMT for $44.2 million, net of cash acquired. GMT is a leading
commercial hardware manufacwurer and distributor in China. The acquisifion of GMT provides the Cohipany with a low cost manufacturing source
and also serves as a platform for intemational commercial hardware ¢xpansion. The Company has the option to purchase the remaining 30% of
GMT outstanding shares over the next five years. GMT is included in the Company's Security segment.

In July 2010 the Company completed the acquisition of CRC-Evans Pipeline Intemational {("CRC-Evans") for $451.6 million, net of cash acquired
and subject to certain adjustments including an earn-out provision with the previous CRC-Evans' shareholders. The net assets acquired, including
$181.2 million of other intangible assets, are approximarely $233.6 million and the related Goodwill is approximately $218.0 million. CRC-Evans is
a full line supplier of specialized tools, equipment and services used in the construction of large diameter oil and natural gas transmission pipelines,
CRC-Evans also sells and rents custom pipe handling and joint welding and coaring equipment used in the construction of large and small diameter
pipelines, The acquisition of CRC Evan's diversifies the Company’s revenue base and provides the Company with a strategic and profitable growth
platform. CRC-Evans is included in the Company’s Industrial segment.

Under the cam-out provision, the total purchase price for CRC-Evans was contingent upon 2010 eamings before interest, income taxes, depreciation
and amortization and the eam-out performance period ended on December 31, 2010. As of the acquisition date it was estimated that there would be
no purchase price adjustment occurting at the end of the performance period as the probability of a significant increase or decrease in total
consideration was been deemed 1o be equally unlikely. Accordingly, the Company did not recognize an asset or liability relating lo contingent
consideration at the acquisition date. The performance peried ended in 2010 with no additional adjustment to purchase price required.

In March 2010, the Company completed the acquisition of Stanley Solufions de Sécurité ("SSDS"} (formerly known as ADT France) for

$8.0 million, net of cash acquired. SSDS is a leading provider of security services, primanily for commercial businesses located in France. S5DS has
been consolidated into the Company's Security segment. This acquisition added to the Company's curtent business gives the Company the leading
market share in France and expands its security footprint in Europe.

During 2010, the Company also completed seven minor acquisitions, relating to the Company's Industrial and Security segments. The combined
purchase price of these acquisitions was $43.5 million.



The purchase accounting for the 2010 acquisitions is preliminary, principally with respect lo tinalization of intangible asset valuations,
contingencies, deferred taxes, the valuation of property, plant and equipment and certain other items.

ACTUAL AND PRO FORMA IMPACT OF THE MERGER AND ACQUISITIONS

The following table presents information for the Black & Decker Merger and other 2010 acquisitions thai is included in the Company's consolidated
statement of operations from the merger and acquisition dates through January 1, 2011 (in millions):

Year Ended
2010
Net sales $4,507.3
Loss attributable to the Merger and acquisitions 3(38.2)(A)

(A) The net loss attributable to the Merger and acquisitions includes amortization of inventory step-up, restructuring charges and other merger and
acquisition-related items.

The following table presents supplemental pro forma information as if the Merger and acquisitions had occurred on January 3, 2010 for the year
ended January 1, 2011. The comparative 2009 columns were prepared as if the Merger and acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of tiscal 2009.
As such, both years presented include merger and acquisition related charges. The pro forma consolidated results are not necessarily indicative of
what the Company's consolidated net eamings would have been had the Company completed the Merger and acquisitions at the beginning of each
fiscal year. In addition the pro forma consolidated results do not purport to project the future results of the combined Company nor do they retiect
the expected realization of any cost savings associated with the Merger and acquisitions.

Year-to-Date

(Millions of Dollars, except per share amounts) 2010 2009

Net sales 3 9,552.6 $ 8,958.5
Net earnings (loss) s 216.1 $ (56.2)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 1.44 ) (0.36)

2010 Pro Forma Results

The 2010 pro forma results were calculated by combining the results of Stanley Black & Decker with Black & Decker's stand-alone results from
January 3, 2010 through March 12, 2010. The pre-acquisition results of the acquisitions were also combined for their respective pre-acquisition
periods. The following adjustments were made to account for certain costs which would have been incurred during ihis pre-Merger and pre-
acquisition period. .

. Elimination of the historical pre-Merger and pre-acquisition intangible asset amortizarion expense and the addition of intangible asset
amortization expense related to intangibles valued as part of the Merger and acquisitions that would have been incurred from January 3,
2010 to the merger and/or acquisition dates.

«  Additional expense for the inventory step-up which would have been amortized as the cortesponding inventory was sold. .

. Additional expense relating to Merger-related compensation for key executives which would have been incurred from January 3, 2010 to
March 12, 2010.

. Reduced interest expense for the Black & Decker debt fair value adjustment which would have been amortized from January 3, 2010 to
March 12, 2010.

. Additional depreciation related to property, plant and equipment fair value adjustments that would have been expensed prior to the

Merger and acquisitions commencement dates.
. The moditications above were adjusted for the applicable tax impact.
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2009 Pro Forma Results

The 2009 pro forma results were calculated by taking the historical financial results of Stanley and adding the historical results of Black & Decker
and the acquisitions. Addituonally the following adjustments were made 10 account for certain costs that would have been incurred in 2009 had the
Merger and acquisitions occurted on January 4, 2009.

. Elimination of historical Black & Decker and acquisitions’ intangible asset amortization expense and addition of intangible asset
amortization expense relating to intangibles valued as part of the Merger and acquisitions.

. Added expense for the inventory step-up which would have been amortized as the corresponding inventory was sold.

. Added the costs that were incurted 1o consummate the Merger and acquisitions during 2010.

. Added the Merger and acquisition-related restructuring charges which were incurred during 2010.

. Added compensation expense for Merger-related compensation for key executives.

. Added depreciation expense related to property, plant, and equipment fair value adjustments.

. Reduced interest expense for the debt fair value adjustment which would have been amortized during 2009.

. The modifications above were adjusted for the applicable tax impact. '

2009 ACQUISITIONS — During 2009, the Company completed six minor acquisitions, primarily relating to the Company's convergent security
solutions business, for a combined purchase price of $24.2 million. Amounts allocated to the assets acquired and liabililies assumed were based on
their estimated fair values at the acquisifion dates. The purchase price allocations of these acquisitions are complete.

2008 ACQUISITIONS — In July 2008, the Company completed the acquisifion of Sonitrol Corporation ("Sonitrol") for $282.3 million in cash.
Sonitrol is a market leader in North American commercial security momtormg services, access control and fire detection systems. The vaulsllIOI'l
has complemented the product offering of the pre-existing security integration businesses including HSM acquired in early 2007.

Also in July 2008, the Company completed the acquisition of Xmark Corporafion ("Xmark") for $47.0 million in cash. Xmark, headquartered in
Canada, markets and sells radio frequency identification-based systems used to identify, locate and protect people and assets. The acquisition
expanded the Company's personal security business.

In October 2008, the Company completed the acquisition of Generale de Protection ("GdP") for $168.8 million in cash, GdP, headquartered in
Vitrolles, France, is a leading provider of audio and video security monitoring services, primarily for small and mid-sized businesses located in
France and Belgium.

The Company also made eleven small acquisitions relating lo its mechanical access systems, convergent security solutions, including healthcare
storage systems, and fastening businesses during 2008. These eleven acquisitions were completed for a combined purchase price of $74.3 million.

The total purchase price of $572.4 million reflects transaction costs and is net of cash acquired; amounts allocated 1o the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed were based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition dates. Goodwill associated with the 2008 acquisitions that is
deductible for income tax purposes amounts to $40.7 million. The purchase price allocation of these acquisitions has been completed.



The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of major assets acquired and liabilities assurned for the 2008 acquisitions in the aggregate:

(Millionis of Dollars} 2008
Current assets, primarily accounts receivable and inventories - $64.3
Property, plant, and equipment 76
Goodwill ’ 367.8
Trade names . . : 21.1
Customer relationships : 238.5
Technology 14.1
Other intangible assets i 1.0
Other assets 66
Total assets ' $721.0
Current liabilities $74.6
Deferred tax liabilities and other 74.0
Total liabilities $148.6
The weighted average useful lives assigned to the amortizable assets identified above are trade names — 10 years; customer relationships —
13 years; technotogy — 8 years; and other intangible assets — t year,
F. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
GOODWILL — The changes in the camrying amount of goodwill by segment are as follows:
(Millions of Dollars) CDIY Industrial Security Totat
Balance January 2, 2010 $206.6 $367.8 $1,244.0 $1,818.4
Addition from Merger 2,868.9 4745 485.6 3,829.0
Addition from other acquisitions — 2249 54.1 279.0
Foreign currency translation and other 11.2 4.7 (0.4) 15.5
Balance January 1, 2011 §3,086.7 $1,071.9 : $1,783.3 $5,941.9
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Other intangible assets at January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010 were as follows:
2010 2009 -
Cross Gross .
Carrying Aceumulated Carrying Accumulated

(Millions of Dollars) . Amount ©__Amortitation Amount Amortization
Amortized Intangible Assets — Definite lives

Patents and copyrights $56.2 $(40.3) $53.1 $(38.7)

Trade names 236.9 (49.6) 61.6 (35.1)

Customer relationships 1,259.7 (369.9) 680.5 (267.1)

Other intangible assets 187.2 (60.1) 58.0 (40.5).
Total : $1,740.0 $(519.9) $853.2 $(381.4)

Total indefinite-lived trade narnes are $1,652.1 million at Jaﬁuary 1, 2011 and $304.6 million at January 2, 2010. The increase is primarily
attributable to the Merger,
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Aggregate other intangible assets amortization expense by segment was as follows:

{Millions of Dollars) 2010 2009 © 2008

CDIY $27.9 $2.9 $2.9
Security 95.1 96.8 79.6
Indusitnal 22.3 4.9 8.0
Consolidated $145.3 $104.6 $90.5

Future amortization expense in each of the next five years amounts to $172,8 million for 2011, $160.0 million for 2012, $145.2 million for 2013,
$129.6 million for 2014, $112.6 millien for 2015 and $49%.9 million thereafier.

G. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses at January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010 were as follows:

(Millions of Dollars) : 2010 2009

Payroll and related taxes $254.9 $108.8
Income and other taxes 185.6 40.5
Customer rebates and sales returns 177.5 37.7
Insurance and benefits 153.8 28.4
Accrued restructuring costs 101.2 46.4
Denivative financial instruments 82.4 82.0
Warranty costs 73.7 21.0
Deferred revenue T 540 : 428
Other . 242.8 75.9
Total $1.325.9 $483.5

H. LONG-TERM DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Long-term debt and financing arrangements at January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010 follow:

—_ InterestRate 2010 2009
Notes payable due 2010 5.00% S— $200.0
Notes payable due 2011 7.13% 409.2 —
Notes payable due 2012 4.90% 2084 206.3
Convertible notes payable due in 2012 3 month LIBOR less 3.50% 305.1 2945
Notes payable due 2013 6.15% 260.8 253.1
Notes payable due 2014 4.75% 307.9 —
Notes payable due 2014 8.95% 4053 —
Notes payable due 2016 5.75% 3160 —
Notes payable due 2028 ‘ 7.05% 168.5 . —
Notes payable due 2045 {subordinated) 5.90% — 312.7
Convertible notes payable due in 2018 {subordinated} 4.25% 632.5 —
Notes payable due 2040 §.20% 399.7 —
Other, payable in varying amounts through 2015 0.00%-5.62% 20.8 26.1
Total long-term debt, including curtent maturities $3,434.2 $1,292.7
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (416.1) {208.0)

$1.084.7

Long-term debt $3,018.1 2

The Company acquired $1,832 billion of total debt and shomn-term borrowings in connection with the Merger which included $157.1 millionto
increase the debt balance to its estimated fair value. Principal amounts and maturities of the notes acquired in the Merger are: $400.0 million due in
2011, $300.0 million due in 2014,
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$350.0 million due in 2014, $300.0 million due in 2016 and $150.0 million due in 2028. $175.0 million of assumed short-term borrowings were
repaid in April 2010 with the proceeds from additional commercial paper borrowings. The Company executed a full and unconditional guarantee of
the existing debt of The Black & Decker Corporaticn and Black & Decker Holdings, LLC (this guarantee is applicable to all of the Black & Decker
outstanding notes payable), and Black & Decker executed a full and unconditional guarantee of the existing debt of the Company, excluding the
Company's Junior Subordinated Debt (redeemed in December 2010), including for payments of principal and interest and as such these notes rank
equally in priority with the Company's unsecured and unsuberdinated debt. Refer to Note U, Parent and Subsidiary Debt Guarantees, for additional
information pertaining to these debt guarantees.

Aggregate annual principal maturities of long-term debt for each of the years from 2011 to 2015 are $406.7 million, $525.4 million, $253.6 million,
$654.4 million, $0.7 million, respectively and $1,482.6 million thereafter. These debt maturities represent the principal amounts to be paid and
accordingly exclude the remaining $119.2 million of unamortized debt fair value adjustment as of January 1, 2011 which increased the Black &
Decker debt, as well as $6.5 million of fair value adjustments and unamortized interest rate swap termination gains as described in Note I, Derivative
Financial Instruments. These amounts are partially offset by $14.9 million of remaining accretion on the Stanley Convertible Notes as of January i,
2011 that will gradually increase the debt to its $320.0 million principal amount due in May 2012. Interest paid during 2010, 2009 and 2008
amounted to $76.0 million, $53.7 million and $78.9 million, respectively.

On March 12, 2010, the Company amended its $800.0 million committed credit facility te include adjustments to the interest coverage ratio
covenant for restructuring and merger and acquisition-related items. This facility expires in February 2013. The Comipany also entered into a
$700.0 million, 364-day revelving credit facility effective March 12, 2010 that will expire in March 2011. The credit facilities are designated as a
liquidity back-stop for the Company's commercial paper program which was increased on March 12, 2010 to $1.5 billion. These changes to the
Company's short-term borrowing capacity were related to the Merger. In addition, the Company has short-term lines of credit that are primarily
committed, with numerous banks, aggregating $971.2 million, including the $700.0 million 364-day revolving credit facility, of which

$947.9 million was available at January I, 201 1. Short-term arrangements are reviewed annually for renewal. The aggregate long-term and short-
term lines amounted to $1,771.2 million of which $1.6 million was utilized as outstanding short-term borrowings at January 1, 2011. The Company
had no commercial paper borrowing cutstanding at January 1, 2011, Included in shori-term borrowings in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
January 2, 2010 is commercial paper of $87.0 million. The weighted average interest rates on short-term borrowings for the fiscal years ended
January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010 were (.4% and 0.3%, respectively.

On August 31, 2010, the Company issued $400.0 million of senior unsecured Term Bonds, maturing on September 1, 2040 ("2040 Term Bonds")
with fixed interest payable semi-annually, in arrears at a rate of 5.20% per annum. The 2040 Term Bonds rank equally with all of the Company's
existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The 2040 Term Bonds are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by The Black & Decker
Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company. The 2040 Term Bonds are not obligations of or guaranteed by any of the Company's other subsidiaries.
As a result, the 2040 Term Bonds are structurally subordinated to all debt and other liabilities of the Company's subsidianes other than The Black &
Decker Corporation. The Company received net proceeds of $396.2 million which reflects a discount of $0.4 million to achieve a 5.20% interest rate
and paid $3.4 million of fees associated with the transaction. The Company used the net proceeds from the offering primarily to reduce borrowings
under its existing commercial paper program. The 2040 Term Bonds include a Change of Control provision that would apply should a Change of,
Control event (as defined in the Indenture governing ihe 2040 Term Bonds) oceur. The Change of Control provision states that the holders of the
Term Bonds may require the Company to repurchase, in cash, all of the outstanding 2040 Term Bonds for a purchase price at 101.0% of the original
principal amount, plus any accrued and unpaid interest outstanding up Jo the repurchase date.

On September 29, 2008, the Company issued $250.0 million of unsecured Term Notes maturing October 1, 2013 (the "2013 Term Notes") with
fixed interest payable semi-annually, in arrears at a rate of 6.15% per annum. The 2013 Term Notes rank equally with all of the Company's existing
and future unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The Company received net proceeds of $248.0 million which includes a discount of
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$0.5 million to achieve a 6.15% interest rate and $1.5 million of fees associated with the transaction. The Company used the net proceeds from the
offering primarily to reduce borrowings under its existing commercial paper program. The $260.8 million of debt reported at January 1, 2011
reflects the fair value adjustment related to a fixed-to-floating interest rate swap entered into at the beginning of 2009, as well as the unamortized
balance of the $7.9 million gain from a December 2008 swap termination. This fixed-to-ficafing interest rate swap was entered into upon issuance of
the 2013 Term Notes as detailed in Note 1, Derivative Financial Instruments. The 2013 Term Notes include a Change of Control Triggering Event
that would apply should a Change of Control event (as defined in the Indenture governing the 20i3 Term Notes) occur. The Company would be
required to make an offer to repurchase, in cash, all of the outstanding 2013 Term Notes for a purchase price at 101.0% of the original principal
amount, plus any accrued and unpaid interest outstanding up to the purchase date.

In January 2009, the Company entered into a fixed-to-fioating interest rate swap on its $200.0 million notes payable due in 2012, The Company
previously had a fixed-to-flealing rate swap on these notes cutstanding that was terminated in December 2008. The $8.4 million adjustment to the
carrying value of the debt at January 1, 2011 pertains to the unamortized gain on the terminated swap as well as the fair value adjustment of the new
swap, as more fully discussed in Note 1, Derivative Financial Instruments.

In December 2010, the Company entered into a fixed-to-floating interest rate swap on its $300.0 million notes payable due in 2014, Al January |,
2011 the carrying value of the debtincludes a $12.0 million increase associated with the fair value adjustment made in purchase accounting partially
offset by $4.1 million pertaining to the fair value adjustment of the swap, as more fully discussed in Note i, Derivative Financial Instrumenis.

In December 2010, the Company entered into a fixed-to-floating interest rate swap on its $300.0 million notes payable due in 2016, At January 1
2011 the carrying value of the debt includes a $24.2 million increase associated with the fair value adjustment made in purchase accounting partially
offset by $8.2 million pertaining to the fair value adjustment of the swap, as more fully discussed in Note I, Derivative Financial Instruments.

Convertible Preferred Units

On November 5, 2010, the Company issued 6,325,000 Convertible Preferred Units'(the "Convertible Prefened Units"}, each with a stated amount of
$100. The Convertible Preferted Units are initially comprised of a 1/10, or 10%, undivided beneficial ownership in a $1,000 principal amount junior
subordinated note (the "Note"} and a Purchase Contract (the "Purchase Contract") obligating holders to purchase one share (subject to adjustment
under certain circumstances if holders elect to settle their Purchase Contracts early) of the Company's 4.75% Series B Perpetual Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Convertible Preferted Stock™). The Company received $613.5 mullion in cash proceeds from the Convertible
Preferred Units offering, net of underwriting fees. These proceeds were used to redeem all of the Company's outstanding 5.902% Fixed Rate/
Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt Securities due 2045 on December 8, 2010, at a price of $312.7 million, to contribute $150.0 million to a
U.S. pension plan lo improve the funded status of the Company's pension obligations, to fund the $50.3 million cost of the capped call ransaction as
more fully described below, and the remainder to reduce outstanding short-term borrowings and for other general corporate purposes.

Purchase Contracts:

Each Purchase Contract obligates the holder to purchase, on the earlier of (i} November 17, 2015 (the "Purchase Comtract settlement date”) or (ii} the
triggered early settlement date (as described below), for $100, one newly-issued share (subject lo adjustment under certain circumstances if holders
elect to settle their Purchase Contracts early) of Convertible Preferred Stock. A maximum of 6,325,000 shares of Convertible Preferted Stock may
be issued on the Purchase Contract setfiement date, resulting in total additional cash proceeds to the Company of up to $632.5 million. The Notes,
described further below, are pledged as collateral to guarantee the holders' obligations to purchase Convertible Preferred Stock under the terms of
the Purchase Contracts. Purchase Contract holders may elect to settle their obligations under the Purchase Contracts early,
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in cash, at any time prior to the second business day immediately preceding the Purchase Contract settlement date or the triggered early settlement
date, as applicable, subject to certain exceptions and conditions.

Upon earty settlement of any Purchase Contracts, except in connection with a "fundamental change" or trigger event, the Company will deliver a
number of shares of Convertible Preferted Stock equal to 85% of the number of Purchase Contracts tendered for eariy settlement, Upon the
occurtence of a fundamental change, holders of Purchase Contracts will have the right, subject to certain exceptions and conditions, to settle their
Purchase Contracts early at 100% of the settlement rate for the Purchase Contracts.

Holders of the Purchase Contracts are paid contract adjustment payments ("contract adjustment payments") at a rate of 0.50% per annum, payable
quarterly in artears on February 17, May 17, August | 7 and November | 7 of each year, commencing February 17, 2011. The §l4.9 million present .
value of the contract adjustment payments reduced Shareowners' Equity al inception. As each quarierly contract adjustment payment is made, the
related liability will be relieved with the difference between the cash payment and the present value of the contract adjustment payment recorded as
interest expense (at inception approximately $0.9 million accretion over the five year term). At January |, 2011 the liability reported for the contract
adjustment payments amounted to $14.9 million. The Company has the right to defer the payment of contract adjustment payments until no later
than the Purchase Contract settlement date or the triggered early settlement date (each as described below), as applicable. Any deferted contract
adjustment payments will accrue additional contract adjustment payments at the rate of 4.75% per year until paid, compounded quarterly.

Convertible Preferred Srock:

When issued following a settlement of the Purchase Contract, holders of the Convertible Preferted Stock are entitled 1o receive cumulative cash
dividends at the rate of 4.75% per annum of the $100 liquidation preference per share of the Convertible Preferted Stock. Dividends on the
Convertible Preferted Stock will be payable, when, as and if declared by the Company's board of directors, quarnteriy in arrears on February 17,
May 17, August 17 and November |7 of each vear.

Following the issuance of Convertible Preferted Stock upon settlement of a holder's Purchase Contracts, a holder of Convertible Preferred Stock
may, at its option, al any time and from time to time, convert some or all of its outstanding shares of Convertible Preferred Stock as described below
at a conversion rate of 1,3333 shares of the Company's common stock per share of Conventible Preferted Stock (subject to customary anti-dilution
adjustments), which is equivalent 1o an initial conversion price of approximately $75.00 per share of common stock. 1f a fundamental change occurs,
in certain circumstances the conversion rate may be adjusted by a fundamental change make-whole premium.

The Company may redeem some or all of the Convertible Preferred Stock on or afier December 22, 2015 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
liquidation preference per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the redemption date. If the Company calls the Convertible Preferred Stock for
redemption, holders may convert their Convertible Preferted Stock at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the redemption date.

Upon conversion prior to November 17, 2015, the Company may only deliver shares of common stock, together with cash in lieu of fractional
shares. Upon a conversion on or after November 17, 2015, the Company may elect to pay or deliver, as the case may be, solely shares of common
stock, together with cash in lieu of fractional shares ("physical settlement"), solely cash ("cash settlement") or a combination of cash and common
stock {“combination settlement"), The amount of shares andfor cash that each holder of Convertible Preferted Stock will receive is called the
"settlement amount." [f the Company elects physncal settlement or any shares of Convertible Preferted Stock are converted prior to November 17,
2015, the Company will deliver to the converting holder a number of shares of commeon stock {and cash in lieu of any fractional shares) equal to the
number of shares of Convertible Preferred Stock to be converted multiplied by the applicable conversion rate. If the Company elects cash settlement
or combination settlement, the settlement amount will be based on the volume weighted average price of the Company's common stock during a
20 day observation period.



Notes:

The $632.5 million principal amount of the Notes is due November 17, 2018, At maturity, the Company is obligated to repay the principal in cash.
The Notes bear interest at an initial rate of 4.25% per annum, initially payable quarterly in artears on February [7, May 17, August 17 and
November 17 of each year, commencing February 17,2011, subject to the Company’s right to defer interest payments. The Notes are the Company's
direct, unsecured general obligations and are initially subordinated and junior in right of payment 1o the Company's existing and future senior
indebtedness. The Notes initially rank equally in right of payment with all of the Company's other junior subordinated debt. The Notes are initially
pledged as collateral to guarantee the obligations of holders of Purchase Contracts 1o purchase Convertible Preferted Stock. The Notes will be
released from that pledge arrangement (1) following a successful remarketing, (2) following the substitution of cash to purchase certain treasury unit
collateral, (3) following the substitution of cash during certain periods prior to the final remarketing period or triggered remarketed period for the
Notes, (4) following the early settlement of the Purchase Contracts or (5) following certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization. The
unamortized deferted issuance cost of the Notes was $6.5 million al January 1, 2011. The remaining unamm‘tlzed balance will be recorded 1o interest
expense through the Notes maturity in November 2018.

Unless a trigger event (as defined below) has occurted, the Company may elect, at its option, to remarket the Notes during a period (the "optional
remarketing window™) beginning on and including August 12, 2015 until October 27, 2015. Such remarketing will include the Notes underlying
Convertible Preferted Units that have not been released from the pledge and other Notes of holders that have elected 1o include those Notes in the
remarketing. The Company may attempt to remarket the Notes during multiple optional remarketing periods in the optional remarketing window so
long as it gives 15 calendar days notice prior to the first day of any optional remarkenng period. Upon a successful optional remarketing of the
Notes, the remarketing agent will purchase U.S. Treasury securities as described in the prospectus supplement (the "Treasury portfolio™), and deduct
such price from the proceeds of the optional remarketing. Any remaining proceeds will be promptly remiued after the optional remarketing
settlement date by the remarketing agent for the benefit of the holders whose Notes were remarketed. The applicable ownership interests in the
Treasury portfolio will be substituted for the applicable ownership interests in remarketed pledged Notes and will be pledged to the Company to
secure the holders’ obligation under the Purchase Contracts. On the Purchase Contract settlement date, a portion of the proceeds from the Treasury
portfolio equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Notes that aré components of the Convertible Prefcrted Units at thé time of remarketing will
automatically be applied to satisfy the holders' obligations to purchase Convertible Preferted Stock under the Purchase Contracts, [n addition,
proceeds from the Treasury portfolio equal to the interest payment (assuming no reset of the interest rate) that would have been attributable to the
Notes that were components of the Convertible Preferred Units at the time of remarketing will be paid on the Purchase Contract settlement date to
the holders.

I a trigger event occurs prior to the first day in the optional remarketing window, all Purchase Contracts will mandatorily settle early on the date that
is 25 calendar days after the occurtence of the trigger event or, if such day is not a business day, the immediately following business day (the
"triggered early seulement date"). [n connection with the occurtence of a trigger event, the remarketing agent will remarket the Notes that are
components of the units and any separate Notes whose holders have elected to participate in the remarketing during each day of the five business day
period (the "triggered eariy remarketing period") ending on the third business day immediately preceding the triggered early settlement date (the
"triggered early remarketing™). A "trigger event” will be deemed 10 have occurted upon the Company's filing any periodic or annual report under
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, in respect of any fiscal quarter with financial statements for such fiscal
quarter where the Company's leverage ratio (as described in the prospectus supplement relating to the Convertible Preferted Units) is equal to or
greater than 6.0 (on an annualized basis) for each of the three consecutive fiscal quarters immediately preceding, and including, such fiscal quarter.

Unless the Treasury portfolio has replaced the pledged Notes as part of Convertible Preferted Units as a result of a successful optional remalrketing
or a triggered early settlement date has occurted, the remarketing agent will remarket the pledged Notes that are components of the Convertible
Preferted Units and any separate Notes whose holders have elected to participate in the remarketing during each day of the five business day



period cnaing on November 12, 2015 (the third business day immediately preceding the Purchase Contract settlement dale) until the remarketing is
successful (the "final remarketing™).

In connecfion with a successful remarketing, all outstanding Notes (whether or not remarketed) will rank senior to all of the Company’s existing and
future unsecured junior subordinated obligations and junior to all of its existing and future senior indebtedness, the interest defertal provisions of the
Notes will not apply to all outstanding Notes (whether or not remarketed), the interest rate on all outstanding Notes (whether or not remarketed) may
be reset and interest will be payable semi-annually-in artears.

There was $4.5 million in interest expense recorded for 2010 related to the contractual interest coupon on the Notes for the periods presented based
upon the 4.25% rate,

Equiry Option:

In order to offset the common shares that may be deliverable upon conversion of shares of Convertible Preferred Stock, the Company entered into
capped call transactions (equity options) with certain major financial institutions (the "capped call counterparties™). The capped call transactions
cover, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, the number of shares of common stock equal to the number of shares of common stock underlying the
maximum number of shares of Convertible Preferted Stock issuable upon settlement of the Purchase Contracts. Each of the capped call transactions
has a term of approximately five years and initially has a lower strike price of $75.00, which cortesponds to the initial conversion price of the
Convertible Preferted Stock, and an upper strike price of $97.95, which is approximately 60% higher than the closing price of the common stock on
November 1, 2010. The Company paid $50.3 million of cash to fund the cost of the capped call transactions, which was recorded as a reduction of
Shareowners' Equity. The capped call transactions may be settled by nel share settlement or, at the Company's option and subject to certain
conditions, cash settlement, physical settlement or modified physical settlement (in which case the number of shares the Company will receive will
be reduced by a number of shares based on the excess, if any, of the volume-weighted average price of its common stock, as measured under the
terms of the capped call transactions, over the upper strike price of the capped call transactions). If the capped call ransactions are exercised and the
volume-weighted average price per share of common stock, as measured under the terms of the capped call transactions, is greater than the lower
strike price of the capped call transactions but not greater than the upper strike price of the capped call transactions, then the value the Company
expects to receive-from the capped call counterparties will be generally based on the amount of such excess. As a result, the capped call ransactions
may offset the potential dilution upon conversion of the Convertible Preferred Stock. If, however, the volume-weighted average price per share of
common stock, as measured under the terms of the capped call transactions, exceeds the upper strike price of the capped call transactions, the value
the Company expects to receive upon the exercise of the capped call transactions (or portions thereof) will be approximately equal to (x) the excess
of the upper strike price of the capped call transactions over the lower strike price of the capped call transactions times (y) the number of shares of
common stock relating to the capped call transactions (or the portions thereof) being exercised, in each case as determined under the terms of the
capped call transactions. As a result, the dilution mitigation under the capped call transactions will be limited based on such capped value.

Junior Subordinated Debt Securities

In November 2005, the Company issued $450.1 million of junior subordinated debt securities to The Stanley Works Capital Trust 1 (the "Trust"),
with a 40-year term and a fixed initial coupon rate of 5.902% for the first five years.

The Trust, which was not consolidated in accordance with ASC 470-20, obtained the fimds it loaned to the Company through the capital market sale
of $450.0 million of Enhanced Trust Preferred Securities ("ETPS") and through the sale of $0.1 million in Trust Common Securities to the
Company, The obligations, tenor and terms of the ETPS mirrored those of the junior subordinated debt securities. The securities may be redeemed
after five years without penalty. If not redeemed after 5 years, the coupon rate will reset quarterly to 1.4% plus the highest of 3-month LIBOR, the
10-Year US Treasury CMT or the 30-Year US Treasury CMT, limited .
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to a maximum rate of 13.25%. Net proceeds of the issuance were used to partially finance the acquisitions of Facom (January 1, 2006) and National
(November 30, 2005). :

In Qctober 2008, the Company repurchased $34.3 million of the ETPS for $24.9 million in cash, and in December 2008 the Trust was dissolved.
Upcn the dissolution of the Trust, the $0.1 millicn investment in the unconsolidated Trust was unwound with a cortesponding reduction in debt.
Additionally the Company caused the remaining $415.7 million of junior subordinated debt securities held by the Trust to be distributed to the
holders of ETPS in exchange for the ETPS upon dissolution of the Trust. A pre-tax gain of $9.4 million was recognized pertaining to the partial
extinguishment of this debt.

In May 2009, the Company repurchased $103.0 million of its junior subordinated debt securities for $58.7 million in cash. The pre-tax gain recorded
associated with this extinguishment was $43.8 million, and the principal balance of the debt after this extinguishment and at January 2, 2010 was
$312.7 million. ] )

In December 2010, the Company redeemed the remaining junior subordinated debt at par without penalty.

Financing of the January 2007 HSM Acquisition

During 2007, the Company initially funded the $546.1 million HSM acquisition with a combination of short-term bortowings and cash. A
$500.0 million 364-day revolving credit bridge facility was entered into on January 8, 2007, of which $130.0 million was utilized to acquire HSM;
the remainder of the HSM purchase price was funded through commercial paper borrowings and cash.

On March 20, 2007, the Company completed two security offerings: "Equity Units", which consisted of $330.0 million of convertible debt and
$330.0 million of forward stock purchase contracts and $200.0 million of unsecured notes (the "2010 Tenn Notes"). The $488.1 million net cash
proceeds of these offerings and the related financial instruments described below were used to pay down the short-term bridge facility and
commercial paper borrowings.

The 2010 Tertn Notes matured March 15, 2010,

Equity Units: On March 20, 2007, the Company issued 330,000 Equity Units, each with a stated value of $1,000. The Equity Units are comprised
of a senior convertible note (a "Convertible Note™) and a forward common stock purchase contract (an "Equity Purchase Contract). The Company
received $320.1 million in cash proceeds from the Equity Units offering, net of underwriting fees. These proceeds were used to repay short-term
borrowings and, along with $18.8 million in proceeds from the sale of stock wartants, to fund the $49.3 million cost of the convertible notes hedge
as more fully described below,

In November 2008, the Company repurchased $10.0 million of the Equity Units for $5.3 million in cash (the "$10 Million Repurchase"). To
properly account for the transaction, the Equity Unit elements were bifurcated as effectively the Company paid $10.0 million 1o extinguish the
Convertible Notes and received $4.7 million from the seller to settle its obligation under the Equity Purchase Contracts. As firther detailed below,
the Equity Purchase Contracts obligated the holder to purchase shares of the Company's common stock on May 17, 2010, At the November 2008
repurchase date, the Company's commeon stock had a closing market value of $25.38. The remaining liability for Contract Adjustment Payment fees,
as defined below, associated with the $10.0 million of settled Equity Purchase Contracts was reversed, resulfing in an increase to equity of

$0.7 million. The related $10.0 million in Convertible Note Hedges (the "Bond Hedge") and Stock Wartants were unwound with a nominal impact
to equity. As a result of the $10 Million Repurchase, there was an insignificant gain recorded in earnings and a net increase in equity of §5.4 million.

Equity Purchase Contracts:

The Equity Purchase Conttacts obligated the holders to purchase on May 17, 2010, newly issued shares of the Company's commen stock for
$320.0 millicn in cash. Pursuant to that obligafion 5,180,776 shares of common stock were issued on the May 17, 2010 settlement date.

Holders of the Equity Purchase Contract were paid a quarterly contract adjustment payment ("Contract Adjustment Payment”) of 5.125% per
amnum, and the first payment thereof was made August 17, 2007. The
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$49.6 million present value of the Contract Adjustment Paymerus reduced Shareowners' Equity at inception. As each quarterly Contract Adjustment
Payment was made, the related liability was relieved with the difference between the cash payment and the present value of the Contract Adjustment
Payment recorded as interest expense (at inception approximately $3.9 million accretion over the three year term). Due to the $10 Million
Repurchase, $0.7 million in remaining liability for the related Contract Adjustment Payments was reversed. The Company's obligafion to make
Contract Adjustment Payments was satisfied in May 2010; therefore at January 1, 2011 the company reported no further liability for Contract
Adjustment Payments under the terms of the Equity Purchase Conitracts. -

Convertble Nores:

The $320.0 million Convertible Notes principal amount currently outstanding has a five-year, two month maturity and is due May 17, 2012, At
maturity, the Company is obligated to repay the principal in cash, and may elect to settle the conversion option value, if any, as detailed further
below, in either cash or shares of the Company’s common stock. The Convertible Notes bear interest-at an annual rate of 3-month LIBOR minus
3.5%, reset quarterly (but never less than zero), and initially set at 1.85%. Interest is payable quarterly commencing August 7, 2007. The
Convertible Notes are unsecured general obligations and rank equally with all of the Company's other unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The
Convertible Notes were pledged as collateral to guarantee the holders' obligations to purchase common stock under the terms of the Equity Purchase
Contract described above. The unamortized discount of the Convertible Notes was $14.9 and $25.5 million at January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010,
respectively. The remaining unamortized balance will be recorded to interest expense through the Convertible Notes maturity in May 2012. The
equity component carrying value was $32.9 million at January t, 2011 and January 2, 2010.

In May 2010, the Company completed the cortractually required remarketing of the $320.0 million of Convertible Notes. Holders of $8.7 million of
the Convertible Notes elected to participate in the remarketing. Following the remarketing, the Convertible Notes bear interest at an annual rate of
3 — month LIBOR minus 3.5%, rest quarterly (but not less than zero).

The conversion premium for the Convertible Notes is 19.0%, equivalent to the conversion price of $64.34 based on the $54.06 value of the
Company's common stock {as adjusted for standard anti-dilution provisions). Upon conversion ort May 17, 2012 {or a cash merger event), the
Company will deliver to each holder of the Convertible Notes $1,000 cash fbr the principal amount of the note. Additionally al conversion, to the
extent, if any, that the conversion option is "in the money", the Company will deliver, al its election, either cash or shares of the Company's common
stock based on a conversion rate of 15.5425 shares (equivalent to the conversion price set at $64.34) and the applicable market value of the
Company's common stock. The ultimate conversion rate will be increased above 15.5425 shares in accordance with standard anli-dilufion provisions
applicable to the Convertible Notes or in the everu of a cash merger. An increase in the ultimate conversion rale will apply to the extent that the
Compary increases the per share common stock dividend rate during the five year term of the Convertible Notes; accordingly such changes 1o the
conversion rate are within the Company's control under its discretion regarding dividends it may declare. Also, the holders may elect to accelerate
conversion, and "make whole” adjustments to the conversion rate may apply, in the event of a cash merger or "fundamental change”. Subject to the
foregoing, if the market value of the Company's common shares is below the conversion price at conversion, (set at a rate equating to $64.34 per
share), the conversion option would be "out of the money" and the Company would have no obligation to deliver any consideration beyond the
$1,000 principal payment required under each of the Convertible Notes. To the extent, that the conversion option of the Convertible Notes becomes
"in the money" in any interim period prior to conversion, there will be a related increase in diluted shares outstanding utilized in the determination of
the Company's diluted eamings per share in accordance with the treasury stock method prescribed by ASC 260. The conversion opfion was “in the
money" as of January I, 2011 and had a very minor dilutive impact during the year. As of January 2, 2010, the conversion option was "out of the
money."

There was no interest expense recorded for 2010 and 2009 related to the contractual interest coupon on the Convertible Notes for the periods
presented based upon the applicable 3-month LIBOR minus 3.5% rate in these periods. The Company had derivative contracts fixing the interest rate
on the $320.0 million flioating rate



Convertible Notes (3-month LIBOR less 350 basis points) at 1.43% and recognized $1.6 million and $4.8 million of interest expense pertaining Lo
these interest rate swaps for the years ended January |, 2011 and January 2, 2010. The non-cash interest expense accretion related to the
amortization of the liability balance as required by the accounfing standards totaled $10.5 million for 2010 and $10.2 million for 2009. The total
interest expense recognized on the Convertible Notes reflecting the contractual interest coupon, the fixed interest rate swaps and the interest
accretion required by the accounting standards represented an effective interest rate of 4.08% for the period ended January 1, 2011 and 5,2% for the
period ended January 2, 2010,

Convertible Notes Hedge: In order to offset the common shares that may be deliverable perwining 1o the previously discussed conversion option
feature of the Convertible Notes, the Company entered into Bond Hedges with certain major financial institations. The Company paid the financial
institutions a prermium of $49.3 million for the Bond Hedge which was recorded, nel of $14.0 million of anticipated 1ax benefits, as a reduction of
Sharcowners' equity. The terms of the Bond Hedge mirtor those of the conversion option feature of the Convertible Notes such that the financial
institutions may be required to deliver shares of the Company's common stock to the Company upon conversion at its exercise in May 2012, To the
extent, that the conversion option feature becomes "in the money” during the five year term of the Convertible Notes, diluted shares outstanding will
increase accordingly. Because the Bond Hedge is anti-dilutive, it will not be included in any diluted shares oustanding computation prior to its
maturity. However, at maturity of the Convertible Notes and the Bond Hedge in 2012, the aggregate effect of these instruments is that there will be
no net increase in the Company's common shares.

Stock Warrants: Simultaneously, the Company issued 5,092,956 of unregistered common stock warrants ("Stock Wartants"} to financial
institutions for $18.8 million. The cash proceeds received were recorded as an increase to Shareowners' equity, The Stock Warrants are exercisable
during the period August 17, 2012 through September 28, 2012, and have a strike price of $86.50 established at 160% of the market value of $54.06
(as adjusted for standard anti-dilution provisions). The Stock Warrants will be net share settled and are deemed to automatically be exercised at their
expiration date if they are "in the money" and were not previously exercised. The strike price for the Stock Wartants will be adjusted for increases to
the Company's dividend rate per share, or special dividends, if any, that occur during their five year term (consistent with the standard anti-dilution
provisions discussed earlier with respect to the conversion spread on the Convertible Notes). In the event the Stock Wartants become "in the money
during their five year term due to the market value of the Company's common stock exceeding the strike price, there will'be a related increase in
diluted shares outstanding utilized in the determination of the Company's diluted earnings pershare. In November 2008, 154,332 Slock Wartanis
were repurchased from the financial institutions at a cost of $0.15 per warrant, pertaining to the previously mentioned $10 Million Repurchase, As a
result, there were 4,938,624 Stock Warrants Quistanding as of January I, 2011.

I. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in foreign curtency exchange rates, interest rates, stock prices and commodity prices. As part
of the Company's risk management program, a variety of financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, curtency swaps, purchased currency
options, foreign exchange contracts and commodity contracts, are used to mitigate interest rate exposure, foreign curtency exposure and commaodity
price exposure,

Financial instruments are not utilized for speculative purposes. If the Company elects to do so and if the instrument meets the criteria specified in
ASC 815, management designates its derivative instruments as cash flow hedges, fair value hedges or net investment hedges. Generally, commodity
price exposures are not hedged with derivative financial instruments and instead are actively managed through customer pricing initiatives,
procurement-driven cost reduction inifiatives and other productivity improvement projects, In the first quarter of 2010, the Company acquired a
portfolio of derivative financial instruments in conjunction with the Merger, which Black & Decker entered into in the ordinary course of business.
Atthe March 12, 2010 merger date, the Company established its intent for each derivative. The Company terminated all outstanding interest rate
swaps and foreign curtency forwards hedging future purchases of inventory denominated in a foreign curtency. For other foreign currency forwards
and commodity derivatives, the Company elected to leave the instruments



in place as an economic hedge only and account for them as undesignated. Net investment hedges were re-designated.

A summary of the fair value of the Company's derivatives recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in millions):

Dertvatives designated as hedging instruments:
Enterest Rate Contracts Cash Flow

Interest Rate Contracts Fair Value
Foreign Exchange Contracts Cash Flow

Net Investment Hedge

Derivatives not designated as hedeine instruments:
Foreign Exchange Contracts

Balance Balance
Sheet Sheet
Classllcation 171411 172110 Classifcatlon t1/11 1/2/10

Other curren: assets s — 95 — Accried expenses s — § 22
LT other assets —_ 7.3 LT other liabilities 173 —
Other current assets 55 4.5 Accrued expenses — —
LT other assets 10,7 0.1 LT other liabilities 119 2.7
Other current assets 0.7 0.1 Accrued expenses 56 31.2
LT other assets —_ — LT other liabilities — —
Other current assets 11.7 — Accrued expenses 17.7 29.1

$ 286 § 120 § 525§ 652
Other current assets $ 264 5 185 Accrued expenses $ 591 § 195
LT other assets —_ 2.8 LT other liabilities 4.1 —

$ 264 5 213 $ 632 5§ 195

The counterparties to all of the above mentioned financial instruments are major international financial institufions. The Company is exposed to
credit risk for net exchanges under these agreements, but not for the notional amounts. The credit risk is limited to the asset amounts noted above.
The Company limits its exposure and concentration of risk by contracting with diverse financial institutions and does not anticipate non-performance
by any of its counterparties. Further, as more fully discussed in Note M, Fair Value Measurements, the Company considers non-performance risk of

its counterparties at each reporting period and adjusts the carrying value of these assets accordingly. The risk of default is considered remote.

" In 2010, significant cash flows related to derivatives including those that are separately discussed in Cash Flow Hedges, Net Investment Hedges and
Undesignated Hedges below resulted in net cash paid of $64.0 million. The Company also received $30.1 million in March 2010 from the
termination of $325.0 million notional of fixed to variable interest rate swaps that became undesignated at the merger date and as a result the cash

inflow was reported within investing activifies in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

In 2009, significant cash flows related to derivatives included cash payments of $15.5 million on a Great Britain pound currency swap maturity and

a Canadian dollar swap termination; both of these swaps were classified as undesignated.

CASH FLOW HEDGES — There was a $50.2 million after-tax loss as of January 1, 201! and a $4.8 million after-tax gain as of January 2, 2010
and January 3, 2009 reported for cash flow hedge effectiveness in Accumulated other comprehensive loss. An after-tax loss of $13.3 million is
expected to be reclassified to earnings as the hedged transactions occur or as amounts are amortized within the next twelve months. The ultimate
amounl recognized will vary based on fluctuations of the hedged curtencies and interest rates through the maturity dates.



The tables below detail pre-tax amounts reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive loss into earnings for active derivative financial
instruments during the periods in which the underlying hedged transactions affected earnings for the twelve months ended January 1, 2011 and
January 2, 2010 (in millions);

Classification of Gain (Loss)} Gain (Loss)
Gain (Loss) Reclassified from Recognized in
Year-to-date . .
20lo Gain (Loss} Rec)assified from OCI to [Income [ncome
(In milljens) . Recorded jn OCI OCl |e [ncome (Effective Portion) (Ineffective Portion*)
[nterest Rate Contracts $ (24.8) Interest expense § (1.6) % —
Foreign Exchange Contracts $ (16.0) Cost of sales § (2.3) -
Foreign Exchange Contracts $ 6.8 Other-net § 8.5 -
Classificatien of Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss}
Cain (Loss) Reclassified from Recognized in
Year-to-date .
2009 Gain (Los‘s) Rec|assified from OC]| te [ncome Income -
(In milljens) Recorded in OCI OC[ te [ncome (Effective Portion) [neflective Porlion*
Interest Rate Contracts L3 7.2 Interest expense § (46) 3 —
Foreign Exchange Contracts 3 (0.5) Costof sales § 47 —
Foreign Exchange Contracts $ (7.7) Other-net § (3.5) . —

* [ncludes ineffective portion and amoun| excluded from effectiveness testing on derivatives.

For 2010, the hedged items' impact to thé consolidated statement of operations-was a gain-of $2.3 million in Cost of Sales and a loss of $8.5 million,
in Other, net. For 2009, the hedged items' impact to the consolidated statement of operations was a loss of $4.7 million in Cost of Sales and a gain of
$4.5 million, in Other, net. There was no impact related to the interest rate contracts' hedged items for any period presented. The impact of de-
designated hedges was immaterial for all perieds presented.

During 2010, 2009 and 2008, an after-tax loss of $2.9 million, an after-tax loss of $1.1 million and an after-tax gain of $42.9 million, respectively,
was reclassified frem Accumulated other comprehensive loss into eamings (inclusive of the gain/loss amortization on terminated derivative financial
instruments) during the periods in which the underlying hedged transactions affected earnings.

Interest Rate Contract: The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements in order |0 obtain the lowest cost source of finds within a targeted
range of variable to fixed-rate debt proportions. At January 1, 2011, the Company had $400 million of forward starting swaps outstanding fixing the
interest rate on the expected refinancing of debt in 2012 as discussed below. At January 2, 2010, the Company had outstanding contracts fixing the
interest rate on its $320.0 million floating rate convertible notes and $400 million of forward starting swaps outstanding fixing the interest rate on the
expected refinancing of debt in 2012, )

In May 2010, the Company executed forward starting interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $400 million fixing interest at 3.95%.
The objective of the hedge was to offset the expected variability on future payments associated with the interest rate on debt instruments. In
connection with the August 31, 2010 issuance of the $400 million of senior unsecured 2040 Term Bonds, as discussed in Note H, Long Term Debt
and Financing Artangements, these forward-starting interest rale swaps were terminated. The terminations resulted in cash payments of

$48.4 million. This loss (330.0 million on an after-tax basis) was recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive loss and will be arnortized to
earnings over the first ten years in which the interest expense related to the 2040 Term Bonds is recognized. The cash flows stemming from the
termination of such interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are presented within financing activities in the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

[n December 2009, the Company executed forward starting interest rate swaps with an aggregate nofional amount of $400 million fixing 10 years of
interest payments at 4.78% beginning in November 2012. The objective of the hedge is to offset the expected variability on future payments
associated with the interest rate on debt instruments expected to be issued in Novemnber 2012. Gains or losses on the swaps are recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive loss and will be subsequently reclassified into earnings as the future interest

[



expense is recognized in eamnings or as ineffectiveness occurs. These swaps have a mandatory eariy termination requirement in November 2012.

Foreign Currency Contracts

Forward contracts: Through its global businesses, the Company enters inte transactions and makes investments denominated in mulfiple currencies
that gjve rise to foreign currency risk. The Company and its subsidiaries regularly purchase inventory from subsidiaries with non-U.S. dollar
functional curtencies which creates currency-related volatility in the Company's results of operations. The Company ufilizes forward contracts to
hedge these forecasted purchases of inventory. Gains and losses reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive loss for the effecfive and
“ineffective porrions of the hedge as well as any amounts excluded from effectiveness testing are recorded in Cost of sales. At January 1, 2011, the
notional value of the forward currency contracis outstanding was $114.8 million, of which $46.0 million has béen de-designated, matring at various
dates through 2011. As of January 2, 2010, there were no such outstanding hedge contracts.

Currency swaps. The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into various inter-company transactions whereby the notional values are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the parry executing the trade. In order to better match the cash fiows of its inter-
company obligations with cash flows from operations, the Company enters into currency swaps. In November 2010, currency swaps with a notional
value of $ 150 millien matured resulting in cash payments of $23.7 million, There were no outstanding currency swaps designated as cash fiow
hedges at January 1, 201 1. The notional value of currency Swaps was $150 million at January 2, 2010.

Purchased Gption Contracts: The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into various inter-company transactions whereby the national values
are denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the party executing the trade. In order to better match the cash flows of its
inter-company obligations with cash fiows from operations, the Company enters into purchased option contracts. Gains and losses reclassified fram
Accumulated other comprehensive lass for the effecfive and ineffective porrions of the hedge as well as any amoums excluded from effectiveness
testing are recorded in Cost of sales. At January |, 2011, the notional value of option contracts cutstanding was $82.3 millien, of which

$36.4 million has been de-designated, maturing.at various dates through 2011, As of January 2, 2010, there were no such outstanding option
contracts.

FAIR VALUE HEDGES

Interest Rate Risk: In an efforr to optimize the mix of fixed versus floating rate debt in the Company's capital structure, the Company enters into
interest rate swaps. [n December 2010, the Company entered into interest rate swaps with notional values which equaled the Company's

$300 million 4.75% notes due in 2014 and $300 million 5.75% notes due in 2016. In January 2009, the Company entered into interest rate swaps
with notional values which equaled the Company's $200 million 4.9% notes due in 2012 and $250 million 6.15% notes due in 2013, These interest
rate swaps effectively converred the Company's fixed rate debt to floating rate debt based on LIBOR, thereby hedging the fluctuation in fair value
resulting from changes in interest rates. The changes in fair value of the interest rate swaps were recognized in eamings as well as the offsetting
changes in fair value of the underlying notes. The notional value of open contracts was $1.050 billion and $450 mjllion as of January 1, 2011 and
January 2, 2010, respectively. A summary of the fair value adjustments relating to these swaps is as follows (in millions):

Year-to-Date 2010 Year-to-Date 2009
Income .
Statement Gain/(Loss) on Gain /(Loss} on Gain/(Less) on Gain /(Loss) on
Classification Swaps BorTowings Swaps Borrowings
Interest Expense $ 1.3 $ (1.3} $ (2.6} 3 2.6

In addition to the amounts in the table above, the net swap accruals for each period and amorrization of the gains on terminated swaps are also
reporred in interest expense and totaled $12.7 million and $11.6 million for



2010 and-2009, respectively. Interest expense on the underiying debt was $28.3 million and $25.2 million for 2010 and 2009, respectively.

During 2008, the Company had interest rate swaps identical to the $200 million and $250 million swaps discussed above that were terminated in
December 2008, resulting in pre-tax gains of $16.5 million, offset by the fair value adjustment to the carrying value of the underlying notes. At
January 3, 2009 the carrying amounts of the $200 million and $250 million notes were increased by $8.4 million and $7.7 million respectively,
related to this adjustment and are being amortized over the remaining term of the notes as a reduction of interest expense.

NET INVESTMENT HEDGES

Foreign Exchange Contracts: The Company utilizes net investment hedges to offset the translation adjustment arising from re-measurement of its
investment in the assets and liabilities of its foreign subsidiaries. The total after-tax amounts in Accumulated other comprehensive loss were losses
of $32.7 million and $11.8 million at January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, respectively. As of January 1, 2011, the Company had foreign exchange
contracts that mature in March 2011 with notional values totaling $223.1 million cutstanding hedging a portion of its euro deneminated net
investment and foreign exchange contracis that mature at various dates through April 2011 with notional values of $800.9 million outstanding
hedging a portion of its pound sterling denominated net investment. As of January 2, 2010, the Company had one foreign exchange contract with a
notional value of $223.4 million outstanding hedging a portion of its eure denominated net investment The Company had foreign exchange contracts
mature in 2010 resulting in cash receipts of $43.9 millien and cash payments of $29.0 million. Gains and losses on net investment hedges remain in
Accumulated other comprehensive loss until disposal of the underlying assets. The details of the pre-tax amounts are below (in millions):

Year-to-Daic 201¢ Year-to-Date 2009
lnelTective Ineltective
Portion® Portion*
Amount Effeetlve Portion Recorded in Amount Efective Portion . Recorded In

Income -
Statement . Recorded in OC1 Recorded in Income Income Recorded in OC1 Recorded in tncome Income
Classification = Guin (Lost) Statemeni Statement Gain (Loss) Statement Statement
Other, net s (31.9) 5 — R - § (8.3 3 — s —

* Includes ineffective portion and amount excluded from effectiveness testing.

UNDESIGNATED HEDGES

.Foreign Exchange Contracts: Currency swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts are used to reduce risks arising from the change in fair value
of cerain foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities (such as affiliate loans, payables and receivables). The objective of these practices is o
minimize the impact of foreign curtency fluctuations on operating results. The total nofional amount of the contracts outstanding at January 1, 2011
was $2.3 billion of forward contracts and $219.4 million in curtency swaps, maturing at various dates primarily through September 2011 with one
currency swap maturing in December 2014. The total notional amount of the contracts outstanding at January 2, 2010 was $182.6 million of forward
contracts and $160.5 million in curtency swaps. Significant cash flows related to undesignated hedges during 2010 included net cash paid of

$6.7 million. The income statement impacts related to derivatives not designated as hedging instruments for 2010 and 2009 are as follows (in
millions);

. Year-to-Date 2010 Yecar-to-Date 2009

Derivatives o

Not Amount of Gain (Loss) Amount of Gain {Loss)

Designiated as . Income

Hedging Statement Recorded in_Income on Recor(led in Income on

Instruments under ASC 815 Classification Derivatjve Derjvative

Foreign Exchange Contracts Other, net 3 385 ) (7.6}
Cost of Sales $ 1.0 $ —

Commodity Contracts: Commodity contracts were used to manage price risks related to material purchases — primarily zinc and copper — used in
the manufacturing process. The objective of the contracts was to reduce the variability of cash flows associated with the forecasted purchase of these
commedities. In



conjunction with the Merger, the Company assumed commodity contracts with a total notional amount of 7.4 million pounds. During the second
quarter of 2010, alt commodity contracts matured or were terminated. No notional amounts were outstanding as of January I, 2011. The income
statement impacts related to commodity contracts not designated as hedging instruments were as fotlows (in millions):

Year-to-Date 2010
Derivatives
Not Amount of Gain (Loss)
Designated as
Hedging [ncome Statement . Recorded in [ncome on
[nstruments under ASC 8|5 Classification Derivative

Commodity Contracts Other, net ) (1.3)

J. CAPITAL STOCK

EARNINGS PER SHARE — The following table reconcites net eamings attributable to common shareholders.and the weighted average shares
outstanding used to calculate basic and dituted earnings per share for the fiscal years ended January 1, 201 1, January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009,

Basic Earnings per Share Computation

20[0 2003 2008
Numerator (in mittions):
Net eamnings attributable to Stantey Black & Decker, Inc. $ 1982 § 2243 § 3069
Less: Net carnings allocated to unvested units(A) 0.5 0.3 0.6
Net eamnings attributable to Stantey Black & Decker, Inc. less unvested units § 1977 § 2240 § 3063
(A) — The unvested units affecting the calculation of basic eamings per share represent restricted stock units with non-forfeitable dividend rights.
2010 2009 2008

Denominator (in thousands):
Basic eamings per share, weighted-average shares outstanding 147,224 79,788 78,897

Ditutive Eamnings per Share Computation
2010 2009 2008

Numerator (in mitlions): )
Net eamings attributabte to Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. §$198.2 $224.3 §306.9
Denominator (in thousands):

Basic eamings per share, weighted-average shares outstanding 147,224 79,788 78,897

Dilutive effect of stock options and awards 2,943 608 977

Ditluted eamings per share, weighted-average shares outstanding 150,167 80,396 79,874
2010 2009 2008

Eamnings per share of common stock:

Basic Earnings Per Share S1.34 $2.81 $3.88

Dituted Earnings Per Share S1.32 $2.79 $3.84

A - 34



The following weighted-average stock options, warrants and Equity Purchase Contracts to purchase the Company's common stock were not included
in the computation of diluted shares outstanding because the effect would be anti-dilutive (in thousands):

20]0 2009 2008
Number of stock options 2,760 3,519 2,101
Number of stock wartants 4,939 4,939 5,069
Number of shares related to May 2010 equity purchase contracts 2,210 5,893 6,035
Number of shares related to the convertible preferred units 1,054 - —

The Company has warrants outstanding which entitle the holder to purchase up to 4,938,624 shares of its common stock with a strike price of
approximately $86.50, These warrants are anti-dilutive since the strike price is greater than the market price of ihe Company's common stock.

The Convertible Notes outstanding, described more fully in Note H, Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements, had a very minor dilutive
impact during the year,

As of January 1, 2011 there were no shares related to the Convertible Preferted Units included in the calculation of diluted carnings per share
because the effect of the conversion option was not dilutive, These Convertible Preferted Units, as well as the equity purchase contracts and
convertible note hedge, are discussed more fully in Note H, Long-Term Debt and Financing Artangements.

COMMON STOCK SHARE ACTIVITY — Common stock share activity for 2010, 2009 and 2008 was as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Qutstanding, begiiming of year 80,478,624 78,876,034 80,378,787
Shares issued as part of the merger 78,497,261 — —
Shares issued from Equity Units Offering - . 5,180,776 — —
Issued from treasury 2,298,603 2,178,203 737,698
Retumed to treasury {107,834) {575.613) (2.240.451)
Outstanding, end of year 166,347,430 80,478,624 78,876,034

In 2009, in addition to the common stock share activity described in the Stock-Based Compensation Plans and Equity Option sections of this
foomote, the Company issued 242,653 shares of common stock from treasury and received cash proceeds of $9.5 million during the year.

COMMON STOCK RESERVED — Common stock shares reserved for issuance under various employee and director stock plans at January 1,
2011 and January 2, 2010 are as follows;

. 2010 2009
Employee stock purchase plan 2,956,667 3,100,835
Other stock-based compensation plans 5.035,575 4,086,625
Total shares reserved ' ' 7,992,242 7,187 480

PREFERRED STOCK PURCHASE RIGHTS — Each outstanding share of common stock has a one share purchase right. Each purchase right
may be exercised to purchase one two-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferted Stock at an exercise price of $220.00, subject
to adjustment. The rights, which do not have voting rights, expire on March 10, 2016, and may be redeemed by the Company at a price of 30.01 per
right at any time prior to the tenth day following the public announcement that a person has acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the
outstanding shares of common stock. In the event that the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction, provision
shall be made so that each holder of a right {other than a holder who is 2 14,9%-or-more shareowner) shall have the right to receive, upon exercise
thereof, that number of shares of common stock of the surviving Company having a market value equal to two times the exercise price of the right
Similarly, if anyone becomes the beneficial owner of more than 15% of the then outstanding shares of common stock {except pursuant to an offer for
all
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outstanding shares of common stock which the independent directors have deemed to be fair and in the best interest of the Company), provision will
be made so that each holder of a right (other than a holder who is a 14.9%-or-more shareowner) shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon
exercise thereof, common stock (or, in certain circumstances, cash, property or other securities of the Company) having a market value equal to two
times the exercise price of the right. At January 1, 2011, there were 166,347,430 outstanding rights. .

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS — The Company has stock-based compensation plans for salaried employees and non-employee
members of the Board of Directors. The plans provide for discretionary grants of stock options, restricted stock units, and other stock-based awards.

The plans are generally administered by the Compensalion and Organization Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting of non-emplayee
directors.

Stock Options: Stock options are granted al the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant and have a |0-year term. Generally,
stack option grants vest ratably over four years from the date of grant.

One million options were granted in conjunction with the Merger. These options will cliff ve